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misleading one described in the moving papers. Ms. Butts is on Plaintiff"s witness list and now
Plaintiff will add Ms. Hammock, who prior to the current motion was not disclosed as having
any knowledge relevant to this case. This is especially important as Plaintiff in good faith
questions the authenticity and integrity of the documents produced (and destroyed or lost or not
preserved) by the County defendants.

10. For example, by email dated August 3, 2018, Plaintiff wrote to defense counsel:

“In addition to the points previously made, please consider the following as pertains to the
woefully inadequate production of documents in this case:

“1. CC 025 is CPS Referral Summary regarding Laura Rodriguez (not Plaintiff). It
references a date of 12/22/14, 1643346. Is this a mistake? Did you intend to produce a
document referencing Plaintiff? Please confirm.

“2. CC 028 is blank. Please confirm in the Document Response that the document in all its
incantations {original and any copies) is blank, or produce the non-blank document. If you
contend it is blank, why was it numbered and produced? Conversely, please produce the un-
redacted document.

3. CC 027 appears to be altered and clearly has been redacted in multiple spots.

“3a. Missing entirely is the sections that answers the question, "1. What is the extent of child
maltreatment?" When [child] fell into the pool, this was answered and it was concluded
there was no maltreatment. It's been deleted here. Please produce this deleted (not even
redacted) section.

“3b. Missing entirely is the section that answers the question, "2. What are the circumstances
surrounding the child maltreatment?" When [child] fell into the pool, this was answered and
it was concluded again there was no maltreatment. It's been deleted here. Please produce this
deleted section (again, not even redacted, but made to look like it does not exist).

“3c. Question 5 of this form states: "WHAT ARE THE GENERAL DISCIPLINARY
PRACTICES IN THIS FAMILY?" After a short answer, a second question states:

"What would the source like to see happen?” The entire answer it blacked out and redacted.
Please produce this unredacted portion.

“3d. Other blacked-out redactions are set forth on this page. All need to be produced. Likewise,
There are many other redactions in the produced documents that need to be produced. See CC
003, 004 (which appear to be all the notes related to Plaintiff as related to his interview the day
before Christmas on 12/24/14 and thus could not possibly be privileged), 008, 009, 010, 01 1,
012,013, 015,017, 019, 020, 022, 023, 028, 029, 032, 034 (another entirely blank document),
035, 036, 039, 040, 041, 042, 043, 044, 045, 046, 047, 048, 049, 052, 053, 054, 055, 056, 057,
061, 062, 064.

“Obviously much of this is being withheld because it vindicates Plaintiff, impeaches

Defendants, or blocks discovery of essential information needed to obtain a fair trial. If all
Page 17 of 20
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of this information is not produced forthwith, and/or the specific information identified by a
protected specific category (e.g., private phone number or social security number), I will
move to compel and will seek sanctions, including issue preclusion sanction and possibly even
striking of the Answer given the collective seriousness of the discovery abuses and frivolous
Motion to Dismiss.”

FURTHER AFFIANT SAITH NAUGHT.

Date: August 6, 2018 Sm ggiéastn
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EXHIBIT “B”

(- Judicial Notice -- Will County Cover Sheet)
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o3;39é2615‘

N/A

Matter set for

‘Status - Monday, July 23, 2018 @ 9:00am, Courtroom R002, Judge FROBATE

PC- &malihpoxt

‘Guardian is present. Attorney Jennifer Lynch present as Guardian Ad Litern. Mr. Steve Egg!’asmn
‘present. Matter Comes on for presentation of Annual Report and pro se motion to

terminate guardianship. Third Annual Report presented and approved. Mattsnssetfortkeﬁhng
‘and approval of the 4th Annual Reparton 5/28/19. Mohon to teminate guardianship is mntinusd
forstatusm?iﬂﬂ&

‘Status - Tzzesday May 28, 2019 @ 9:00am, Courtroom 3902,.1 ’
[ JEFF Reporter: ELECTRONIC RECORDING m;m
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EXHIBIT “C”

(Judicial Notice — Attorney Emily McFarling Affidavit filed in Will County)
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AFFIDAVIT OF EMILY MCFARLING, ESQ
SIAIEOFNEVADA ) ,
)
COUNIYOFCLARK )

2
3
4
Sh Emily McFarling, Esq, bcmsdulymdepommm

1 1am an atiomey duly licensed to practie law in the Statos of Nevads, California and
6 Anzond 1am a Certified Nevada Family Law Specialist 1 am employed by McFarhing
7 Law Group 1mﬂNMyMS&whggluwnmNm

2 On or about January 7, 2015, the Department of Child Protective Services (“CPS”) and
g||  Ppoice were dispatched to Mr ‘Eggleston’s residence where he, Laura Battstella, their

7& mmor chiidren, Ryder and Hunter Eggleston, resided

9 Ms smmgmm;npmfmm Eggleston to stgn on the spot to
wll designate Laura's sister, Lisa, as guardian of the mmor chikdren

4 Smmwmmmmaymmmmdmw
Services on January 7, NtSm&etekphmwiukshcmdﬂmpokwwmatmy
11

chient’s bome

12/i5 Ms SmwMymﬁwemmc&icmmmwmmammumm
|  pertammng to Laura, but there was concern that Mr Eggleston had been leaving the
13 z?wmhmsmmm«emmmwmmmm nglestmbmsm

parent
Ms Stuart specifically told me over the telephane on that day that the plan was for Lisato
stay in the Parties’ home with the children on a temporary basis Ms Stuart informed me
that no petstion for abuse or neglect would be filed agamst Mr Lggleston if he signed the
temporary guardianship consent, but that CP'S would keep the mvestigation case open just
mmmmmammmwmmwmpmmm A
full care and control of the cluldren .
Mmmmmmbym Stuart, Mr E@mWaC&Mf«
Gwdmdnp,w}mhmdd’m;ﬁusxmﬁs.dhmmm&mm»

w
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Electronically Filed
8/21/2018 1:34 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE CO!EE

FELICIA GALATI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 007341

OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY
ANGULO & STOBERSKI

9950 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, NV 89129

Phone: 702-384-4012

Fax: 702-383-0701
fgalati@ocgas.com

Attorneys for Defendants
CLARK COUNTY and GEORGINA STUART

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVE EGGLESTON, CASE NO. A-16-748919-C
DEPT. NO. VIII
Plaintiff,
V. Date of Hearing: 8/28/18

Time of Hearing; 8 a.m.

GEORGINA STUART; CLARK COUNTY,
NEVADA; LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN
CALLAHAN; AND DOES I THROUGH 100,
INCLUSIVE,

Defendants,

DEFENDANTS CLARK COUNTY AND GEORGINA STUART’S REPLY TO
PLAINTIFE’S OPPOSITION MOTION TO DISMISS; AND PLAINTIFE’S “NRCP
REQUEST FOR TIME TO CONDUCT DISCOVERY”

COME NOW Defendants CLARK COUNTY and GEORGINA STUART
(“Defendants™), by and through their attormey FELICIA GALATI, ESQ. of the law firm
OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY, ANGULO & STOBERSKI, and hereby submit their Reply to
Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Dismiss; and Plaintiff’s “NRCP Request for Time to Conduct

Discovery.” This Reply is made and based upon all papers, pleadings and records on file herein,

Case Number: A-18-748919-C

247




Law Offices of
OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY, ANGULO & STOBERSKI

A Profissional Corporation
9950 West Cheyenne Avenue

Telecopier (702) 383-0701

Las Vegas, Nevada 8912

{702) 384-4012

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

the attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and such oral argument, testimony and
evidence as the Court may entertain,

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I

INTRODUCTION

The only issue before this Court is whether Plaintiff has failed to exhaust his
administrative remedies. He clearly has because he has a Fair Hearing appeal pending before
Clark County Department of Family Services (DFS) regarding matters relating to the allegations
in the First Amended Complaint (FAC). Plaintiff’s Opposition completely fails to address the
requirement of exhausting administrative remedies and does not deny that there is a pending
Fair Hearing but, rather, confirms it by indicating what is going on in that matter. As such,
Defendants’ Motion must be granted. Plaintiff’s alleged discovery issues have nothing to do
with the Motion and should be ignored.

II.

PROCEDURAL AND FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Plaintiff does not deny any of the facts established by the Affidavit of Paula Hammack
as to the appeal pending before DFS and/or offer any evidence to contradict it. Instead, he tries
to confuse the sole issue before this Court with what he alleges are discovery issues, none of
which are relevant to the Motion. Plaintiff does not and cannot dispute the following, including
because of the very documents he prepared and submitted to DFS and his emails to DFS
regarding the pending appeal:

i

11
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1. That on 2/2/15, the Department of Family Services (“DFS”) made a finding of
child maltreatment against Plaintiff.'

2. That on 2/12/15, Plaintiff submitted to DFS a request for an appeal of the
substantiated finding in care of his attorney, Ms. McFarling, Esq.’

3. That on 8/27/15, DFS issued a Finding of Substantiation upholding the
substantiated finding of physical injury neglect — 14 N plausible risk of physical injury against
Plaintiff as to 4 minor children.’

4. That on 9/9/15, Plaintiff requested a Fair Hearing or appeal of that decision in
care of his attorney, Ms. McFarling."

5. That the Fair Hearing was originally scheduled for 8/1/17 at Plaintiff’s
request, but was rescheduled for 9/6/17.°

6. That on 8/2/17, Plaintiff requested a continuance of the 9/6/17 Fair
Hearing.*

7. That on 8/18/17, DES advised Plaintiff the Fair Hearing was reset for
10/24/17.

8. That on 10/4/17, Plaintiff requested a second continuance of the 10/24/17
Fair Hearing.8

1

! See Affidavit of Paula Hammack (Exhibit A to Motion); Affidavit of Devon Butts (Exhibit B); Substantiation
Letter (Exhibit C), Certain DFS documents are redacted pursuant to NRS 432B.280, which makes that information
confidential.

* 1d.; Plaintiff’s Request for Agency Appeal (DFS) of Substantiated Finding(s) of Abuse and/or Neglect (Exhibit D).
?1d.; DFS 8/27/15 letter and Finding of Substantiation of Child Abuse and/or Neglect (Exhibit E).

*1d.; Plaintiff’s Request for Fair Hearing of Agency Decision (Exhibit F).

? Id.; DFS 5/26/17 letter (Exhibit G); DFS 6/9/17 letter (Exhibit H),

¢ Id.; Plaintiff’s 8/2/17 e-mail, p. 2 (Exhibit I),

7 1d.; DFS 8/18/17 letter (Exhibit J).

¥ 1d.; Plaintiff’s 10/4/17 e-mail (Exhibit K).
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9. That on 10/16/17, DFS agreed to a continuance of the 10/24/17 Fair Hearing at
Plaintiff’s request and DFS asked Plaintiff to advise when he could appear for a Fair Hearing so
it could be rescheduled.’

10. Thereafter, Plaintiff failed to contact DFS to reset the 10/24/17 Fair Hea,ring.10

11. That on 7/19/18, not having heard from Plaintiff for 9 months, DFS notfified
Plaintiff of a new Fair Hearing date set for 9/11/18."!

12, That on 7/20/18, Plaintiff requested a third continuance of the 9/11/18 Fair
Hearing, indicating he would be in Washington, D.C. on 9/11/18."

13. On 7/31/18, DFS corresponded with Plaintiff reminding Plaintiff that the 10/24/17
Fair Hearing was set for 9/11/18, but continued at his request, and reminding Plaintiff that DFS
asked Plaintiff to advise when he could appear for a Fair Hearing so it could be rescheduled, but
he had failed to do so."

14. On 8/17/18, DES again corresponded with Plaintiff and reiterated what was in its
prior 7/31/18 correspondence to Plaintiff again reminding Plaintiff that the 10/24/17 Fair Hearing
was set for 9/11/18, but continued at his request, and reminding Plaintiff that DFS asked Plaintiff
to advise when he could appear for a Fair Hearing so it could be rescheduled, but he had failed to
do so.™

15.  To date, Plaintiff has not provided a date to DFS on which the Fair Hearing can
proceed. Ten months have passed since DFS agreed to Plaintiff’s second request for
continuance of the 10/24/17 Fair Hearing. Notwithstanding DFS’ multiple requests for Plaintiff
to provide DFS a date upon which a Fair Hearing can be rescheduled, Plaintiff has refused to do

$0. Thus, the Fair Hearing is still pending at DFS.

% Id.; DFS 10/16/17 e-mail, p. 1 (Exhibit K),

1% See Affidavit of Paula Hammack (Exhibit A to Motion); Affidavit of Devon Butts (Exhibit B).
"'1d.; DFS 7/19/18 letter (Exhibit L),

"2 1d.; Plaintiff’s 7/20/18 e-mail (Exhibit M),

13 See DFS 7/31/18 e-mail (Exhibit N).

" See DFS 8/17/18 e-mail (Exhibit O),
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Based on all of the above, there is no doubt that Plaintiff initiated the appeal process and
the Fair Hearing relating to the allegations and issues in the FAC is pending and has not
occurred vet.

I11.
LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. Defendants’ Motion Is Timely

Plaintiff argues that Defendants’ Motion is untimely. However, Plaintiff has cited
absolutely no case law to support that or his request that this Court summarily deny Defendants’
Motion. In any case, Plaintiff asks this Court to treat Defendants’ Motion as a motion for
summary judgment and, therefore, this issue is moot because the Motion was filed long before
this case’s dispositive motion deadline of 5/1/19."

In addition, Defendants asserted in the affirmative defenses to their Answer that
Plaintiffs’ complaint fails to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.'® Therefore,
Defendants did not waive that defense by filling their Answer before the Motion and Plaintiff’s

argument must be rejected. See, e.g., Bank of Am., N.A. v. Regency Vill. Owner's Ass'n, Inc.,

2017 WL 2817882, at *3 note 1, and *1 (D. Nev. June 29, 2017) (“Rule 12(b)(6) of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure mandates that a court dismss a cause of action that fails to state a

claim upon which relief can be granted.” North Star Int'l v. Ariz. Corp. Comm'n, 720 F.2d 578,

581 (9™ Cir. 1983).) Furthermore, NRCP 12(b) allows the pleader the option of making the
enumerated defenses by motion; and NRCP 12(h)(2) allows a defense of failure to state a claim
upon which relief can be granted to be made in a pleading, by motion or at trial on the merits.
Therefore, the Motion is not untimely. The law is clear that Plaintiff must exhaust his
administrative remedies before proceeding in this Court “and [his] failure to do so renders the

controversy nonjusticiable.” Lopez v. Nevada Dep't of Corr., 127 Nev. 1156, 373 P.3d 937

(2011) citing Allstate Ins. Co. v. Thorpe, 123 Nev. 565, 571, 170 P.3d 989, 993 (2007).
/1

1% See Scheduling Order, filed on 5/14/18, p. 2.
1% See Answer (ECF No. 12), p.10.
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B. Plaintiff’s Reliance On § 1983 Cases Is Misplaced

Plaintiffs reliance on § 1983 cases is misplaced.'” Leaving aside Plaintiff’s
misrepresentations and misstatements about what the cases say and hold, the plain fact is that all
of the cases Plaintiff relies on are cases in which the plaintiffs made only § 1983 claims. Thatis
not the case here. Plaintiff brings § 1983, intentional infliction of emotional distress, and
defamation, libel and slander claims against Defendants.'® Therefore, this action should be
dismissed because of the docirine of exhaustion of adminisirative remedies.

C. Plaintiff’s Intentional Tort / “Pre-Condition” Argument Fails

Plaintiff misunderstands Defendants’ argument. Defendants do not argue the “Fair
Hearing” is a condition precedent to this action. Defendants argue this action must be dismissed
because the doctrine of exhaustion of administrative remedies requires that a person exhaust
admimstrative remedies before proceeding in the district court “and failure to do so renders the

k]

controversy nonjusticiable.” Lopez, supra citing Allstate ITns. Co., supra. In any case,

Plaintiff’s citation to case law is unavailing."

Turner v. Staggs, 89 Nev. 230, 510 P. 2d 879 (1973), is inapposite to this case. There, the
Nevada Supreme Court held that the 6-month notice of claim requirements in NRS 244.245 and
NRS 244.250 violate the equal protection clause. Neither notice of claim requirement is at issue

here. Martinez v. Maruszczak, 123 Nev. 433, 168 P. 3d 720 (2007), too, is inapposite to this case.

There, the Nevada Supreme Court was applying the discretionary-act immunity test under NRS
41.032 and held that defendant doctor was not entitled to that immunity because his diagnostic and
treatment decisions did not include policy considerations and, therefore, he failed to meet the second
criterion of that test. Discretionary-act immunity established by NRS 41.032, is a defense and
can bar an action, but it has nothing do with the Motion, the doctrine of exhaustion of
administrative remedies or Plaintiff’s Fair Hearing pending before DFS. Furthermore, contrary
to Plaintiff’s argument, Martinez does not hold that NRS 41.032 *“does not shield the

government from intentional tort liability. Such treatment would clearly violate the equal

17 See Opposition, pp. 6-7.
% See FAC.
19 See Opposition, p. 8.
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protection guarantees of the United States Constitution. Neither Turner nor Martinez

supports Plaintiff’s argument. Finally, Plaintiff cannot defeat Defendants’ Motion by

converting it into something it is not.

D. Defendants’ Motion Has Adequate Support And Should Be Granted

Defendants’ Motion has adequate support based on the Affidavit of Paula Hammack.”’
This Court knows that affidavits are admissible evidence on motions to dismiss and motions for
summary judgment. See, e.g. NRCP 56(c). In addition, Ms. Hammack is the Assistant Director
of Clark County Department of Family Services. As such, she has knowledge of what is going
on at DFS, can aftest to any pending matters at DFS and can authenticate any related
documents, including regarding Plaintiffs pending Fair Hearing. Whether or not Ms.
Hammack is listed on a 16.1 disclosure has nothing to do with anything and does not preclude
her from providing an affidavit to support Defendants” Motion, In any case, Defendants are
providing another affidavit, from Devon Butts, whom Plaintiff states he has communicated with
and documents confirming what Ms. Hammack has already attested to as the Assistant Director
of DFS. More importantly, Plaintiff listed Ms. Hammack as his sixth witness in his initial 16.1
disclosure produced by him on 4/30/18.** Thus, even Plaintiff believes she is competent and
knowledgeable about the case subject matter. Finally, Plaintiff establishes various facts,
including regarding the findings against him based on the fact that he appealed those findings.”

Also, DFS is a department of a political subdivision and a public entity. Charles v.
Ochs, 1008 WL 846029, at *1 (D.Nev.) citing Clark K. v. Guinn, 2007 WL 1435428, at *7

(D.Nev.); Wayment v Holmes, 112 Nev. 232, 237-38, 912 P.2d 816, 819 (1996). 1t is
statutorily required to keep records. NRS 432B.290(1). Therefore, its records are not hearsay,
including because they consist of factual findings resulting from an investigation made pursuant
to authority granted by law and are subject to the public records exception to the hearsay rule.

NRS 51.155 and NRS 52.085; NRS 432B.315; Allstate Ins. Co. v. Nassiri, 2013 WL 2394116,

*1d. at 8:17-20.

A See Exhibit A to Motion,

*2 See Plaintiff’s Initial Disclosure, p. 1 (Exhibit P),

 See Plaintiff’s Request for Agency Appeal (DFS) of Substantiated Finding(s) of Abuse and/or Neglect (Exhibit
D); Plaintiff’s Request for Fair Hearing of Agency Decision (Exhibit F).
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at *1-2. Finally, Plaintiff’s own statements, including his emails, are not hearsay because they
are party admissions. NRS 51.035(3).

It is important to note that Plaintiff does not dispute what Ms. Hammack attested to,
including that there is a Fair Hearing pending before DFS regarding matters relating to the
allegations in the FAC, and has not submitted any admissible evidence to contradict that. To
the contrary, he confirms the existence of the pending Fair Hearing by indicating “[t]he whole,
highly suspect process began with the seven-month delay in the Fair Hearing process. The
County appears to have revved it back up in reaction to plaintiff’s lawsuit, hoping to use it to
defeat his rights.”** Plaintiff thereby establishes the fact of the pending Fair Hearing,

Furthermore, Plaintiff’s argument is belied by his own papers penned by him. To be
clear, on 2/2/15, DFS made a finding of child maltreatment against Plaintiff*®* On 2/12/15,
Plaintiff submitted to DFS a request for an appeal of the substantiated finding in care of
his attorney, Ms. McFarling.*® On 8/27/15, DFS issued a Finding of Substantiation upholding
the substantiated finding of physical injury neglect.”” On 9/9/15, Plaintiff requested a Fair
Hearing or appeal of that decision in care of his attorney, Ms. McFarling.”® On 12/30/16,
Plaintiff filed his Complaint. The Fair Hearing was originally scheduled for 8/1/17 at
Plaintiff’s request, but was rescheduled for 9/6/17. % On 8/2/17, Plaintiff requested a
continuance of the Fair Hearing.”® On 8/10/2017, Plaintiff filed his FAC. On 8/18/17,
DFS advised Plaintiff the Fair Hearing was reset for 10/24/17.*' On 10/4/17, Plaintiff
requested a second continuance of the Fair Hearing.”> On 10/16/17, DFS agreed to a

continuance at Plaintiff’s request and DFS asked Plaintiff to advise when he could appear for

* See Opposition, 9:24,

** See Affidavit of Paula Hammack (Exhibit A to Motion); Affidavit of Devon Butts (Exhibit B); Substantiation
Letter (Exhibit C).

*1d.; Plaintiff’s Request for Agency Appeal (DFS) of Substantiated Finding(s) of Abuse and/or Neglect (Exhibit
D).

71d.; DFS 8/27/15 Correspondence and Finding of Substantiation of Child Abuse and/or Neglect (Exhibit E).
 1d.; Plaintiff’s Request for Fair Hearing of Agency Decision (Exhibit F),

*1d.; DFS 5/26/17 letter (Exhibit G); DFS 6/9/17 letter (Exhibit H).

*01d.; Plaintiff’s 8/2/17 email (Exhibit T).

T 1d.; DFS 8/18/17 letter (Exhibit J).

32 1d.; Plaintiff’s 10/4/17 email (Exhibit K).

254




Law Offices of
OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY, ANGULO & STOBERSKI

A Profissional Corporation
9950 West Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 8912

Telecopier (702) 383-0701

{702) 384-4012

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

the Fair Hearing so it could be rescheduled.”> Thereafter, Plaintiff failed to contact DFS to
reset the Fair Hearing.>* On 7/19/18, not having heard from Plaintiff for 9 months, DFS
notified Plaintiff of a new Fair Hearing date set for 9/11/18.* On 7/20/18, Plaintiff requested
a third continuance of the Fair Hearing.36 To date, Plaintiff has failed to provide a date to
DFS so the Fair Hearing can be reset to a date on which he is available. It is absolutely clear
that Plaintiff requested the Fair Hearing appeal and despite DFS efforts to conduct the Fair
Hearing, Plaintiff has done nothing, but stall. Plaintiff’s conduct speaks for itself. His actions
are not those of a person who wants his appeal timely heard. This Court should ask itself why.
Perhaps Plaintiff is trying to use this action to do discovery to support his Fair Hearing appeal.
He clearly has had no interest in getting the Fair Hearing completed based on 3 confinuance
requests and 2 failures to provide an agreeable date for the Fair Hearing after DFS requested he
do so, Plaintiff initiated the appeal process with DFS, he submitted documents to that effect and
in support of his appeal, and he communicated with DFS about it. There is no doubt about that
and Plaintiff has not and cannot dispute it.

Plaintiff’s argument regarding discovery issucs exceeds the scope of the Motion and is
completely irrelevant. To be clear, Plaintiff’s discovery complaints are unfounded and not a
matter for this Court at this time.

Also, this Court should not consider the Affidavit of Emily McFarling.”” The Affidavit
is dated 5/21/15 — is over 3 years old — and was obviously not prepared for and/or provided to
be used in this action, which was commenced on 12/30/16 — 223 days later. Defendants wonder
if Ms. McFarling even knows that Plaintiff is using the dated Affidavit in this case.
Furthermore, what Ms. McFarling attests to is completely irrelevant to the issue of whether
Plaintiff has a pending Fair Hearing appeal. Finally, this Court cannot take judicial notice of
Ms. McFarling’s Affidavit. NRS 47.130 provides:

*1d.; DFS 10/16/17 email, p.1 (Exhibit K).
34 Id.

**1d.; DFS 7/19/18 letter (Exhibit L),

36 1d.; Plaintiff’s 7/20/18 email (Exhibit M).
37 See Plaintiff’s Exhibit C.
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1. The facts subject to judicial notice are facts in issue or facts from which they may be
inferred.

2. A judicially noticed fact must be:

(a) Generally known within the territorial jurisdiction of the trial court; or

(b) Capable of accurate and ready determination by resort to sources whose accuracy

cannot reasonably be questioned, so the fact is not subject to reasonable dispute.
The Affidavit allegedly filed in an Illinois action does not relate to facts in issue on this Motion
or facts from which they may be inferred. Also, the alleged Illinois filing is not generally
known within this territorial jurisdiction or capable of accurate and ready determination by
resort to sources whose accuracy cannot reasonably be questioned, so the fact is not subject to
reasonable dispute. Generally, a Nevada court will not take judicial notice of facts in a different

case, even if connected in some way, unless the party seeking it demonstrates a valid reason for

doing so. In re Amerco Derivative Litig., 127 Nev. 196, 221 n. 9, 252 P.3d 681, 699 n. 9

(2011). Plaintiff has not even tried to do that. Furthermore, the Affidavit allegedly speaks to
issues relating to the substantive findings, not whether there is a pending Fair Hearing,
Therefore, this Court cannot take judicial notice of the Affidavit.

E. Plaintiff’s Apparent Request For Discovery Should Be Denied

Plaintiff’s Opposition is titled in part “NRCP Request for Time to Conduct Discovery.”
However, Plaintiff fails to even cite the relevant Rule for that request or make a substantive
argument to support it, There is absolutely nothing in the body of the Opposition relating to it.
For that reason alone, it should be denied. In any case, the request fails to meet the
requirements of the relevant Rule and case law.

The Motion pending before this Court is based on the doctrine of exhaustion of
administrative remedies. The only issue is whether Plaintiff has an appeal pending before DFS

regarding matters relating to the allegations in the FAC. He does and, therefore, the Motion

10
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must be granted. No discovery needs to be done to determine that simple fact and there is no
genuine issue of fact regarding that based on all of the evidence submitted by Defendants, none
of which Plaintiff has contradicted with admissible evidence.

Furthermore, Plaintiff has failed to adequately support his request under NRCP 56(f),
which provides:

When Affidavits Are Unavailable. Should it appear from the affidavits of a

party opposing the motion that the party cannot for reasons stated present by

affidavit facts essential to justify the party’s opposition, the court may refuse

the application for judgment or may order a continuance to permit affidavits to be

obtained or depositions to be taken or discovery to be had or may make such other

order as is just.
(Emphasis added.) A motion for a continuance under NRCP 56(f) is appropriate only when the

movant specifically expresses how further discovery will lead to the creation of a genuine issue

of material fact. Bakerink v. Orthopaedic Associates, Ltd., 94 Nev. 428, 431, 581 P.2d 9, 11

(1978) (“Rule 56(f), NRCP, provides that a court may, in its discretion, refuse an application for
summary judgment or order a continuance, ‘[s]hould it appear from the affidavits of a party
opposing the motion that he cannot for reasons stated present by affidavit facts essential to
justify his opposition....” There is nothing in the record before this court which would
support a finding that the district court abused its discretion in this instance. Appellant
made no attempt to identify in his affidavit what facts might be obtained, in addition to
the records, depositions, and affidavits already on file, that were essential to justify his
opposition.”) (emphasis added). In Bakerink, the appellant’s affidavit indicated he needed to
obtain responses to certain interrogatories and take defendants’ depositions, and submitted no
affidavit or other document, outside the general allegations of his pleadings. Id. at 430 and 10-

11. That was not enough, and the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed the summary judgment

11
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order and dismissal of the complaint with prejudice. The affidavit must identify what additional
discovery would enable Plaintiff to oppose the motion. Id.
Rule 56(f) is not a shield that can be raised to block a motion for summary
judgment without even the slightest showing by the opposing party that his
opposition is meritorious. A party invoking its protections must do so in good
faith by affirmatively demonstrating why he cannot respond to a movant's
affidavits as otherwise required by Rule 56(e) and how postponement of a
ruling on the motion will enable him, by discovery or other means, to rebut
the movant's showing of the absence of a genuine issue of fact. Where, as

here, a party fails to carry his burden under Rule S6(f), postponement of a
ruling on a motion for summary judgment is unjustified.

Id. at 431, 11 citing Willmar Poultry Co. v. Morton-Norwich Products, 520 F.2d 289, 297 (8th
Cir. 1975), cert. denied, 424 U.S. 915, 96 S.Ct. 1116, 47 L.Ed.2d 320 (1975) (emphasis added).
The mere fact that additional discovery could be conducted does not preclude the granting of
summary judgment. Rather, this Court has no authority to grant an NRCP 56(f) request if the
party secking such a continuance fails to identify what additional discovery is necessary to
oppose the motion for summary judgment. Moreover, it is not for this Court to speculate about
what evidence a party may or may not discover with additional discovery. It is the
responsibility of the parties to identify what additional facts might be obtained that are

essential to justify opposition. Aviation Ventures, 121 Nev. 113, 118, 110 P.3d 59, 62. The

movant must not only state what specific discovery he wants to undertake, but also what
he expects that discovery to yield that would generate genuine issues of material fact to

defendant summary judgment, NRCP 56(f); Francis v. Wynn Las Vegas, 127 Nev. 657, 669,

262 P.3d 705, 714 (2011). Finally, if the further discovery would be futile, the motion should

be denied. Feliciano v. Am. W. Homes, Inc., 128 Nev. 895, 381 P.3d 611, “Order of

Affirmance”, *2, n. 5. (Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 56012, Jul. 27, 2012) (The plaintiff

“requested the continuance so that she could depose American West's principals in an effort to

12
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uncover evidence supporting her willful-misconduct allegation. Given the unlikelihood that
these depositions would have produced evidence of American West's intent to harm Feliciano,
the district court was within its discretion in determining that a continuance would have
been futile.”)

Plaintiff’s Affidavit and Opposition say nothing about what discovery he needs to do to
oppose the Motion and do not even attempt to identify what specific facts might be obtained
that are essential to justify the opposition to the Motion. Therefore, this Court has no authority
to consider or grant Plaintiffs’ NRCP 56(f) unarticulated request because Plaintiff has failed to
identify what specific facts might be obtained that are essential to justify the opposition, as

required by Aviation Ventures, supra, and what they expect the discovery to yield that would

generate genuine issues of material fact to defendant summary judgment, and this Court cannot
speculate about what evidence they may or may not discover. NRCP 56(f); Francis, supra.
Finally, any discovery on this issue is futile because it will not change the fact that Plaintiff has
a pending Fair Hearing appeal at DFS. Therefore, Plaintiffs’ request should be denied.

It 1s obvious that Plaintiff 1s using this action to conduct discovery in support of his
pending Fair Hearing appeal, including because he filed this action (12/30/16) after he requested
a Fair Hearing or appeal (9/9/15), has delayed the Fair Hearing three times by requesting
continuances and failed to provide DFS with an agreeable date for the Fair Hearing after DFS
twice asked him to do so, and refuses to dismiss this action so he can exhaust his administrative
remedies. Plaintiff’s Witness List for the Fair Hearing and his NRCP 16.1 initial disclosure both
list some of the same witnesses. Nineteen of the thirty-one specifically identified witnesses

listed in Plaintiff’s Witness List for the Fair Hearing (61%) are also on Plaintiff’s NRCP 16.1

13
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38

Imitial Disclosure. Pursuant to Lopez and Allstate Ins. Co., Plaintiff must exhaust his

administrative remedies and, therefore, this action must be dismissed.

Iv.
CONCLUSION

Defendants respectfully request this Court dismiss Plaintiff’s action because Plaintiff has
failed to exhaust his administrative remedies.

DATED this 21* day of August, 2018,

OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY
ANGULO & STOBERSKI

/s/ Felicia Galati, Esq.

FELICIA GALATI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 007341

9950 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129
Attorneys for Defendants
CLARK COUNTY and
GEORGINA STUART

* See Plaintiff’s Fair Hearing Witness List (Exhibit Q); Plaintiff’s Initial Disclosure (Exhibit P),

14
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

On the 21* day of August, 2018, the undersigned, an employee of Olson, Cannon,
Gormley, Angulo & Stoberski, hereby served a true copy of DEFENDANTS CLARK
COUNTY AND GEORGINA STUART’S REPLY TO PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION
MOTION TO DISMISS; AND PLAINTIFF’S “NRCP REQUEST FOR TIME TO
CONDUCT DISCOVERY? to the parties listed below via the EFP Program, pursuant to the
Court’s Electronic Filing Service Order (Administrative Order 14-2) effective June 1, 2014, via
U.S. Mail and via e-mail:
Steve Eggleston
Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Road
Pilton, England, Post Code: ba4 4nx
+44 7801 931682

Theeggmand ! | @gmail.com
Plaintiff in Pro Per

/siJane Hollingsworth

An Employee of Olson, Cannon, Gormley
Angulo & Stoberksi

15
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AFFIDAVIT OF DEVON BUTTS
STATE OF NEVADA )

)} ss:
COUNTY OF CLARK )

DEVON BUTTS, being first duly sworn, deposes and states:

1. 1am employed as a Family Services Supervisor in the Legal Unity of Clark County
Department of Family Services. 1 make this Affidavit in support of Defendants Clark County and
Georgina Stuart’s Reply to Plaintiff’s Opposition to Motion to Dismiss, etc. (“Reply™) in Eggleston
v. Clark County, Case No. A-16-748919-C.

2. On 2/2/15, the Department of Family Services (“DFS”) made a finding of child
maltreatment against Plaintiff. Attached to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit C is a true and correct
copy of the Substantiation Letter sent to Plaintiff with that finding redacted pursuant to NRS
432B.280.

3. On 2/12/15, Plaintiff submitted a request for an appeal of the substantiated finding in care
of his attorney, Ms. McFarling, to the DFS. Attached to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit D is a true
and correct copy of Plaintiff’s Request for Agency Appeal (DFS) of Substantiated Finding(s) of
Abuse and/or Neglect.

4.  On 8/27/15, DFS/the Appeals Unit Manager issued a Finding of Substantiation
upholding the substantiated finding of physical injury neglect — 14 N plausible risk of physical injury
against Plaintiff as to 4 minor children. Attached to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit E is a true and
correct copy of that Finding redacted pursuant to NRS 432B.280.

5. On9/9/15, Plaintiff requested a Fair Hearing or appeal of that decision in care of his
attorney, Ms. McFarling. Attached to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit F is a true and correct copy of
Plaintiff’s Request for Fair Hearing of Agency Decision.

6. The Fair Hearing was originally scheduled for 8/1/17 at Plaintiff’s request, but was
rescheduled for 9/6/17. Attached to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit G and H, respectively, are a true
and correct copy of DFS 5/26/17 letter regarding the 8/1/17 Fair Hearing date and a true and correct

copy of DFS 6/9/17 letter rescheduling that Fair Hearing,
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7.- On 8/2/17, Plaintiff requested a continuance of the 9/6/17 Fair Hearing. Attached
to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit [ is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s 8/2/17 email requesting
that continuance.

8. On 8/18/17, DFS advised Plaintiff the Fair Hearing was reset for 10/24/17.
Attached to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit J is a true and correct copy of DFS 8/18/17
correspondence noticing that Fair Hearing date.

9.  On 10/4/17, Plaintiff requested a second continuance of the 10/24/17 Fair Hearing.
Attached to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit K is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s 10/4/17 email
requesting a second continuance.

10.  On 10/16/17, DFS agreed to a continuance of the 10/24/17 Fair Hearing at Plaintiff’s
request and DFS asked Plaintiff to advise when he could appear for a Fair Hearing so it could be
rescheduled. Attached to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit K is a true and correct copy of DFS 10/16/17
email agreeing to the above continuance and requesting Plaintiff advise when he could appear for the
Fair Hearing so it could be rescheduled.

11.  Thereafter, Plaintiff failed to contact DFS to reset the 10/24/17 Fair Hearing.

12.  On 7/19/18, not having heard from Plaintiff for 9 months, DFS notified Plaintiff of a
new Fair Hearing date set for 9/11/18. Attached to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit L is a true and
correct copy of DFS 7/19/18 correspondence setting the Fair Hearing.

13.  On 7/20/18, Plaintiff requested a third continuance of the 9/11/18 Fair Hearing,
indicating he would be in Washington, D.C. on that date. Attached to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit
M is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff”s 7/20/18 email.

14.  On 7/31/18, DFS corresponded with Plaintiff reminding Plaintiff that the 10/24/17 Fair
Hearing was set for 9/11/18, but continued at his request, and reminding Plaintiff that DFS asked
Plaintiff to advise when he could appear for a Fair Hearing so it could be rescheduled, but he had
failed to do so. Attached to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit N is a true and correct copy of DFS
7/31/18 email regarding the above.

15.  On 8/17/18, DFS again corresponded with Plaintiff and reiterated what was in its prior
7/31/18 correspondence to Plaintiff again reminding Plaintiff that the 10/24/17 Fair Hearing was set

for 9/11/18, but continued at his request, and reminding Plaintiff that DFS asked Plaintiff to advise

20f3
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when he could appear for a Fair Hearing so it could be rescheduled, but he had failed to do so.
Attached to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit O is a true and correct copy of DFS 8/17/18 email
regarding the above,

16.  Attached to Defendant’s Reply as Exhibit Q is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s Fair
Hearing Witness List.

17.  To date, Plaintiff has not provided a date to DFS on which the Fair Hearing can
proceed. Ten months have passed since DFS agreed to Plaintiff’s second request for continuance
of the 10/24/17 Fair Hearing. Notwithstanding DFS’ multiple requests for Plaintiff to provide DFS
a date upon which a Fair Hearing can be rescheduled, Plaintiff has refused to do so. Thus, the Fair
Hearing is still pending at DFS,

18.  This affidavit is made in good faith and not for the purpose of undue advantage.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAITH NAUGHT.

CLARK COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY
SERVICES, ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DIVISION

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to unger penalty of
perjury by Devon Butts on this ay

of August 2018. - ET T R
NOTARY PUBLIC
65\ STATE OF NEVADA
Myu, DL # My Commission Expires: 08-13-19
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for said Corfcate No: 07-4855-1

County and State.

Jof3
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CLARK COUNTY
DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES

121 South Martin Luther King Blvd
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
(702) 455-5444

SUBSTANTIATION LETTER
February 2, 2015
Steven Eggelston

8962 Slippery Rock
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Report Number: 1643346

Dear Mr. Rodriguez:

On December 22, 2014, the Clark County Department of Family Services, Child

Protective Services Division, received a report alleging Physical Injury Neglect
14N Physical Risk of , w ﬁ
u, and Based upon the Division's
investigation of the report, it has been determined there is credible evidence that
Physical Injury Neglect, 14N Physical Risk as defined in NRS 432.B has occurred

and has been substantiated.

Pursuant to NRS 432.B.310, the Division is required to submit identifying data to
the State Central Registry for each investigation substantiated for abuse or neglect
of a child.

If you have any questions about your case, please contact me at 702-455-7906.

Attached is the process you must follow in order to appeal the child maltreatment
finding.

Sincerely,

GEORGINA STUART
Case Manager, Child Protective Services

Certified Mail Tracking Number

DISTRIBUTION:
Original to Client
File

Revised 7/23/10 SAD, 9/29/10 AMJ, 1/16/14 VM,
6/26/14 VM 1of6
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121 South Martin Luther King Blvd
Las Vegas, Nevada §9106
(702) 455-5444

f %ﬁ,} CLARK COUNTY
DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES
v

APPEAL OF SUBSTANTIATED ABUSE AND/OR NEGLECT FINDINGS

Purpose:

The purpose of the appeal process is to afford individuals who have substantiated findings of abuse
and/or neglect against a child(ren) an opportunity to challenge the substantiation by requesting an
administrative review. The right of appeal is required pursuant to federal statute' and the Nevada
Revised Statute (NRS) 432B and Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 432B.170. This requirement is
to afford you a right to due process, which is the right to receive notice of an adverse determination
against you and give you an opportunity to response in an orderly proceeding.

If a substantiated finding(s) of child abuse and/or neglect is reversed following an administrative
appeal, all reference to the perpetrator's identity previously submitted to the Central Registry” is
removed.

An administrative reviewed is not available in cases that have been substantiated by the court
in either a civil or criminal proceeding.

This document explains the procedures followed by Clark County Department of Family Services
(DF3) in carrying out federal and state provisions governing the administrative appeal of
substantiated findings of child abuse and/neglect.

Definitions:

“Abuse or Neglect of a child”*: “Physical or mental injury of a non-accidental nature; sexual abuse
or sexual exploitation; or negligent treatment or maltreatment as set forth in NRS 432B.140 . . .
caused or allowed by a person responsible for his welfare under circumstances which indicate that
the child’'s health or welfare is harmed or threatened with harm.” [Emphasis Added]

Appeal: Means the opportunity afforded to an individual who has a substantiated finding of abuse
and/or neglect documented by an agency which provides child welfare services to challenge such
finding(s).

Central Registry*: The statewide database maintained by the State of Nevada, Division of Child and
Family Services of substantiated reports of child abuse and neglect. Substantiated reports are
retained in the Central Registry until the youngest victim turns 28 years of age if the child’s age at the
time of the report is known; or until the report is 10 years old when the age of the youngest victim is
unknown.

Court Substantiated: A court has found by a preponderance of evidence that the child was in need
of protection due to abuse or neglect following a hearing pursuant to NRS 432B.530.

Substantiated: Means that a report made pursuant to NRS 432B.220 was investigated and that
credible evidence of the abuse or neglect exists (NAC 432B.170(7)(a))

! Federal Child Abuse and Neglect Prevention and Treatment Act (CAPTA), Section 106(b)(2)(A)(xi)(Il)
2 NRS 432B.290 specifies access to the Central Registry
* NRS 432B.020

* NRS 432.0999 to NRS 432.130 inclusive

Revised 7/23/10 SAD, 9/29/10 AMJ, 1/16/14 VM,
6/26/14 VM 20f6
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Procedural Steps:

The administrative appeal process provides one agency appeal (DFS) and an opportunity for the
agency’s final determination to be reviewed by independent Hearing Officer (Fair Hearing). The only
individual(s) that can request an agency appeal and/or a Fair Hearing is the person named in DFS a
substantiated finding(s) of child abuse and/or neglect or in a decision to uphold or overturn such
finding(s). Anyone else requesting reconsideration of DFS’ decision will not be granted a hearing.

An agency appeal andfor a Fair Hearing may involve the review of the case record, investigative
process and DFS’ substantiation criteria. The purpose of these hearings is not to re-investigate the
allegations, but to ensure the appropriateness of substantiated decision

Agency Appeal (DFS)

l. Upon receipt of this Notice of Right of Appeal of Substantiated Investigation you need to
complete the attached Request for Agency (DFS) Appeal of Substantiated Finding(s) of
Abuse and/or Neglect and return it to DFS. You may return it electronically, by fax or
through the United States Postal Service.

. The form must be returned within 15 days after the date on the certified mail receipt
attached to this letter. Failure to return the form within the required time period will result
in your permanently giving up your right of appeal.

1l. DFS will notify you of its receipt of your appeal request and schedule a review of your
case.

V. You have the right to submit any documentation that you believe challenges DFS’
substantiated finding at any time prior to the scheduled review of your case.

V. A committee comprised of DFS management level, supervisory, investigative and quality
assurance staff that has had no direct involvement with the case at the caseworker and/or
supervisory level or the decision to substantiate will review your case. Only the actual file
and any written documentation you submit will be reviewed. No oral testimony will be

heard during the review.

VI, Upon completion of DFS’ review, the substantiated finding(s) will be upheld or overturned
(reversed). You will receive written notification of the determination.

VII. DFS’ decision to uphold or overturn a substantiation is the agency's final determination.
However, if you disagree with DFS’ decision, you may request a Fair Hearing.

Fair Hearing

A Fair Hearing affords an individual who has a substantiated finding(s) of child abuse and/or neglect
upheld by DFS the opportunity to testify on their own behalf and present witnesses and other
evidence in opposition to DFS’ decision.

You have the right to retain and be represented by an attorney at the Fair Hearing. DFS is
represented by the District Attorney at all Fair Hearings and may present witnesses and other
evidence in support of DFS’ decision.

The Fair Hearing officer may uphold or overturn DFS’ decision. The Fair Hearing Officer will inform
you, DFS and District Attorney of the decision in writing. The decision of the Hearing Officer is the
final step in the administrative appeal process.

Revised 7/23/10 SAD, 9/29/10 AMJ, 1/16/14 VM,
6/26/14 VM 3of6
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In order to request a Fair Hearing, you must complete the following:

Vi

VL.

DFS8’ written decision will include a Fair Hearing Request Form. You may request a Fair
Hearing by submitting that form within 15 days after the date on the certified mail receipt
attached to written decision.

Please list the reason(s) why you believe DFS’ decision is incorrect and include any
additional information to your claim.

If there are witnesses that you want to testify at the Fair Hearing, you must submit a
witness list stating their names. If you are planning to question a specific DFS worker(s),
their name(s) must also appear on your witness list.

The DFS will notify you of its receipt of your request and schedule a Fair Hearing.

You will be notified of the date, time and location of the Fair Hearing at least 10 days prior
to the date of the hearing.

If you are unable to appear on the Fair Hearing date you are given, you must submit a
written request to have the hearing rescheduled. Request for rescheduling are not
accepted by telephone.

Following the Fair Hearing, you will receive the Hearing Officer's written decision by
certified mail. Instructions regarding addition actions that you can take for further review of
the decision will be sent together with the decision.

All requests for agency appeals or Fair Hearings must be sent to:

CLARK COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES
121 8. Martin Luther King Blvd., Suite 159
LAS VEGAS, NV. 89106
ATTHN: APPEALS UNIT

You may also send request either electronically to DFSAppeals@ClarkCountyNV.gov or by fax to
702-455-5665

Revised 7/23/10 SAD, 9/29/10 AMJ, 1/18/14 VM,

6/26/14 VM
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DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES

4, 121 South Martin Luther King Blvd
QV'O" Las Vegas, Nevada §9106
(702) 455-5444

ﬁ@?ﬁ CLARK COUNTY

REQUEST FOR AGENCY APPEAL (DFS) OF SUBSTANTIATED
FINDING(S) OF ABUSE AND/OR NEGLECT

Person(s) Requesting Agency Appeal:

(Please Print)

Report Number Listed on Notification Letter:

Case Number Listed on Notification Letter:

Date Listed on Notification Letter:

Address of Person(s) Requesting Fair Hearing:

Phone Number:

Name of Caseworker:

The reasons why you believe the finding(s) of abuse and/or neglect is incorrect:

Additional information to support your claim (additional pages may be attached):

Signature Date

Revised 7/23/10 SAD, 9/29/10 AMJ, 1/16/14 VM,
6/26/14 VM 50f6
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CLARK COUNTY
DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES

121 South Martin Luther King Blvd
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
(702) 455-5444

REQUEST FOR FAIR HEARING OF AGENCY DECISION

Person(s) Requesting Fair Hearing:

(Please Print)

Report Number Listed on Notification Letter:

Case Number listed on Notification Letter:

Date Listed on Notification Letter:

Address of Person(s) Fair Hearing:

Phone Number:

Name of Caseworker:

The reasons why you believe the agency decision is incorrect:

Additional information to support your claim:

Signature Date

Revised 7/23/10 SAD, 9/29/10 AMJ, 1/16/14 VM,
6/26/14 VM 6of6
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FINDING(S) OF ABUSE AND/OR NEGLECT

¥

Person{s) Requesting Agency Appeal; Steven Eggleston
{Please Print}

Report Number Listed on Notification Letter; 1643346
Case Number Listed on Notificition Letter: NA 1272581 (a1

Date Listed on Nofification Letter: February 2, 2015

Address of Person(s) Requesting Fair Hearing: ©/C EmiincFamng: Bsq. 6230°W, Desm: Iur(’ﬁd.
Las Vegas, NV 89146

Phone Number; (702) 565-4335

Name of Caseworker: Georgina Stuart

The reasons why you believe the finding(s) of abuse andlor neglect is incorrect:

I have not neglected or abused my children in any way, and am a fit and proper person to care for them
and have them in my costody. | am employed, and do notuse drugs nor abuse alcohol.
Although my children's mother has used drugs and alcohol in the past few months, 1 never allowed ber

o harm the children,

Additional information to support your claim (additional pages may be attached):
1 understand that sy children's mother may not be 2 Avand proper person to care for our children;

however, 1 do not understand why your findings are againstme,

sl s
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Department of Family Services

15, Marty Luther King Blvd + LLas Vagas NV
Fotl

1 89106- ;{ﬂ
72y 1 B-7200 » Fax {702} 385.2009 » ne (702) 3

9908

Tien Burch ~ lnterim Director
Paula Hammack, Assistant Diregtor « Michae! Knight, Assistant Director

August £7, 218

Emily McFariing, Esa,
8230W. Desert Inn Rd.
a8 Vegas, NV 89146

o

e

Chant: Steven Egoleston

Case No. 1362581
Haport Mo, 1643348

Dear Emily McFarling, Esg.:

The DFS Inte ”xai Agency Appeais Commilies has sxamined the case file, information
fed by you and other pertinent documents related to the above repor.

Please find enclpsed the Review of Record and Finding of Substantiation of Child Abuss

The Parel has UPHELD the ohild "st&lim atrmant findin Ms regarding, your ol
Eggleston. You have 1§ calendar days from the date of the pastmark of this

i wiiting, & Fair Hearing.

Fleass contant the Appeals Unit st 702485-8180 or at DFSAppeals@ClarkCouniviV. aoy F
you have any questions,

9% 7197 9991 7034 ‘EES*}W%:GD

53%@ ¥ Jchnam
On behalf of:
DFS Appeals Unit

Enclosure

Hay servicios grat s de ayuda con otros idiomas. Para pedir un intérprete, llame por favor al
Coordinador de Servicios de Intérpretes al (T02) 6714578

5"5‘:‘9 language assistance services are available. To request an interpreter, please cali the
Language Assistance Uoordinator at (702) 6774578,

276



ces

ly Servi

Department of Fami
Sty « Las Vagas NV 89106-4300
388 - Holling (702} 388-0081

Timothy Burch, Interim Director
Michael Knight, Assistant Divector
Heport # 1643346

Paula Hammack, Assistant Director
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Clark County Department of Family Services

By

Appgals Uit - Manager
Child Welfare Services Division

i SRR
Fage B of 8
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Persan(s) Requesting Fafr Hearing; Steven Epgleston

. (Pleage Print)
Report Number Listed on Notification Letter;_1643346 )

Cass Numbor liated on Notification Lettor: 1362581

Date Listed on Notification Letters 08/27/15
Address of Person(s) Fair Hearing; &/ McFarling Law Group; 6230 W, Desert Inn Rd.

Las Vegas, NV 89146.

Phona Number; 702-565-4335

Name of Caseworker: Georgina Stuart
The reasans why you balieve the agency declsion s incorrect:

The facts do not support the panel's findings.

Additional infonnation to support your claim:
The undersigned intends to call witnesses during the hearing, See witness list attached hereto.

,%/;, /ﬁ% = 3/4,//5

Slgnatdre

CLARK COUNTY - P
DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES SEp 1
121 Sout Mo LiorKing Hivd DFS 2015
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Department of Family Services

121 8, Martin Luther King Bivd » Las Vegas NV BR106-4308
{702) 455-8160 + Fax (702) 455-5665 + Intake (702) 388-0081

Paula Hammack, Acting Director
JHll Marano, Assistant Direstor

T R SR AL O T R TARI G R B TR N OV TARE WG sl

R s N T P R S e S T,

May 26, 2017

fir. Steven Eggleston
Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Road
Pilton, England, post code; bad dnx

Vig E-Muoil theegamuond11@gmail.com

ond Internationol Federal Express

Case No. 1362581
ReportNo. 1643346

DPear Mr. Egplestom

This s a follow up to Ms. Butts' e-mail dated Friday, May 19, 2017, wherein she indicated your Fair
Hearing will have to be rescheduled,

On orabout March 24, 2017, you requested cur Appeals Unlt to schedule your hearing for August 1,
2017 however, our fair hearing officers are not available on August Ist. This will not affect your
“reservation of your rights” as you have indicated in your e-mall dated March 20, 2017,

Be advised that Falr Hearings are scheduled on Tuesday and Wednesdays; and appeliants are not
provided with the opportunity to select their Falr Hearing date; rather, the date [s selected based on
the Fair Hearing Officer availability. As such, your Fair Hearing will be rescheduled around the Fair
Hearing Officer’s availabllity,. We are affording vou the courtesy of selecting from the following
prospective Falr Hearing dates: August 15, 2017, August 16,2017, August 22, 2017, August 29, 2017,
August 30, 2017, September &, 2017, September 32, 2017, September 13, 2017, September 19, 2017,
Septernber 20, 2017 and September 27, 2017,

¥'we do not hear from you by June 8, 2017, we will schedule your Fair Hearlng for the next avallable
date, whichis August 15, 2017,

Sincergly,

teslle Reynolds
CCOFS Appeals Uniit

Hay servicios gratis de ayuda con otros idiomas. Para pedir up intérpretef flame por favoral

Coordinador de Servicios de Intérpretes 2l (J02) 6714578,
Free language assistance services are available, To request an interpreter, please call the Language

Assistance Coordinator at {702) 6714578,
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Department of Family Services

1218 Marlin Luther King Bivd + Las Vegas NV 891064309
{702} 455-8160 + Fax (702} 456-5865 + Intake {702} 308-0081

Paula Hammack, Acting Director
Jilt Marano, Assistant Directar
Eboni Washington, Acting Assistant Director

e * by ‘1‘ ; ',‘:5} i o % o '“?

lune 9, 2017

Mr. Steven Egglaston

Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Rosd
Pilton, England, pest code: bad 4nx
ENGLAND

Case Number: 1362581
Report Number; 1643346

Desr Mr. Egglestan;

The Department has received your written Reguest for FaitHearing of Agency Decdision 35 it pertains
to the sbove«referenced case and report number, inaccordance with NRS 2338, an Appeal Hearing
has been scheduled to review your case on:

Date: _ Wednesday, September 62017
Time: _10:30sm.
Location: 1218 Martin Luther King Blud,las Vegas, NV asxgg’

You may bring witnesses to this Hearing. A written list of witnesses must be submitied to this
department, and received by the undersigned no later than ten working days prior to your Hearing date.
Only witnesses on this list will be pecmitted to appear 45 withesses at the Hearing, We will also provide
you with oar list of witnesses if anyone other than the caseworker will be testifving. Also please note thay
you have the right to legal counsel. DFS does not provide legal counsel for appeliants.

You are required to attend the hearing,  you do not attend the hearing, you abandon vour rights to sn
appeal; and the action of the agency will be implemented.

Should you have any questions, please contact Appeals Unil.at 702-455-B160 or

disappeals@clarkeountynv. gov

Sincerely,

CCDFES Legal Unit Supervisor

Hearing Officer: Christine Xellehsr
Eustriny Attorney: Armity Dosman

Hay servicios gratis de ayuda con otros idiomas. Para pedir ur interprete, llame por favor al
Coordinador de Servicios de interpretes al (702) 6771-4578.

Free language assislance services are available. To reguest an interpreter, please call the
Language Assistance Coordinator at (702) 871-4578.
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S
From Devor Butts
Sent: Friday, August 11, 2017 12201 PM
Yo: Leslie Reynolds
Subject; W Appeal Hearing of Steven Eggleston, Case #: 1362581
Attachments: 2 Continued FH letter DB092017.doc
importance: High
Categories: DEVON

Below is the emall Fsent to My, Eggleston and the date and time il was sent. Please add o niote to the appeals
log that reflects this. {also attached the letter to this email.

| added a cass note in Unity to reflect this.

THANKS!

Devon Butts, Family Services Supervisor

Legal Unit

Depariment of Family Services

121 S. Martin Luther King Bivd, Las Vegas, NV 89106
Office; [702) 455-4638

Fax: {702} 4555665

This-email Is privileged, confidentis! and/or exermpt from disclosure. 1 youare not the Intended reciplent and
disclosure, copying, distribution or use of this email lincluding any rellance therean} is prohibited. If you receive this
emailin error, please immediately cantact the sender and delele the material in its entirety.

Fromy Devon Butls

Sent: Friday, August 11, 2017 1158 AM

Yoy 'Steve Eggleston’

Subject: RE: Appeal Hearing of Steven Eggleston, Case #: 1362581

Mr. Steven Eggleston
Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Road
Bilton, England, post code: bad 4nx

vig E-Mail thegggmend i @amoil.com

ond Internationol Federal Express

Lase No. 1362581
Repori No. 1643346

Dear Mr. Eggleston:

We received your reguest on August 2, 2037 for & continuante on your Fair Hearing schedulad for September 6,
2017 As we indicated in our letter dated May 26, 2017, Falr Hearings are scheduled o Tuesday and

i
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Wednesdays; and appellants are not provided with Lhe apporlunity to select their Fair Hearing date; rather, the
date is selected based on the Fair Hearing Officer’s avatlability. As such, your Fair Hearing will be rescheduled
around the Fair Hearing Officer’s availability. Once we have confirmation of the Fair Hearing date, we wilt
provide that date to you in an e-mail as well as a hard copy letter.

With regard to your toncern regarding nol recelving file materials, please reference the e-mail from June 2,
2017, far the procedure you need to follow to request those materials,

This letter will also be sent via international Federal Express on August 14, 2017.

Sincerely,

Devon Butts, Family Services Supervisor

Legal Unit

Department of Family Services

1215, Martin Luther King Bivd. Las Vegas, NV 85106
Office: {702} 455-4639

Fax: {702} 455.5665

This emnall Is privileged, confidential and/or exemipt from disciosure. if you are nat the intended recipient and
disclosure, copying, distributlon or use of this email (including any reliance thereon) is prohibited. if you receive this
email in error, please immediately contact the sender and delete the material in its entirety,

From: theegamand 1 1 @gmail.com [malite;theegaman4 1l @amail.com) On Behalf Of Steve Eggleston

Sent: Wednesday, August 02, 2017 1:05 PM

To: Devon Butts

Subject: Re: Appeal Hearlng of Steven Eggleston, Case #: 1362581

Hi Ms, Butts! It has come to my attention that an important witness
has an unavoidable conflict on the rescheduled hearing date of
September 6, 2017. Also, there are other circumstances that
preclude me from getting a fair trial on that date. Also, I have yet to
receive any file materials from anyone. Not a single piece of paper
or note as to the basis for the report under issue. Having not
received anything, with the hearing a month away, precludes me
from identifying rebuttal witnesses, etc., and thus further
compromises my ability to receive a fair hearing. My sons, after all,
were abucted to Chicago where they and other witnesses reside.
Rather than detail the other reasons as well, I'd like to request a
rescheduling of the hearing to a later date that avoids these
problems. Can you please provide me with some alternative hearing
dates later in the year? Thank you. Sincerely, Steve Eggleston
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Dej.artment of Fami.y Services

121 S. Martin Luther King Blvd * Las Vegas NV 89106-430¢9
(702) 455-8160 -~ Fax (702) 455-6665 - Intake (702) 399-0081

Paula Hammack, Acting Director
Jill Marano, Assistant Director
Eboni Washinglon, Acting Assistant Director

IR TR M T QI U

August 18, 2017

Mr, Steven Eggleston
Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Road
Pilton, England, post cade: bad 4nx

Via E-Mail theeggman411@gmail.com
and international Federal Express

Case No, 1362581
Repoit No. 1643346

Dear Mr. Eggleston:

The Department has received your written Request for Fair Hearing of Agency Decision as it pertains
to the above-referenced case and report number. in accordance with NRS 233B, an Appeal Hearlng
has been scheduled to review your case on:

Date: Tuesday, October 24, 2017
Time: 10:30 2.m.

Location: _121 S. Martin Luther King Bivd,Las Vegas, NV 89106

You may bring witnesses to this Hearing, A written list of witnesses must be submitted ta this
department, and received by the undersigned no later than ten working days prior tc your Hearing date.
Only withesses on this iist will be permitted to appear as witnesses at the Hearing. We will also provide
you with our list of witnesses if anyone other than the caseworker will be testifying, Also please note that
you have the right to legal counsel, DFS does not provide legai counsel for appelants.

You are required to attend the hearing. If you do not attend the hearing, yau abandon your rights to an
appeal, and the action of the agency will be impiemented.

Should you have any questions, please contact Appeals Unit at 702-455-8160 or
dfsappeals@clarkcountynv.gov

Sincerely,

Leslie Reynolds
Legal Office Specialist
CCDFS Legal Unit/Appeals

CC: Hearlng Officer: Christine Kelleher
District Attorney: Amity Dorman

Hay servicios gratis de ayuda con otros idiomas. Para pedir un intérprete, llame por favor al
Coordinadoer de Servicios de Intérpretes al (702) 6771-4578.

Free language assistance services are available. To request an interpreter, please call the
Language Assistance Coordinator at (702) §71-4578.
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From: DFS Appeals

Sent: Menday, October 16, 2017 1:06 PM \D\\ W\ l,\ W_)\ ke
: 'St Eggleston’
To: ‘Steve Eggleston ﬂ Vot

Subject: RE; Fair Hearing

Mr. Eggleston,

We will agree to a continuance based on your unavailability to leave the country. Please provide proof of
when you will be able to leave the country so we can reschedule the hearing in due course. This hearing will
not be continued until after the conclusian of any pending litigation.

Additionally this will assist in your concerns about the time you need to address the discovery that has been
provided to you and any forthcoming discovery.

Thank you,

Devon Butts, Family Services Supervisor

Legal Unit

Department of Family Services

121S. Martin Luther King Blvd. Las Vegas, NV B9106
Office: (702) 455-4639

Fax: (702) 455.5665

This email is privileged, confidential and/or exempt from disclosure. If you are not the intended recipient and
disclosure, copying, distribution or use of this email {including any retiance thereon) is prohibited. If you receive this
email in error, please immediately contact the sender and delete the material in its entirety,

ggleston [mailto:theeggmand i 1@amail.com]
Wednesday, October 04, 2017 1:49 AM

To: DFS Appeals
Cc: Lisa Callahan
bject: Re: Fair Hearing

© eV

Dear Ms. Reynolds,
I send this email in relation to the upcoming DFS Appeals hearing.

First, to my surprise, British Immigration still has not processed my
Visa Application. During the processing, I am unable to leave
England, where I reside with my British wife, because they keep

my Passport during in-country Visa applications. Thus I must again
ask for the hearing to be continued to a later day.
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Aﬁfccordmgly, I am formally requesting that this hearing be

ontinued until after the resolution of the civil rights lawsuit
currently pending in Clark County District Court, of which I'm sure
you are aware, and until after full documents and witnesses have
been identified, produced and made available,

Please advise.

Sincerely submitted, Steve Eggleston, falsely accused "perpetrator”
and father of [Jjiilj and h

On Fri. Aug 18, 2017 a1 L1251 PM. DFS Appeals <DESAppeatseschurkeommiyny g wraly
Please be advised that your Fair Hearing has been scheduled, Attached Is 2 Notice of Fair Hearing for your reviewand
records. Please mark your calendarand plan to be present. Thank youl

5
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Case No. 1362581
Report No. 1643346

Leslie Reynolds, Legal Office Specialist
Department of Family Services-Legal Unit
121 5. Martin Luther King Dr., Ste. 159
Las Vegas, NV B9106—4309

Office Phone: (702) 455-6920

Fax: {702] 455-5665

Leslie Reynolds@clarkcounlynv.gov

Steve Pggleston, |0, aka The Lipgman

Mobile:

+44 (0)7801031682 (calls from U.S.)
Land: +44 (0)1749899341 (calls from U.S.)

Primary: Lhel gaomand ] e ama,com

Secondan : devefg pamanGilobal.com
www hobedincm, Stevel gplestomiha | byl ganan

Founder/CHQO),
Vg Glabal \erises

Fouwader /61, Lggman Glabal € msulrants
Co-louwnder/7CECY, TECH (ar Humankind
Partner. AR\ Booking Agenay

waw bt dobub.c o

Patebmab . com_ gt dioksg

faoviger.comy b oegiititdobal

Fewmder/€ 100 Lynmaan Glubal Beoks
Nuthor, “Ceomfivted,” a Trip Splanes Novel
2nd Dwhition Sueet Dt 017104160
bomennantob sbadldn ok e

P bb o S pphoaronl epal Hndlers

The Pggman heme Song

Disclnimer: The vontents of this e-mail message ineluding any: attachments thereto may inclnde protected information

that Is the property of EGGMAN GLLOBAL. The informatian is intended for the apecific use of the individual to whom it is

addressed. The addressee and all others with whom the addressee imay share the contents, and for wham the addressee

accepls fll responsibility. are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying. distribution or use of any of the inforimation
&
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vantained in this e-mail is strictly PROBIBITED. The use of this information in Uwe furtherance of an ongoing transaction
ou existing tollaboration agreement with EGGMAN GLOBAL are the only exceptions to this prohibition,
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Department of Family Services

121 8. Mariin Luther King Bivd » Las Vegas NV 88106-4308
(TD2)455-7200 « Fax (702) 385-2998 - Hofline (702) 399-0081

Kevin Schiller, Acting Director
‘Paula Hammack, Assistant Director
Jill Marano, Assistant Direclor
Ebonl Washington, Assistant Director

e
6

July 18, 2018

Mr. Steven Eggleston
Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Road

Pilton, England, post code: bad 4nx
Via E-Mail theeggmand11@gmail.com

and International Federal Express
Case No. 1362581
Report No., 1643348

Dear Mr, Eggleston:

The Department has received your written Requiest for an Administrative Hearing of Agency Decision
as it pertains to the above-referenced case and report number.

Be advised that this Hearing was originally scheduled for August 1, 2017 per your request; which
was rescheduled to September 6, 2017, On August 2, 2017, you requested to continue the
September §, 2017 Hearing. In response thereto, DFS advised you on August 18, 2017, that the
Hearing set for September &, 2017 was scheduled for October 24, 2017, On October 4, 2017, you
advised DFS that you were unable to attend the October 24, 2017 Hearing ahd stated that you were
“formally reguesting that this hearing be continued until after the resolution of the civil rights
fawsiit currently pending in Clark County District Court,.of which I'm sure you are aware, and until
after full documents and witnesses have been identified, produced and made avallable.” On
October 16, 2017, DFS advised vou that "this hearing will not be continued until after the concluslon
of any pending litigation”.

Therefore, in accordance with NRS 2338, an Administrative Hearing has been scheduled to review
your case on;

Date: Tuesday, September 11, 2018
Time: 10:30a.m.
Location: 121 §. Martin Luther King 8lvd,Las Vegas, NV 89106

Your mhay bring witnesses to this Hearing. A written list of witnesses must be submitted to this
department, and received by the undersigned no later than ten working days prior to your Hearing date.
Only witnesses on this list will be permitted to appear as witnesses at the Hearing. 'We will also provide
you with our list of witnesses if anyone other than the caseworker will be testifying. - Also please note that
you have the right to lagal counsel. DFS does nhot provide legal counsel for appellants.

Hay servicios gratis de ayuda con otros idiomas. Para pedir un intérprete, lame por favor al
Coordinador de Servicios de Intérpretes al (702) 6771-4578,

Free language assistance services are available. To request an interpreter, please call the
Language Assistance Coordinator at (702) 671-4578.
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Mr. Steven Eggieston
luly 19, 2018
Page 2

You are required to attend the hearing. 1f you do not attend the hearing, you abandon your rights to an
appeal, and the action of the agency will be Implemented.

Should you have any questions, please contact Appeals Unit at 702-455-8160 or
dfsappeals@clarkcountynv.gov

Sincerely,

W R S

n Butts
CCDFS Legal Unit Supervisor

CC: Hearing OHicer: Christine Kelleher
District Attorney: Amity Dorman
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From: Steve Eggleston

Tos ULeld] <
Subjact: Re: Falr Hearing Notrce for S, Eggleston
Date: Friday, July 20, 2018 11:23:33 AM

Hi Ms. Butts, thank you for your letter. However, I am surprised not to
receive the customary selection of four dates. I have a conflict on
September 11, 2018, as it is the 16th Anniversary of 9/11. My father was
a B-52 Bomber Pilot, I am a graduate of the University of Maryland, and
I have many friends affected. I will be in the Capitol for various events
(Washington D.C.) that day. Please provide me a list of alternate dates,
ideally in early October to prevent other conflicts of which the County is
already aware. Again, thank you. Steve Eggleston

On Thu, Jul 19, 2018 a1 5:19 PM, Devon Butts <StukesDigcelsrkeountyny gov> wrote:
July 19,2018
M. Steven Eggleston
Goose Hall. Bourne Farm, East Town Road

Pilton, England. post codle: bad 4nx

Via E-Mail

LIt H :1 Hilp il.¢

and
Inteimational
Federal
Express

Case No. 1362581

Report No. 1643346

Dear Mr, Eggleston:

The Department has recetved your writien Request lor an Admimiswative Hearing of Ageney
Detision as it pertains to the above-referenced case and report number.

Be advised that this Hearing was ortainally scheduled for August 1. 2017 per your request;
which was rescheduled to September 6, 2017. On August 2, 2017, you requested Lo continue
the September 6. 2017 Hearing. In response thereto, DFS advised you on Augast 18,2017,
that the Hearing set for September 6, 2017 was scheduled for October 24, 2017. On Ociober
4. 2017. you advised DFS that you were unable to allend the October 24, 2017 Hearing and
stated that you were "formally requesting that this hearing be continued uatil atter the
vesolution of the civil rights  lawsuit currently pending in Clark County Diswict Courl. of
which I'm sure you are aware. and until alter (ull documents and witnesses have heen
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identified, produced and made available." On October 16, 2017, DFS advised you that "this
hearing will not be continued umtil after the conelusion of any pending litigation”.

Therefore, in accordance with NRS 233B, an Administrative Hearing has been scheduled to
review your case op!

Date: Tuesday. September 11, 2018
Time: j0:309.m.
Location: 121 S, Martin Luther King Blvd, Las Vegas, NV 89106

You may bring withesses 10 this Hearing., A written list of witnesses must be submitted tu
this department, and received by the undersigtied no later than ten working days prior o
your Fair Hearing date. Only witnesses on this list will be permitted 10 appear as witnesses al
the Hearing. We will also provide you with our list of witnesses if anyone other than the
casewuorker will be testifying. Also please note thal you have the right 1o legal counsel, DFS
does not provide legal counsel for appellants,

You are required to attend the hearing. II'you do not attend the hearing, you abandon your
rights to an appeal. and the action of the agency will be implemented.

Should you have any questions, please contact Appeals Unit at 702-455-8160 or
[ keo MY L0V

Please note a hardeapy letter of the atlached Fair Hearing Notice is being mailed (o you as
well.

Sincerety.

Devon Bults. Family Scrvices Supervisor

Legal Uil

Department of Family Services

2] 8. Martin Luther King Blvd. Las Vegas. NV 89106
Office: (702) 435-463Y

Fax: (702) 455.3665

This cmail is privileged, confidential and/or exempt irom disclosure. If you are not the
intended recipient and disclosure, copying, disiribution or use of this email (including any
relionee thereon) is prohibited. If you receive this email in error. please immediately contac
the sender and delete the material bt its entirety.
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SMoeve Paglesson, LEY Caka The Tiggnan
Mabile: +44 (0)7801931682
| |»[ st |“ Mum'!l[ [REIs

RYTEWE UL (RN TRTTAS gty

Foweer, CROy, bggman Glohal
wwes LopegpaiClolbp] conn
Luvebsgnd vm T il

. ey o LasopanCilols

The Eggman Thenw Sons,
sy omienln vy wnehire - vie RG] Exts

Diseluopses Tl contents of this e-maik sussoge ineloding any apaelisent= theeero by sncludhe prveetad intoenmbion s e proesy
of Steve Feglenten Vi fntormition is intended for the specifie use of the bsdividual b whom itis addressoed. The add ressee and all others
with shenn the idedressee magy slare the contents, amd & whom the iekliessee necepts full responsiliity, sreheeehy netilied it my
linelosee, enprany, diztrilntion or gse of sy of The iformation contained inthis cemnil is sidetly PROHUBUTED. The use of this
mtnrnmiion in e furtbenwee of an onging teansaction oF existing enllaberstion agreement with Steve Faagdestn ave theonly exceptions
tr s peobvibrtio,
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From: Devon Buitts

To: Steve Fogleston”
Subfect: RE: Fair Hearing Notice far S. Eggleston
Date: Tuesday, July 31, 2018 1:30:00 PM

Mr. Egglestan,

Your Fair Hearing was scheduled for September 11, 2018. On October 4, 2017, you requested
a continuance. On October 16, 2017 we advised you that we are agreeable with that and
asked you to provide dates so the Fair Hearing could be reset, but you have failed to do so.
This is your third requast for a continuance. Please provide dates so the Fair Hearing can be
reset. Also, please be advised that we cannot provide legal advice. Thank you.

Devon Butts, Family Services Supervisor

Legat Unit

Department of Famlly Services

121 5. Martin Luther King Blvd. Las Vegas, NV 89106
Office: (702) 455-4639

Fax. (702) 455.5665

This email Is privileged, confidential and/or exempt fram disclosure. If you are not the intended
recipient and disclosure, copying, distribution or use of this email (including any reliance thereon) is
prohibited. if you receive this email in error, please immediately contact the sender and delete the
material In its entlrety,
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From: Qevon Butts

Ta: Steve Eggleston (theegomansd 11 @qmsll.com)
Subject: RE: Fair Hearlng Netice for S, Eggieston
Date: Friday, August 17, 2018 2:13:00 PM

As | stated in my email to you dated 7/31/18, please be advised that your Fair Mearing was scheduled for September
11, 2018. On October 4, 2017, you requested a continuance. On October 16, 2017 we advised you that we are
agreeable with that and asked you to provide dates so the Fair Hearing could be reset, but you have failed to do so.
This is your third request for a continuance. Please provide dates so the Fair Hearing can be reset. Also, please be
advised that we cannot provide you or any other appellant legal advice. Should you seek to speak with the Clark

County Ombudsran, please visit: hitp.//www clarkcountynv. gov/cquntymanager/ombudsman/Pages/default.aspx

Devon 8utts, Family Services Supervisor

Legal Unit

Department of Family Services

121 S. Martin Luther King Blvd. Las Vegas, NV 89106
Dffice: (702) 455-4639

Fax: (702} 455.5665

This email is privileged, confidential and/or exempt from disclosure. If you are not the intended recipient and
disclosure, copying, distribution or use of this-emall {inctuding any reliance therean) is prohibited. If you receive this
email in error, please immediately contact the sender and delete the material in its entirety.
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Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff, In Pro Per
Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Road
Pilton, England, Post Code: ba4 4nx

+44 7801 931682

TheEggmand | | @gmail.com
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
STEVE EGGLESTON,
Plaintiff,
CASE NO. A-16-748919-C
-Vs- DEPT NO. VIII

GEORGINA STUART; DEPARTMENT OF
FAMILY SERVICES, CHILD SUPPORT

SERVICES, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA; Plaintiff’s 16.1(a)(1) Initial Disclosures

LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN CALLAHAN;
AND DOES 1 THROUGH 100, INCLUSIVE,

Defendants.

INITIAL DISCLCSURES — (A) WITNESSES

1.

Steve Eggleston, Goose Hall, Bourne Hall, East Town Lane, Pilton, England ba4

4nx

Dana Amma Day, plaintiff’s wife, c/o plaintiff

Georgina Stuart, c/o defense counsel

Tisa Evans, MEd. Ombudsman for DFS and CCSS, 2432 Martin Luther King
Blvd., North Las Vegas, NV 89032, Phone 702-455-1046, Toll free: 1-866-780-
9541, Fax: 702-868-2344

Timothy Burch, Interim Director DFS, same

Paula Hammack, Assistant Director DFS, same

PAGE 10F 13
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7. Michael Knight, Assistant Director DFS, same

8. Mari D, Parlade, Esq., Appeals Unit — Manager, same

9. Officer Dinkelk, 223 Lead St., Henderson, NV 89015

10. Officer Chris Trzaska, same

11, Janet Wagner, CPS Intake Worker, c/o defense counsel

12. Leroy Avaya, name appearing in Fair Hearing File, address unknown
13. Sheri Hensel, Sr. Family Services Specialist, c/o defense counsel

14, Vicki Hammond, Family Services Assistant, c/o defense counsel

15. Ga-Nesha Hamilton, Family Services Spec II, c/o defense counsel!
16, Nadine Lazarre-Nelson, Office Specialist, c/o defense counsel

17. Boys Town atiendants at Meeting of 12/31/14, persormel involved with family

and custodian of records of Boys Town, names and addresses currently unknown

18. Mary Atteberry or Ateberry, Family Services Specialist Supervisor, c/o defense

counsel
19, Sharon Savage, DFS south office, c/o defense counsel
20. Clint Holder, DFS south office, c¢/o defense counsel

21. Shelly, Social worker Sunrise Hospital, 3186 S Maryland Pkwy, Las Vegas, NV

PAGE2OF 13

Egglestan v, Stuart - Case Number; A-16-748915-C

316




10
11
12
13
14
15
18
17
18
18
20
21
22
23
24
25
28
27

28

89109, 702-731-8000

22. Mathew Forrey, Henderson PD, 223 Lead St., Henderson, NV 89015, 702-267,

5000
23. Gina Pearl, CPS Intake Worker, ¢/o defense counsel

24, Custodian of Records, American Toxicology, person or persons able to establish
admissibility of Steve Eggleston test results, 3160 W. Sahara Ave,, Las Vegas,

NV 89102, 702-248-2800

25, Custodian of Records DFS, CPS, Clark County, Mohave Mental Health Safety
Services personnel involved with family and custodian of records, ¢/o defense

cotmsel
26. Lisa Callahan; defendant, 300 Ashley Dr., New Lenox, 1L 60451, 815-685-0625
27. Brian Callahan, defendant, same

28. James Radriguez, ex-husband of Laura Rodriguez, last known address, 5775,

Connecticut Street, Merrillville, IN 46410

29, Laura Battistella, homeless, address and phone unknown

30. R o Caliahans
. /o Callahans

32, Alexis Rodriguez, Chicago area, 708-296-5983
33, Selena Rodriguez, ¢/o Callahans, 815-685-0007

PAGE3 OF 13
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34, . /o Callahans
35. B .. /o Callahans

36. Ken Battistella, Sr., Ozarks; 702-400-2515

37. Bonnie Wojdyla, Ozarks, 702-575-9999

38, Cindy Landeen, 651-343-4747, Minneapolis, MN
39, John Neyer, 252-717-0683, Atlanta, GA

40, Jay Warsinke, Burbank, CA 818-503-1836

41, John and Shirley (neighbors), last name to be provided, 8989 Slippery Rock Way,

Las Vegas, NV 89123
42, Jon Gordon, Rancho Mirage, Califorpia, 760-409-8122.

43, Peg Kasterg, 720-498-3374, 4595 Balsam Street, Wheat Ridge, CO 80033

44. Kyle Kastberg, Las Vegas, NV

45. Sunrise Hospital Custodian of Records, 3186 S Maryland Pkwy, Las Vegas, NV
89109, 702-731-8000

46, Nicole Mcintyre-Hoggard, Clark County Intake Worker, c/o defense counsel

47. Danni Ear} Smith, Las Vegas, 702-612-6780
48. Diane Kallay (witness to Il falling in pool), 716-909-2646

49, Steve Thompson, 774-449-8410, 15 Hillbrook Drive, West Brookfield, MA
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50. Bobby Ferreri, 702-596-3219, 2495 Village View Drive, Henderson, NV 89074
51, Vince Casas, 702-407-5956, last known address same as Ferreri

52. Sheri Hensel, Sr, Family Services Specialist

53. Emily McFarling, Esq, 6230 WE. Desert Inn Rd., Las Vegas, NV 89146

54, Witnesses pertinent to Clark County DHS’s history of malfeasance in matters of

children protection and DFS/CPS churning.

5. [T ! SIS, <choo! teachers

56. All the children’s paediatricians, doctors and GPs

57. Brian Knaff (arranged for Mayor to propose to Laura), 702-256-9811, 7335 Edna,

Las Vegas, NV 89117

58. Shea Arender, 318-282-4532, 2700 South, Las Vegas Bivd,, Las Vegas NV 89109

59. Jay Gabriel Cavazos, 313-355-9376, Detroit, Ml

60. Retired Judge Gerald Bakarich, Sacramento, California

61. Duncan Faurer, Los Angeles, 702-234-7906

62, Jan LaBuda, Florida, 352-422-7393

63. James Grover, Los Angeles, CA, 310-591-6207
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64. Helga White, 530-885-4433, 310, Bridgeview Dr., Auburn, CA 95603

65. Kevin Barker, Clyde, North Carolina, 828-348-0405

66. Officer Charles Yannis, P# 6024
Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department
400 S, Martin Luther King Boulevard
Las Vegas, NV 89106
702-828-3111

Officer Yannis is expected to testify regarding his knowledge of the incident that

occurred on January 7, 2017 regarding the guardianship of the Eggleston Boys.

67. Officer Armando Leija, (Retired) P# 2020
Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department
400 S. Martin Luther King Boulevard
Las Vegas, NV 89106
702-828-3111

Officer Leija is expected to testify regarding his knowledge of the incident that occurred

on January 7, 2017 regarding the guardianship of the Eggleston Boys.

68. Chief of Police Tom Sulley
Orland Hills Police Department
16039 S. 94" Ave,

Orland Hills, IL 60487
708-349-3132

Chief Sulley is expected to testify regarding his knowledge of the weifare check he

performed at the Callahan home in January, 2015.

69. Peggy Johnson
Legal Office Assistant 11
Department of Family Services
c/o Ofelia L. Monje
Clark County District Attorney’s Office - Civil Division
500 Grand Central Parkway, 5th Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89155
Phone 702-455-4761

70. Lisa Gibson
Family Services Supervisor
Department of Family Services
c/o Ofelia L. Monje
Clark County District Attorney’s Office - Civil Division
500 Grand Central Parkway, 5th Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89155
PAGE6QOF 13
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Phone 702-455-4761
71. Lisa McKay
Family Services Manager
Department of Family Services
c/o Ofelia L. Monje
Clark County District Attorney's Office - Civil Division
500 Grand Central Parkway, Sth Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89155
Phone 702-455-4761
72. Emily Smith, Social Enterprise Attorney, Civil Legal Corps, 847-906-8317
All of these witnesses are expected to testify as to their knowledge of the incident, due
process violations, plaintiff’s fitness as a parent, plaintiff’s damages, the failure of any
government agency anywhere to seek to unify or reunify the family, Laura Rodriguez’s post-
partum depression or related illness, or plaintiff’s earning capacity, diligence, education, work
ethic, love of his children, general capability or particular capability in raising his sons, and

rebuttal to the horrific actions taken and words spoken by defendants and to an assertion that

there was any justification to taking Eggleston’s sons.

INITIAL DISCLOSURES - (B), DOCUMENTS ET AL.
1. Emails by and between plaintiff and others about the boys, custody, abduction,

defamation, intentional infliction, and damages.

2. Links to plaintiff’s online presence as impacts all issues in the case, including photos

and videos of the boys:
a. SteveEgglestonWrites.com
b. EggmanGlobal.com
c. Linkedln.com/SteveEgglestonakaTheEggman
d. Facebook.com/TheEggman411
PAGE 7OF 13
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¢. Facebook.com/EggmanGlobal

f. TheFoodMafiaBook.com

g Upwork: hitpsi//www.upwork.com/fl/stevesgglestonTviewMode=1

h. All plaintiff and plaintiff-related websites, social media

. Plaintiff’s Writing Portfolio

. Appellant DFS Fair Hearing Exhibits

. Select Legal Materials filed in Rodriguez v. Rodriguez, Clark County District Court,

Case No. D-10-424066-D, including particularly Order Resolving Child-Custody

Issues

. Select Legal Materials filed in In Re Marriage of James Rodriguez v, Laura

Rodriguez, Lake Circait Court, Crown Point, Indiana, Case No. 43C01 -0911-DR-

961

. Select Legal Materials filed in Eggleston vs. Battistella, Clark County District Court,

Case No. D-15-508989-P, in particular granting patéraity and custody.

. The unsigned Guardianship Document.

. Select Legal Materials in In Re the Matter of iRkl - B cEr i

Will County Circuit, Case No. 15 P 231

10. Select Materials re Child Welfare Obligations, Department of Health and Human

Services, Child Welfare Presentation, February 2017,
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11, Universal Declaration of Human Rights relative to families, parents and children.

12, The Complaint in Clark v. Guinn, United States District Court, District of Nevada,

Case No. 2:06-cv-01068-RCI-RI1J.

13. The Grand Jury Complaint filed against Child Protective Services, dated June 16,

2011, and responses thereto and findings and reports issued.
14. Death and family threat emails,

15, Redacted bank statements showing income and expenses for purpeses of calculating

damages and all other documents supporting plaintiff’s income loss claims,

16, Documents o Transparent Nevada showing overtime pay of defendant Georgina

Stuart and other Clark County Employees to establish chirning among other things
17. All Will County Guardianship Records re plaintiff’s sons and the Rodriguez children|

18. All Will County lllinois Records pertaining to the In Re [NSRGRIRE guardianship

‘case of any matter regarding plaintiff's sons.
19, Emails showing abuse, harassments, and threats committed by James Rodriguez, Sr.
20, Documents re Lisa Callahan's Abandonment of hér mother, Kathleen Baitistella

21. FBI Records regarding abduction and kidnapping in family and family custody

matters.

All of Plaintiff's books, articles and materials written, both published and unpublished, subject to
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appropriate protective orders and NDAs, showing his capability, income, income potential, etc.

22. All photos, images, videos and the like of the Eggleston-Rodriguez-Battistella family,

including but not limited to those of plaintiff with his sons and the children

INITIAL DISCLOSURES - (C) COMPUTATION BY CATEGORIES OF DAMAGES

Computations by Category of Damages:

1. Lepgal Actions {Attorney’s Fees, Expert Fees, Litigation éxpenses. travel,
accommodations, etc.)

a. Past Attorney's Fees and Related Expenses:

a. Clark County Custody and Paternity Action {Eggleston v. Rodriguez) and

related matters: approximately $5,000, for Emily McFarling law firm.

b. Will County Guardianship Proceedings: estimate $2,000, includes legal fees,

filing fees, and travel expense.
b. Future Attorney’s Fees and Related Court Costs, Travel, Expert Witness Expenses:

a. Current civil rights action: estimated $500,000, includes legal fees; court
expenses; depositions and deposition transcript fees; expert witnesses; lay

witness-related fees for travel, meals, and accommodations to testify at trial,

b. Callahan Enforcement of Judgement action in Will County, IL (default or
otherwise) and/or other places of residence: estimated $45,000 legal fees,

filing fees, travel, meals and accommeodations.
c. Defending and appealing “Fair Hearing” as regards Plaintiff and the boys'
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rights: $100,000.

. Nevada State and/or Federal action(s) to enjoin/address unconstitutionality

and due process violations of Clark County “Fair” Hearing process, including
but not limited to: violation of plaintiff’s parental, family, due process, and

related rights, as to himself, his sons, and/or their natural mother,

. Will County Guardianship Proceedings: $250,000, includes ongoing legal

fees, filing fees, and travel expenses.

Indiana State and/or Federal action(s) to deter unconstitutionality and
violation of Will County Guardianship process, including but not limited to;
vialation of plaintiff’s parental, family, due process, and related rights, as to

himself, his sons, and/or their natural mother: $250,000.

Immigration legal fees, travel, accommodation, for Plaintiff’s wife and step-
children to live in America should the Will County and/or other U.S, court
refuse to allow Plaintiff to move the boys to England or outside the U.S.:

$50,000.

2. Mental Health, Psychiatric, Psychologist, Family Transition, Therapy and Related

Expenses for Kidnapping/Abduction of Plaintiff’s sons for ali family members impacted:

a. Family Transition and Re-unification: Twice yearly for family at $4,000 per day
for four days until last child reaches 25: $4,000 x 4 = $16,000 x 2= $32,000 x 20
= $640,000 + twice annual expenses to California facility of average 6 people
flying from England (6 x $600 = $3600 x 20 = $72,000) + 20 vears x 2 @ $1,000

per trip = $40,000. Total combined approximately: $1,464,000.
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b. Ongoing annual therapy sessions (psychology/psychiatric) for
kidnapping/abduction specialist for two adults and average 4 children (total 6) x
$250 per session = $1500 x 24 (2 sessions for month) = $36,000 per year x 20

years = $720,000.

3. Plaintiff Income Loss:

a. Past:

i. laoterference with Plaintiff’s writing and consulting career: $150,000.

ii. Lost book royalties; $50,000.

iii. Lost artist management, booking, and consulting fees: $150,000.

b. Future:

i. Interference with Plaintiff’s writing and consulting career: $100,000 x 5

years = $500,000 assuming litigation is oyer in five years.

ii. $100,000+ per year if litigation continues in Nevada and/or Will County.

iii. Lost of brand and good will Eggman Global: $500,000.

4. Past and Future Bodily injury: $1 million (assuming lifespan of 87 years).

5. Past and Future Mental and Emotion Distress: $50 million (assuming lifespan of 87

years).

6. Past and Future Damage to Reputation: $50 million {(assuming lifespan of 87 years).
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7. Visitation costs to America/Indiana, including travel, sccommeodations, au pair, living
expenses until boys turn 18: estimated 3 visits for one month each for total 3 months per

year for 13 years of 5 people (2 adults and 3 children), roughly $25,000 per year x 13

years = $325,000,

INITIAL DISCLOSURES — (D) INSURANCE

Inapplicable.

Dated:

By:

Steve Eggleston, plaintiff

Goose Hall, Bourne Farm

East Town Lane, Pilton bad4nx
+44 7801 931682

Email; TheEggmand41 | @gmail.com
PLAINTIFF, IN PRO PER
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171 10 Carol Greco, (B32) 444-7756, Lafayette, LA
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Report Number: 1643346
Case No.: 1362581
TEVEN EG S W IST

The following withesses may e called upon fo give testimony in the above captiongd

case:
{. Steve Eggleston, o/ MoFarling Law Group, 5230 W Desert Inn Road, Las Vegas, NV

| 89146, 702-565-4335

2. Georgina Stuart, CPS Case worker

3. Emily McFarling, Esq., 6230 W Desert Inn Rd, Las Vegas, NV 89146, 702-565-4335
4, 'Dan Smith, Las Vegas, NV, 592 Over Par Coust, 89148, (702) 612-6780

5. Diane Kallay, 5805 Count Fleet Steeet Las Vegas, NV, 89113; 716-909-2646

6. Michael Bates, 423 Stonehouse De, Napa, CA 94558, 707-287-7084

7. Leslie Bates, 15256 Poppy Meadow 5t.,, Santa Clarita, CA 91387, 818-679-7878
8. Karen Olsen, 1839 N, Contmerce Dr., Nixa MO 65714, Phone: 417-725-0055

9. Marc Brattin, 702-994-5840, 3476 Bearpin Gap Lane, LV, NV 89129

i1, Shea Arender, 318-282-4532, 119 Afion Way, Clinton, MS 392056

12, Hovig Abajian, (514) 889-3434, Toronlo, Canada

13. Damon Elliott, Las Yegas, NV, 310-990-9263

14. Kip Kelly, Las Vegas, NV, (702) 5753514

15, Steve Thompson, 508-410-9228, 15 Hillbrook Drive, West Brookfield, MA 01585
16. Bobby Perrerl; 702-596-3219, 2495 Village View Dr., Henderson, NV 89074

17, Vince Casas, 702.407.5956, 2459 Village View Dr,, Henderson NV 89074

18, Laura Battistella, Las Vegas, NV, 720-468-1978

19, Ken Battistella, Se., Dzarks, 702-400-2515
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20. Ken Battistells, Jr,, Las Vegas and Chicago, 1L, (702) 465-3129

21, Bonnie Wojdyla, Ozarks 702-575-5999,

22, Peg Kastberg, 720) 498-3374, 4595 Balsam Street, Wheat Ridge, CO 80033

23, Dana Amma Day, Goose Hall, Bourne Fanm, East Town Lane, Pilton, Somerset UK,
011 44 7742 449395

24, Peter Miller, (954) 448-2671, P.O. Box 669238, Pompanoc Beach FL 33066

25. Cindy Landeen, 651-343-4747, Minnespolis, MN

26. James Grover, Orange County, CA, 310-591-6207

27. Rodney Omanoff, New York, MY, 310-413-5043

28. Paul Aratow, Studic City, CA, 323-363:6376

29. John Neyer, (254) 717-0683, 7418 East Helm Dr., Scottsdale, AZ 85260

30. lay Warsinke, Burbank, CA, 818-505-1836

31, John and Shirley (last name fo be provided), 8989 Slippery Rock Way, Las Vepas, NV
89123,

32. All the people who attended the CPS meetings af the home from which the children
were removed from,

33, All the Individuals who sccompanied Georgina Stuart when the children were
removed from their paremts’ home; including the two policemen;

34, All police officers who have responded to calls at the home from which the children

were removed.
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Electronically Filed
9/7/12018 4:22 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CC}EE1
FELICIA GALATI, ESQ, &"’4 )

Nevada Bar No, 007341

OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY
ANGULQO & STOBERSK]

9950 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, NV 89129

Phone: 702-384-4012

Fax: 702-383-0701
fgalati@ocgas.com

Attomeys for Defendants
CLARK COUNTY and GEORGINA STUART

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVE EGGLESTON, CASE NO. A-16-748919-C
DEPT. NO. VIII
Plaintiff,
V.,

GEORGINA STUART; CLARK COUNTY,
NEVADA; LISA CALLAHAN, BRIAN
CALLAHAN; AND DOES 1 THROUGH 100,
INCLUSIVE,

Defendants.

ORDER ON CLARK COUNTY AND GEORGINA STUART'S MOTION TO
DISMISS

On August 28, 2018, this Court conducted a scheduled hearing on Clark County

and Georgina Stuart’s Motion to Dismiss filed July 24, 2018, Plaintifl’ was present
representing himself in Proper Person. Clark County and Georgina Stuart were
represented by their attorney, Peter M. Angulo, Esq. of the law firm of Olson, Cannon,
Gormley, Angulo & Stoberski. Having read the submitted filing relative to the Motion to

Dismiss and in consideration of the oral arpuments made by the parties, the Court hereby

s Yotuntary Bismissat s
Ay fu
} .2'.;-‘ |‘n_vmu 1y v Disinigsat £ Sﬁ;mtafigj ,h?fﬁvan;t
! i &umlliama BHsrtssat | O3 Default Sudpment
: W M?mn 10 Cistniss ty Deft(y) [ udgment of Arhitmimnl ("/9,

Case Number: A-16-748919-C
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Clark County and Georgina Stuart’s Motion to Dismiss, without prejudice, and

makes the following findings of fact and conclusions of law in support thereof:

10.
11.
12.
13,

FINDINGS OF FACT

On Avwosr 10, 2017, Plaintiff filed a First Amended Complaint for civil rights
violations, child abduction, conspiracy and defamation;

The Complaint alleges Defendants Clark County and Georgina Stuart, based on an
investigation, determined he, along with his wife, had an unsafe environment for
their children;

On January 7, 2015, Plaintift sipned a Temporary Guardianship surrendering
custody of his children to Lisa and Brian Callahan;

Thereafter, the Callahans removed the children from the State of Nevada;

On February 2, 2015, the Department of Family Services made a finding of child
maltreatment against Plaintiff;

On February 12, 2015, Plaintiff appealed the substantiated finding to the
Department of Family Services;

On August 27, 2015, the Appeals Unit Manager for the Department of Family
Services issued a {inding-upholding the substantiated findings of physical injury
neglect-14 N plausible risk of physical injury against Plaintiff as to four minor
children;

On September 9, 2015, Plainti{f requested a Fair Hearing to appeal that decision;
That hearing was originally scheduled to take place-at Plaintiff’s request-on August
1, 2017, but was rescheduled for 9/6/17;

On August 2, 2017, Plaintiff requested a continuance of the hearing;

Accordingly, the hearing was reset for October 24, 2017;

On Qctober 4, 2617, Plaintiff requested a second continpance of the hearing;

On Ocrober 16, 2017, the Department of Family Services agreed to a continuance
of the hearing and asked Plaintiff to advise when he could appear so it could be

rescheduled;

Eos
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14.

15.

16,
17.

20.

21

22.

23,

24.

Plaintiff failed 1o subsequently contact the Department of Family Services to reset
the hearing;

On July 19, 2018, having not heard from Plaintiff for several months, the
Department of Family Services notified Plaintiff of a4 new Fair Hearing date set for
September 11, 2018;

On July 20, 2018, Plaintiff requested a third continuance of the hearing;

As of the date of the Motion to Dismiss being filed, the Fair Hearing has not been

rescheduled due to Plaintiff not providing available dates;

. The administrative procedure set forth above-up to and including the provision of a

Fair Hearing is required pursuant to the Federal Child Abuse and Neglect
Prevention and Treatment Act (CAPTA), Section 106(bY2HAXXIX11), NRS 432B
and Nevada Administrative Code 432B.170;

. The purpose behind this administrative structure is to afford Plaintiff a right to due

process, which is “the right to receive notice of an adverse determination against
[him] and give [him] an opportunity to respond in an orderly proceeding;™

The review process involves an agency appeal (which has already been utilized by
the Plainti{T in this matier) and a Fair Hearing proceeding;

NRE 432B.317 requires the conclusion of a Fair Hearing before any judicial review
can take place;

Plaintiff”s constitutional claims set forth in the First Amended Complaint, assert his
children were removed from his custody and care without due process of law,
Accordingly, the constitutional claim is a Procedural Due Process Claim;

For reasons set forth in the conclusions of law, Plaintiff’s conspiracy claim is
dependent upon the procedural due process claim as a necessary predicate.
Accordingly, the two are inextricably intertwined;

The remaining claims by Plaintiff are based on assertions of damage arising from

the decision by the Department of Family Services set forth above;
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! 25. By statute, the Fair Hearing officer may uphold or overturn the decision by the
2 Depariment of Family Services;
3 26, Plaintiff has the opportunity at the Fair Hearing to be represented by counsel;
1 27. At the Fair Hearing, witnesses and other evidence in support of the decision or in
> contradiction thereto can be presented; and
6 28. As indicated above, Plaintiff has availed himself of this administrative process to
7 challenge the decision of the Department of Family Services. The procedure has
8 not been completed at the present time,
9 CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
10 Predicated upon the foregoing facts, the following is an explication of the relevant
L iaw in this area upon which this Court relies in reaching its decision:
12 1. A person who has entered an adminisirative proceeding must exhaust their
13 administrative remedies before proceeding in District Court. The failure to do
4 so renders the controversy non-justiciable. Lopez v. Nevada Dept. of
15 Corrections, 127 Nev. 1156, 373 P.3d 937 *1 (2011) (citing Allstate Ins. Co. v,
16 Thorpe, 123 Nev. 565, 571, 170 P.3d 989, 993 (2007));
17 2. The purpose for requiring exhaustion of administrative remedies is (1) to
18 protect the administrative agency’s authority by giving it an opportunity to
12 correct its own mistakes before it is brought into Court and (2) it promotes
3y efficiency Id.;
21 3. In this matter, Plaintiff has asserted a claim under 42 U.5.C. §1983. Generally
42 speaking, exhaustion of remedies is not required for most Section 1983 claims.
23 Patsy v. Board of Repents of Florida, 457 U.S. 496, 516 {1982),
24 4. In the unique case of a Procedural Due Process claim, however, the litigant
25 asserting a property or a liberty inferest violation without due process must first
20 exhaust state remedies before filing suit. Morgan v. Gonzales, 495 F.3d 1084,
2 1090 n.2 (9”‘ Cir, 2007); Barron v, Asheroft, 358 F.3d 674, 678 (9'“ Cir. 2004).
28 See also Rathien v. Litchfield, 878 F.2d 836, 839-40 (5" Cir, 1989) (“No denial
4
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17

18

19

of procedural due process occurs where a person has faited to utilize the state
procedures available to him™);
The rule recognizes a State must have the opportunity to remedy the procedural
failings of its subdivision and agencies in an appropriate forum before being
subjected to a claim alleging such a violation. Thus, if adequate state remedies
were available but Plaintiff failed to iake advantage of them, Plaintiff cannot
present a claim the State failed to provide him with due process. Cotton v.
Jackson, 216 ¥.3d 1328, 1331 (11% Cir. 2000);

To assert a Section 1983 conspiracy claim, there must be evidence of an

underlying constitutional violation. Radcliffe v, Rainbow_ Construction Co.,

254 E.3df 772, 783 (9™ Cir. 2011). Since the Court has concluded the
Procedural Due Process claims is unripe, the conspiracy claim is also
dismissed;

Although this Motion was brought mitially under NRCP 12(b)(5), it is, in
essence, an NRCP 12(c) motion. The difference between the two is simply one
of timing. The standard of proof and consideration for ruling on the Motions
are identical and, therefore, Plaintiff®s argument that this Motion is untimely is
not well taken;

Plaintitf has placed a request before the Court for additional time to conduet
discovery. However, he failed to establish proper grounds for a continuance.
Under NRCP 56(1), a party is required to submit affidavits opposing the Motion

which clearly indicates that one cannot-for the reason stated-present facts

essential to justify the opposition. Bakerink v. Orthopaedic Associates, Ltd., 94
Nev. 428, 431, 581 P.2d 9, 11 (1978). In this matter, Plaintiff’ has not made
such an argument nor has he provided the appropriate affidavit detailing what
facts would be necessary to meaningfully oppose the Motion to Dismiss.

Accordingly, the request is not granied,
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9.

10.

1.

Plaintiff"s argument that Ms, Hammack’s affidavit cannot be utilized because
she was not disclosed by Defendants is equally unavailing. The evidence
before the Court indicates-and Plaintiff did not disagree-that Ms. Hammack was
identified by Plaintiff himsel{ in an early case disclosure filed in April of 2018.
Accordingly, her identity has been known to Plaintiff since then and there is no
unfair or undue surprise in utilizing an affidavit from this witness;

Based on the forepoing, this Court grants the Motion to Dismiss without
prejudice. It is the Court’s impression that the federal procedural due process
claim is unnipe at the present time because the administrative process has not
beenn completed. Furthermore, the state law claims are predicated on the
substantiated findings by the Department of Family Services and, thercfore, are
also premature at this point until the administrative process has been completed,
and

Not only is the litigation prematurely brought, the Court believes there is also a

basis for administrative abstention under the Buford v. Sun Oil Co., 319 U.S.

315 (1943). The Court further {inds there is no reason to allow further

discovery on the matter as it has sufficient facts before it to render its decision.

IT IS HEREBY QRDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, the Motion to

6
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Dismiss is granted. This litigation is dismissed, without prejudice, until such time

as Plaintif’s Fair Hearing is concluded and an allowed judicial review is

exhausted. ‘
DATED this ég day of September, 2018. /
1\«’
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
S

SUBMITTED BY:
OLSON, CANNGON, GORMLEY,

eyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, [Nevada 89129
Attornéys Tor Defendant

CLARK COUNTY and GEORGINA STUART
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Electronically Filed
9/10/2018 3:21 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERS OF THE 6025

FELICIA GALATI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 007341

OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY
ANGULO & STOBERSEKI

9950 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, NV 89129

Phone: 702-384-4012

Fax: 702-383-0701
foalatilocgas.com

Attorneys for Defendants
CLARK COUNTY and GEORGINA STUART

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASE NO. A-16-748919-C
DEPT. NO. VilI

STEVE EGGLESTON,

Plaintiff,
v,
GEORGINA STUART; CLARK COUNTY,
NEVADA; LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN

CALLAHAN; AND DOES 1 THROUGH 100,
INCLUSIVE,

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

Defendants.

1
I
H
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Case Number: A-16-748919-C
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NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Order on Clark County and Georgina
Stuart’s Motion to Dismiss was entered with the Court on September 7, 2018, a copy of
which is attached hereto.

DATED this 10" day of September, 2018.

OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY
ANGULO & STOBERSKI

/s/ Felicia Galati, Esq.

FELICIA GALATI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 007341

9950 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129
Attorneys for Defendants
CLARK COUNTY and
GEORGINA STUART
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

On the 10™ day of September, 2018, the undersigned, an employee of Olson,
Cannon, Gormley, Angulo & Stoberski, hereby served a true copy of NOTICE OF
ENTRY OF ORDER to the parties listed below via the EFP Program, pursuant to the
Court’s Electronic Filing Service Order (Administrative Order 14-2) effective June 1,
2014, and or mailed:

Steve Eggleston

Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Road
Piiton, England, Post Code: ba4 4nx

+44 7801 931682

Theegemandl ] @gmail.com
Plaintiff in Pro Per

Cindee /ledn/ 1wt

An Employee of Olson, Cannon, Gormley
Angulo & Stoberksi
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Elactronically Filed
92018 4:22 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERYK OF THE COUEE
FRLICIA GALATI, ESO, (%"‘ e

Nevada Bar No, 00734]

QLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY
ANGULO & STOBERSK]

9950 West Cheyenne Avenue
l.as Vegas, NV 89129

Phone: 702-384-4012

Fax: 702-383-0701

Attormeys for Defendants
CLARK COUNTY and GEORGINA STUART

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVE EGGLESTON, CASE NO., A-10-748919-C
REPT. NO. VIl
Plaintiff,
v,

GEORGINA STUART, CLARK COUNTY,
NEVADA,; LISA CALLAMAN; BRIAN
CALLAHAN; AND DOES 1 THROUGH 100,
INCLUSIVE,

Defendants.

ORDER ON CLARK COUNTY AND GRORGINA STUART'S MOTION TO
DISMISS
On Aungust 28, 2018, this Court conducted a scheduled hearing on Clark County

and Ceorgina Stuar’s Motion to Dismiss filed July 24, 2018, Plaintiff’ was present
representing himeelf in Proper Person. Clark County and Georgina Stuart were
represented by their atiorney, Peter M. Angulo, Esq, of the law firm of Olson, Cannon,
CGormiey, Angulo & Stoberski. Having read the submitted filing relative to the Motion to

Dismiss and in consideration of the oral arguments made by the parties, the Court hereby

i_ffi Votuotary Dissnissal Fisum
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Case Number: A-16-748919-C
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1 grants Clark County and Georgina Stuart’s Motion to Dismiss, without prejudice, and
% || makes the following findings of fact and conclusions of law in support thereof:
* FINDINGS OF FACT
-»g‘g"j 1. On Auwwsr 10, 2017, Plaintiff filed a First Amended Complaint for ¢ivil rights
> violations, child abduction, conspiracy and defamation;
6 2. The Complaint alleges Defendants Clark County and Georgina Stuart, based on an
7 investigation, determined he, along with his wife, had an unsafle environment for
g their children;
9 3. On January 7, 2015, Plaintiff signed a Temporary Guardianship surrendering
10 custody of his children to Lisa and Brian Callahan;
11 4, Thereafter, the Callahans removed the children from the State of Nevada;
a 5. On February 2, 2015, the Department of Family Services made a finding of child
13 maltreatment against Plaintiff;
1 6. On February 12, 2015, Plaintiff appealed the substantiated finding to the
13 Department of Family Services;
16 7. On August 27, 2015, the Appeals Unit Manager for the Department of Family
17 Services issued a finding-upholding the substantiated {indings of physical injury
18 neglect-14 N plausible risk of physical injury against Plaintiff as to four minor
19 children;
20 8. On September 9, 2015, Plaintiff requested a Fair Hearing to appeal that decision;
21 9. 'That hearing was originally scheduled to take place-at Plainti{f’s request-on August
22 1, 2017, but was rescheduled for 9/6/17,
23 10. On August 2, 2017, Plaintiff requested a continuance of the hearing;
24 11. Accordingly, the hearing was reset for Qctober 24, 2017;
23 12. On October 4, 2017, Plaintiff requested a second continuance of the hearing;
26 13. On October 16, 2017, the Department of Family Services agreed 1o a conlinuance
27 of the hearing and asked Plaintiff to advise when he could appear so it could be
28 rescheduled,
2

342




far (fffrer of
OLSOX, CANNON, GORMLEY, ANGULD & STOBERSH!

z

A
=% Gl
ggﬂs:
E;%LE
E“’Z‘H
é&sﬂ
27
&

LT iga-4g)2

8

9

10

12

13

14

15

16

20

26

27

28

i4.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19,

20.

21,

22,

24,

Plaintiff failed to subsequently contact the Department of Family Services 10 reset
the hearing;

On July 19, 2018, having not heard from Plaintiff for several months, the
Department of Family Services notified Plaintifl of a2 new Fair Hearing date set for
September 11, 2018;

On July 20, 2018, Plaintiff requested a third continuance of the hearing;

As of the date of the Motion to Dismiss being filed, the Fair Hearing has not been
rescheduled due to Plaintiff not providing available dates;

The administrative procedure set forth above-up to and including the provision of a
Fair Hearing is required pursuani to the Federal Child Abuse and Neglect
Prevention and Treatment Act (CAPTA), Section 106(b)(2)(A)(xi)(11), NRS 432B
and Nevada Administrative Code 432B.170;

The purpose behind this administrative structure is to afford Plaintiff a right to due
process, which is “the right 1o receive notice of an adverse determination against
[him] and give [him] an opportunity to respond in an orderly proceeding;”

The review process involves an agency appeal (which has already been utilized by
the Plaintiff in this matier) and a Fair Hearing proceeding;

NRS 432B.317 requires the conclusion of a Fair Hearing before any judicial review
can take place;

Plaintiff’s constitutional claims set forth in the First Amended Complaint, assert his
children were removed from his custody and care without due process of law.

Accordingly, the constitutional claim is a Procedural Due Process Claim;

. For reasons set forth in the conclusions of law, Plaintiff’s conspiracy claim is

dependent upon the procedural due process claim as a necessary predicate.
Accordingly, the two are inextricably intertwined;
The remaining claims by Plaintiff arc based on assertions of damage arising from

the decision by the Department of Family Services set forth above;
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25. By statute, the Fair Hearing officer may uphold or overturn the decision by the
Department of Family Services;

26. Plaintiff has the opportunity at the Fair Hearing to be represented by counsel;

27. At the Fair Hearing, witnesses and other evidence in support of the decision or in
contradiction thereto can be presented; and

28. As indicated above, Plaintiff has availed himself of this administrative process to
challenge the decision of the Department of Family Services. The procedure has
not heen completed at the present time.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Predicated upon the foregoing facts, the following is an explication of the relevant

law in this area upon which this Court relies in reaching its decision:

1. A person who has entered an administrative proceeding must exhaust their
administrative remedics before proceeding in District Court, The failure to do

so renders the controversy non-justiciable, Lopez v. Nevada Dept. of

Thorpe, 123 Nev. 565, 571, 170 P.3d 989, 993 (2007));

2. The purpose for requiring exhaustion of administrative remedies is (1) to
protect the administrative agency’s authority by giving it an opportunity to
correct its own mistakes before it is brought into Court and (2) it promotes
efficiency Id.;

3. In this matter, Plaintiff has asserted a claim under 42 U.8.C, §1983. Generally

speaking, exhaustion of remedies is not required for most Section 1983 claims.

4. In the unique case of a Procedural Due Process claim, however, the litigant
asserting a property or a liberty interest violation without due process must first
exhaust state remedies before filing suit. Morgan v, Gonzales, 495 F.3d 1084,
1090 n.2 (9™ Cir, 2007); Barron v. Asherofl, 358 F.3d 674, 678 (9™ Cir, 2004).
See also Rathien v, Litchfield, 878 F.2d 836, 839-40 (5" Cir. 1989) (“No denial
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of procedural due process occurs where a person has failed to utilize the state
procedures available to him™),
The rule recognizes a State must have the opportunity to remedy the procedural
failings of its subdivision and agencies in an appropriate forum before being
subjected to a claim alleging such a violation. Thus, if adequate state remedies
were available but Plaintif! failed to take advantage of them, Plaintiff cannot
present a claim the State failed to provide him with due process. Cotton v,
Jackson, 216 F.3d 1328, 1331 (11™ Cir. 2000);

To assert a Section 1983 conspiracy claim, there must be evidence of an

underlying constitutional violation. Radeliffe v. Rainbow Construction Co.

254 EJ3df 772, 783 (9™ Cir. 2011). Since the Court has concluded the
Procedural Due Process claims is unripe, the conspiracy claim is also
dismissed;

Although this Motion was brought initially under NRCP 12(b)(5), it is, in
essence, an NRCP 12(c) motion. The difference between the two is simply one
of timing. The standard of proof and consideration for ruling on the Motions
are identical and, therefore, Plaintiff’s argument that this Motion is untimely is
not well taken;

Plaintiff has placed a request before the Court for additional time to conduct
discovery. However, he failed to establish proper grounds for a continuance.
Under NRCP 56(f), a party is required to submit affidavits opposing the Motion
which clearly indicates that one cannot-for the reason stated-present facts

» 94

Nev. 428, 431, 581 P.2d 9, 11 (1978). In thus matter, Plaintiff has not made
such an argument nor has he provided the appropriate affidavit detailing what
facts would be necessary to meaningfully oppose the Motion to Dismiss.

Accordingly, the request is not granted,
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10.

11.

Plaintiff’s argument that Ms. Hammack’s affidavit cannot be utilized because
she was not disclosed by Defendants is equally unavailing. The evidence
before the Court indicates-and Plaintift did not disagree-that Ms, Hammack was
identified by Plaintiff himself in an carly case disclosure filed in April of 2018.
Accordingly, her identity has been known to Plaintiff since then and there is no
unfair or undue surprise in utilizing an affidavit from this witness;

Based on the foregoing, this Court grants the Motion to Dismiss without
prejudice, It is the Court’s impression that the federal procedural due process
claim is unripe at the present time becanse the administrative process has not
beent completed,  Furthermore, the state law claims are predicated on the
substantiated findings by the Department of Family Services and, therefore, are
also premature at this point until the administrative process has been completed;
and

Not only is the litigation prematurely brought, the Court believes there is also a

basis for administrative abstention under the Buford v. Sun Oil Co., 319 U.S.

315 (1943). The Court further finds there is no reason to allow further

discovery on the matter as it has sufficicnt facts before it to render its decision.

IT I8 HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, the Motion to
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Dismiss is granted. This litigation is dismissed, without prejudice, until such time
as Plaintiff’s Fair Hearing is concluded and an allowed judicial review is
exhausted.

DATED this (2 day of September, 2018.

£
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

oy

SUBMITTED BY:
OL ‘SON CANNON; GORMLIEY,

{3 NGULé ESQ.
eyenne Avenue
Las Vegak,;Nevada 89129
Attorneys Tor Defendani
CLARK COUNTY and GEORGINA STUART
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Electronically Filed
9/10/2018 3:39 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CO
FELICIA GALATI, ESQ. w ﬂ'ﬁ*

Nevada Bar No. 007341

OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY
ANGULO & STOBERSKI

9950 West Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas, NV 89129

Phone: 702-384-4012

Fax:  702-383-0701
fealati@ocgas.com

Attorneys for Defendants
CLARK COUNTY and GEORGINA STUART

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVE EGGLESTON, CASE NO. A-16-748919-C
DEPT. NO, VIil
Plaintiff,
V.
GEORGINA STUART; CLARK COUNTY, CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE OF
NEVADA; LISA CALLAFAN; BRIAN ORDER ON CLARK COUNTY AND
CALLAHAN; AND DOES I THROUGH 100, | GEORGINA STUART’S MOTION TO
INCLUSIVE, DISMISS
Defendants.
!
/1
I/
H
1
!
1!

Case Number: A-16-748919-C
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

On the 10" day of September, 2018, the undersigned, an employee of Olson,
Cannon, Gormley, Angulo & Stoberski, hereby served a true copy of ORDER ON
CLARK COUNTY AND GEORGINA STUART'S MOTION TO DISMISS to the
parties listed below via the EFP Program, pursuant to the Court’s Electronic Filing Service
Order {(Administrative Order 14-2) effective June 1, 2014, and or mailed:
Steve Eggleston
Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Road
Pilton, England, Post Code: ba4 4nx

+44 7801 931682
Theeggmand 1 1 wgmatl.com

Plaintiff in Pro Per

/szia{f(\ Ve /(f/f//w/t

An Employee of Olson, Cannon, Gormil e
Angulo & Stoberksi

-w.,__
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FELICIA GALATI, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No. 007341

OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY
ANGULO & STOBERSK!

9950 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, NV 89129

Phone: 702-384-4012

Fax: 702-383-0701
{galati@locgas.com

Attomeys for Defendants
CLARK COUNTY and GEORGINA §TUART

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

DEPT, NO. VIII

Electronlcatly FHed
QTIANG 4:22 PM
Staven D, Griarson

CLEHE OF THE CUU;E’

STEVE EGGLESTON, CASE NO. A-16-748919-C
Plaintiff,
Y,

GEORGINA STUART; CLARK COUNTY,
NEVADA; LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN
CALLAHAN: AND DOES 1 THROUGH 100,
INCLUSIVE,

Defendants.

ORDER ON CLARK COUNTY AND GEORGINA STUART’'S MOTION TO

DISMISS

On Auwgust 28, 2018, this Court conducted a scheduled hearing on Clark County

and Ceorgina Stuarl’s Motion to Dismiss filed July 24, 2018,

Plaintifl' was present

representing himself in Proper Person. Clark County and Georgina Stuart were

represented by their attorney, Peter M. Angulo, Esq. of the law firm of Olson, Cannon,

Gormley, Angulo & Stoberski. Having read the submitted filing relative to the Motion to

Dismiss and in consideration of the oral arguments made by the parties, the Court hereby

U Voluntary Dismilssal L) Summary fedgmant
L vatuntary Dlsmissa £ Stiputatad hudgment
£ Supulated Bismissal [ Derfatlt fudgmoend
¢ M biation co Disemiss ny Def(s) | [ udgment of Atbitrotion] Al

1

Case Number: A-16-748819-C
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Clark County and Georgina Stuwart’s Motion to Dismiss, without prejudice, and

makes the following findings of fact and conclusions of law in support thereof:

b

6.

10.
11
12,

FINDINGS OF FACT

On Avewsr 10, 2017, Plaintiff filed a First Amended Complaint for civil rights
violations, child abduction, conspiracy and defamation;

The Complaint alleges Defendants Clark County and Georgina Stuart, based on an
investigation, determined he, along with his wife, had an unsafe environment for
their children;

On January 7, 2015, Plaintifl signed a Temporary Guardianship surrendering
custody of his children to Lisa and Brian Callahan;

Thereafter, the Callahans removed the children from the State of Nevada;

On February 2, 2015, the Departraent of Family Services made a finding of child
maltreatment against Plaintiff,

On February 12, 20153, Plaintiff appealed the substantiated finding to the
Department of Family Services;

On August 27, 2015, the Appeals Unit Manager for the Department of Family
Services issued a finding-upholding the substantiated findings of physical injury
neglect-14 N plausible risk of physical injury against Plaintiff as to fowr minor
children;

On September 9, 2015, Plaintiff requested a Fair Hearing to appeal that decision,
That hearing was originally scheduled to take place-at Plaintiff’s request-on August
I, 2017, but was rescheduled for 9/6/17,

On August 2, 2017, Plaintiff requested a continuance of the hearing;

Accordingly, the hearing was reset for October 24, 2017,

On Qctober 4, 2017, Plaintiff requested a second continuance of the hearing;

. On October 16, 2017, the Department of Family Services agreed to a continuance

of the hearing and asked Plaintiff to advise when he could appear so it could be

rescheduled;
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14.

Plaintiff failed to subsequently contact the Department of Family Services to reset

the hearing;

.On July 19, 2018, having not heard from Plaintiff’ for several months, the

16.

17

‘

18.

19,

20.

21.

P
fa]

23

Pepartment of Family Services notified Plaintift of a new Fair Hearing date set for
September 11, 2018;

On July 20, 2018, Plaintiff requested a third continuance of the hearing;

As of the date of the Motion to Dismiss being filed, the Fair Hearing has not been
rescheduled due to Plaintiff not providing available dates;

The administrative procedure set forth above-up to and including the provision of a
Fair Mearing is required pursuamt to the Federal Child Abuse and Neglect
Prevention and Treatment Act (CAPTA), Section 106(0} 2 A1), NRS 4328
and Nevada Administrative Code 432B.170;

The purpose behind this administrative structure s 1o alford Plaintiff a right fo due
process, which is “the right to receive notice of an adverse determination against
[him] and give [him} an opportunity to respond in an orderly proceeding;”

The review process invelves an agency appeal {which has already been utilized by
the Plaintiff in this matter) and a Fair Hearing proceeding;

NRS 432B.317 requires the conclusion of a Fair Hearing before any judicial review

can take place;

. Plaintiff's constitutional ¢laims set forth in the First Amended Complaint, assert hig

24,

children were removed from his custody and care without due process of law.
Accordingly, the constitutional claim is a Procedural Due Process Claim;

For reasons set forth in the conclusions of law, Plaintiff’s conspiracy claim is
dependent upon the procedural due process claim as a necessary predicate.
Accordingly, the two are tnextricably intertwined;

The remaining claims by Plaintiff are based on assertions of damage arising from

the decision by the Department of Family Services set forth above,
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25. By statute, the Fair Hearing officer may uphold or overturn the decision by the

Department of Family Services;

26. Plaintiff has the opportunity at the Fair Hearing to be represented by ¢counsel;

27. At the Fair Hearing, witnesses and other evidence in support of the decision or in

contradiction thereto can be presented; and

28. As indicated above, Plaintiff has availed himself of this administrative process to

challenge the decision of the Department of Family Services. The procedure has

not been completed at the present time.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Predicated upon the foregoing facts, the following is an explication of the relevant

faw in this area upon which this Courl relies in reaching its decision:

I.

A person who has entered an administrative proceeding must exhaust their
administrative remedies before proceeding in District Court. The failure to do
so renders the controversy non-justiciable. Lopez v. Nevada Dept. of

Corrections, 127 Nev, 1156, 373 P.3d 937 *1 (2011) (citing Allstate Ins. Co. v,

The purpose for reguiring exhaustion ol administrative remedies is (1) to
protect the administrative agency’s authority by giving it an opportunity to
correct its own mistakes before it is brought into Court and (2) it promotes
efficiency Id.;

In this matter, Plaintiff has asserted a claim under 42 U.S8.C. §1983. Generally
speaking, exhaustion of remedies is not required for most Section 1983 claims,
Patsy v. Board of Regents of Florida, 457 U.5. 496, 516 (1982);

in the unique case of a Procedural Due Process claim, however, the litigant

asserting a property or a liberty interest violation without due process must first
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of procedural due process accurs where a person has fatled to utilize the state
procedures available to him™);
The rule recognizes a State must have the opportunity 1o remedy the procedural
failings of its subdivision and agencies in an appropriale forum before being
subjected to a claim alleging such a violation. Thus, if adequate state remedies
were available but Plaintiff failed to take advantage of them, Plaintiff cannot
present a claim the State failed to provide him with due process. Colton v,
Jackson, 216 F.3d 1328, 1331 (11% Cir. 2000);

To assert a Section 1983 conspiracy claim, there must be evidence of an

underlying constitutional violation. Radcliffe v. Rainbow Construction Co.,

254 F.3df 772, 783 (9" Cir. 2011). Since the Courl has concluded the
Procedural Due Process claims is unripe, the conspiracy claim is also
dismissed;

Although this Motion was brought initially under NRCP 12(b)(5), it is, in
essence, an NRCP 12(c) motion. The difference between the two is simply one
of timing. The standard of proof and consideration for ruling on the Motions
are identical and, therefore, Plaintiff"s argument that this Motion is untimely is
not well taken;

Plaintiff has placed a request before the Court for additional time to conduct
discovery. However, he failed to establish proper grounds for a continuance,
Under NRCP 56(f), a party is required to submit affidavits opposing the Motion
which clearly indicates that one cannoi-for the reason stated-present facts
Nev. 428, 431, 581 P.2d 9, 11 (1978). In this matter, Plaintif! has not made
such an argument nor has he provided the appropriate affidavit detailing what
facts would be necessary to meaningfully oppose the Motion to Dismiss.

Accordingly, the request is not granted;
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9.

10.

1L

Plaintiff’s argument that Ms. Hammack’s affidavit cannot be wtilized because
she was not disclosed by Defendants is equally unavailing. The evidence
before the Couwrt indicates-and Plaintiff did not disagree-that Ms. Hammack was
identified by Plaintiff himsel{ in an ¢arly case disclosure filed in April of 2018,
Accordingly, her identity has been known to Plaintif since then and there is no
unfair or undue surprise in wtilizing an affidavit from this witness;

Based on the foregoing, this Cowrt grants the Motion to Dismiss without
prejudice. It is the Court’s impression that the federal procedural due process
claim is unripe at the present time because the administrative process has not
been completed. Furthermore, the state law claims are predicated on the
substantiated findings by the Department of Family Services and, therefore, are
also premature at this point until the administrative process has been completed;
and

Not only is the litigation prematurely brought, the Court believes there is also a
315 (1943). The Court further finds there is no reason to allow further

discovery on the matter as it has sufficient facts before it to render its decision.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, the Motion to

6
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Dismiss is granted. This litigation is dismissed, without prejudice, until such time
as Plaintiff’s Fair Hearing is concluded and an allowed judicial review is
exhausted,

DATED this (2 day of September, 2018.

oy
I
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

5

SUBMITTED BY:
OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY,
ANGUKO)& ST 5

/ PETER

/9950 W/ Cheyenne Avenue
Las Ve ag Nevada 89129
Attorneys Tor Defendant
CLARK COUNTY and GEORGINA STUART
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Electronically File
9/20/2018 3:03 PM
Steven D. Grierso

Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff, In Pro Per CLERK OF THE Cp g
Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Road '

Pilton, England, Post Code: ba4 4nx
UK: +44 7801 931682

US: (760) 464-9496

TheEggman4 1 1(@gmail.com

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVE EGGLESTON,

Plaintiff,
CASE NO. A-16-748919-C
-Vvs- DEPT NO. VIII
GEORGINA STUART; DEPARTMENT OF
FAMILY SERVICES, CHILD SUPPORT

SERVICES, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA; REQUEST FOR TELEPHONIC
LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN CALLAHAN; APPEARANCE AT HEARING BY
AND DOES 1 THROUGH 100, INCLUSIVE, PLAINTIFF

Defendants.

MOTION TO RECONSIDER DEFENDANTS® MOTION TO DISMISS AND 9/7/18
ORDER OF DISMISSAL WITHOUT PREJUDICE BASED FAILURE TO EXHAUST
ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES

COMES NOW Plaintiff Steve Eggleston and, pursuant to Rule 2.24 of the Eighth Judicial
Court Rules, and hereby moves this Court to reconsider the Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss and
9/7/18 Order entered thereon (“the County defendants™), on the grounds the Order was in error
and that allegations, facts, and law not previously considered by the Court compel
reconsideration and denial of the Motion to Dismiss. This Motion is based upon the papets,
pleadings and records on file herein, the attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and

such oral argument, evidence, and testimony as the Court may entertain.

Page 1 of 37

Case Number: A-16-748919-C
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NOTICE OF MOTION
TO: Defendants Georgina Stuart and Clark County

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will bring the foregoing Motion to

Reconsider on for hearing before the above-entitled Court, in Department VIII, at the Regional

In Chambers
Justice Center, Las Vegas, Nevada, on the 22 day of October, 2018, :

or as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard.
DATED this 20" day of September, 2018.

Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff, In Pro Per

/s/ Steve Eggleston

Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff, In Pro Per
Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Road
Pilton, England, Post Code: ba4 4nx

UK: +44 7801 931682

US: (760) 464-9496

TheEggman4 | | (@gmail.com

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS
PlaintifP's Motion should be granted for the following reasons:

1. This Motion presents new law and facts not previously considered by the Court given (a)
the narrowness of the single issue presented by Defendants’” Motion to Dismiss, and (b)
new facts asserted and arguments made by Defendants in their Reply, and (c) the legal
authorities relied upon by the Court in its Order of Dismissal, most of which were not
cited by, discussed, or argued by Defendants in their Motion, their Reply, and/or at the

hearing.

Page 2 of 37
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. The Findings of Fact recited in the Court’s 9/7/18 Order do not construe the factual and

legal allegations of the First Amended Complaint (FAC) in a manner most favorably to

Plaintiff, giving him the benefit of all inferences, so as to uphold Plaintiff’s claims.

. There is a material factual question as to whether the County Defendants abandoned,

waived, and/or are estopped from asserting the Fair Hearing process as an administrative
prerequisite to bringing the present action, requiring denial of the Motion to Dismiss

and/or further discovery.

. The “Fair Hearing” process does not provide any relevant or adequate remedy to the

disposition of the key claims presented by the FAC, making it an unnecessary exercise in

futility and not warranting exhaustion.

. Plaintiff’s procedural due process claim exists separate and apart from the Fair Hearing

Process, involve questions of constitutionality not within the jurisdiction of the DFS, and

therefore override any assertion of administrative exhaustion.

. Plaintiff’s substantive due process claims are not the same as Plaintiff’s procedural due

process claims, nor derivative thereof, and therefore override any assertion of

administrative exhaustion.

. Plaintiff’s intentional tort claims based on abduction, conspiracy to abduct, and

defamation exist separate and apart from the “Fair Hearing” process and therefore

override any assertion of administrative exhaustion.

. Further discovery is warranted since there is a reasonable probability, in light of the

record, that further triable issues of material fact will be discovered that preciude
dismissal.

IL

PLAINTIFF’S FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT AND PERTINENT PROCEDURAL

HISTORY CONSTRUED FAVORABLY TO PLAINTIFF

Page 3 of 37
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In the morning of December 22, 2014, Laura Battistella suffered an episode of
postpartum depression, expressing suicidal ideation to her oldest daughter Alexis in the upstairs
bedroom. [FAC, P 7.] Plaintiff Steve Eggleston was working in his downstairs office, and the
four young children (two from Laura’s previous marriége, two with Plaintiff) were playing.
Christmas was a few days away. After 911 was called, the EMT took Laura to Monte Vista
Hospital, where sadly she was admitted for observation.

A former law school Valedictorian and law professor, Plaintiff was then an adjunct
professor at two Clark County colleges, a published author, and active in the Las Vegas
entertainment scene. At that time, he managed 7x Grammy-winning producer Steve Thomas, and
formerly managed Michael Grimm, 2010 winner of America’s Got Talent (who had a residency
at Caesars). The previous month he had released his first fiction legal thriller, “Conflicted,” to
some critical acclaim (his first book being “Labor and Employment in California: A Guide to
Employment Laws, Regulations, and Practices).

Plaintiff was not an ex-felon, drug addict, criminal, or unstable person so common in
matters involving Child Protective Services. There was never any suggestion he had an overall
inability to provide for his children’s physical, mental, or emotional health and development. At
all times, he was a fit parent and fully capable of taking care of and raising his sons. [P, 12.]

On Christmas Eve, Clark County CPS agent and Defendant Georgina Stuart visited
Plaintiff’s house. She represented it was routine to investigate whenever a mother with children
was admitted at Monte Vista for observation. No suggestion of any kind was made that any of
the children were in any kind of danger, that there had been any abuse or neglect or any of the
children, that Plaintiff was being investigated as being abusive or neglectful, or that he had ever
been or was unfit to have custody over and raise his sons. [P 13.]

Plaintiff informed Stuart he did not smoke, drink alcohol, or take any drugs, prescription
or otherwise, which was confirmed by tests taken for both colleges where he worked and a test

he later took at Stuart’s request. Plaintiff informed Defendant Stuart that, in light of the
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circumstances and since Laura’s older children were at home, he felt he had no choice but to take
his two sons from the house and move. This was admitted by Defendants in Answer to Plaintiff’s
First Amended Complaint. [Answer to FAC, VIII, 3:4-5.]

Defendant Stuart replied by telling Plaintiff to think of all of the children and to please
stay. She recommended a newly-funded program with Boys Town that was starting at the first of
the year, representing Plaintiff's family would be the first admitted to the program. When
Plaintiff hesitated, Defendant Stuart offered to pay their January rent. Plaintiff agreed to
participate in the program to keep the family together. This is documented by Plaintiff's
concurrent emails to Defendant Stuart, quoted verbatim. [P 22, 23.]

On that day, however, something wasn’t right. Clearly Defendant Stuart’s behavior was
off. Being the day before Christmas, Plaintiff thought she might be intoxicated, perhaps from too
much holiday libation. Stuart’s “interview” of Plaintiff lasted about fifteen minutes with her
scribbling notes the whole time, never once suggesting that Plaintiff was doing anything wrong.
In fact, just the opposite. She told him “good job, hang in there,” or words to that effect.

In anticipation of Laura’s release from the Hospital, Defendant Stuart appointed Plaintiff
and Laura’s oldest two daughters to a “Present Danger Plan.” This Plan essentially affirmed
Stuart’s conclusion Plaintiff was a fit parent who could be entrusted with the children and
required that the children not be left unsupervised with Laura. Importantly, as of this time, no
claim of endangerment of the children had ever been suggested to Plaintiff, much less discussed.

Thereafter, Boys Town visited the house, everyone met, and Defendant Stuart announced
that Plaintiff’s family had been officially accepted into the program, representing specially to
Plaintiff that she had full authority to make that commitment because Plaintiff expressly told her
he was relying on her. [P 18, 19.] A time was firmly set for January 6, 2015, after the new year,
for the Boys Town team to come to the house and for the program to begin. Plaintiff sent several

emails confirming this, as set forth verbatim in the FAC. [P 22-24.]

Page 5 of 37

361



10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

On January 6, 2015, Boys Town was scheduled to show at the house to commence the
program. Instead, Defendant Stuart, Laura’s sister, Defendant Lisa Callahan, and two policemen
stormed the house with the police wearing highly visible, HIP-holster guns, demanding Plaintiff
sign over temporary guardianship of his sons to Callahan and her husband (the Callahan
defendants), or never see his sons again. [P 26.]

Overwhelmed, Plaintiff signed the form under coercion after calling his partner’s cousin,
a Las Vega family law attorney, Emily McFarling, Esq., who was at lunchy She spoke to Stuart
briefly and requested Plaintiff’s sons be given to Plaintiff, but was told they would be returned to
him in several days. Though he signed the paper, Plaintiff exclaimed loudly that he was being
coerced and objected to the whole fraudulent enterprise, verbally revoking the document minutes
after he signed it, and threatening to call the FBL if his sons were removed from the state and not
immediately returned to him. [P 26. McFarling affidavit, Request for Judicial Notice, Will
County, [llinois District Court, Case No. 2015P 000231, In the Matter of the Estate of Ryder
Eggleston, filed in opposition to Motion to Dismiss. ]

Plaintiff would soon learn that Defendant Stuart and Callahan had coordinated the
ambush and abduction of his sons. Plaintiff had been lied to by Stuart, induced not to take his
sons and leave, and now his sons were gone. With the complicity and active assistance of Stuart,
Lisa Callahan fled the state to Illinois. Contrary to Nevada law and the federal constitution, no
hearing of any kind was held before the taking of the children, despite there being no emergency
of any kind. Were it anyone but the County, Plaintiff was told an Amber Alert would have been
issued.

Plaintiff hired Attorney McFarling to find out what happened. She called Stuart from her
office with the phone on speaker while Plaintiff listened. Stuart expressly affirmed there was no
claim of abuse or endangerment against Plaintiff and the file would be closed as to him. She also

stated, “I have no objection to Plaintiff taking custody of his sons.” (P 26(p).)
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A week or so later, on February 2, 2015, Plaintiff filed for Paternity, Custody, and Child
Support for his sons, and notified the County. [(Request for Judicial Notice, Eggleston v.
Battestella, Clark County Case # D-15-508989-P.]

The same day, in direct contradiction to Stuart’s express representations, Plaintiff
received a so-called “Substantiation Letter” directed (oddly) to Laura’s ex-husband, “Mr.
Rodriguez.” (Rodriguez was her former married name.) The error immediately caused Plaintiff
to think of Stuart’s bizzare behavior at his house on Christmas Eve. Though it was specious, the
Letter did not claim or assert or find that Plaintiff was unfit. Indeed, it did not address fitness or
custody at all.

Highly notable is the Appeal Notice that accompanied the Substantiation Letter. It
expressly described the only remedy available on the appeal as follows: “If a substantiated
finding(s) of child abuse or neglect is reversed following an administrative appeal, all reference
to the perpetrator’s identity previously submitted to the Central Registry [citing NRS 432B.290]
is removed.” No other remedy was provided. No civil fine, no damages, no determination of
constitutionality, and no custody considerations would be made.

Registry removal was the sole remedy available, a matter not involved in the instant case.
Moreover, the Letter expressly stated in bold black letters: “An administrative reviewed [sic] is
not available in cases that have been substantiated by the court in either a civil or a
criminal proceeding.” To repeat: Clark County’s own document, from the Department of
Family Services, specified in the “Purpose” of the appeal that the administrative review process
was not exclusive as to criminal or civil proceedings, and was not available “in cases that have
been substantiated by the court...in...a civil...proceeding.” The purpose served by the appeal
was to provide a remedy should a person want their name removed from the UNIFY reporting

system. Nothing more.
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On February 18, 2015, Plaintiff formally revoked the temporary Guardianship he had
previously revoked verbally and in repeated emails where he demanded the return of his sons,
and sent notice to the Caltahans. (P 26(q).)

On June 29, 20135, the Nevada District Court substantiated Plaintiff’s assertion that he
was fit and should be awarded custody of the children: “ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND
DECREED that Plaintiff Steve Eggleston is fit and proper to be designated sole legal and
physical custodian of the minor children... [his sons].” [(Request for Judicial Notice,
Eggleston v. Battistella, Clark County Case # D-15-508989-P.]

The Decree further stated: “That pursuant to NRS 125.510(6) the Parties are hereby put
on notice of the following: PENALTY FOR VIOLATION OF ORDER: THE ABDUCTION,
CONCEALMENT OR DETENTION OF A CHILD IN VIOLATION OF THIS ORDER IS
PUNISHABLE AS A CATEGORY ‘D’ FELONY AS PROVIDED IN NRS 193.130, NRS
200.359 [sic] provides that every person having a limited right of custody to a child ...who
wilfully detains, conceals or removes the child in violation of an order of this court, or
removes the child from the jurisdiction of the court without consent of either the court or
all persons who have the right to custody...is subject to being punished for a category ‘D’
felony...” [Ibid.]

The Callahans ignored and deliberately violated this Order that was promptly served on
them and kept and concealed Plaintiff’s sons, having secretly filed a Guardianship action in
Iiinois and fraudulently claimed that Plaintiff had voluntarily given up custody of his sons to
her. Plaintiff was not named or served with this lawsuit.

Behind the scenes, unknown to Plaintiff at the time, Defendant Stuart was
communicating with Lisa Callahan and the boy’s guardian ad litem in Illinois and, contrary to
her earlier admissions, falsely and fraudulently asserting that a finding of express unfitness had

been made, when she knew it had not. [P 26(s)-(u).] This was done to protect the County from

Page 8 of 37

364




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

liability for defrauding Plaintiff, ambushing him, and egregiously violating his rights and those
of his sons through its malfeasance. [Ibid.]

When the alleged “Finding of Physical Injury — Neglect” was fraudulently issued on
February 2, 2015, Plaintiff’s counsel filed a notice of appeal to protect his interests in light of
Stuart’s assertion that no such action was warranted. Over six months later, on August 27, 2015,
a “Finding of Substantiation” was issued long after any further appeal would do any good.
Plaintiff had been awarded custody, but the children were long gone.

Despite the futility, Plaintiff was advised to request a Fair Hearing out of caution and he
did so. Thereafter, despite that request, no hearing date was set. It seemed apparent Defendant
Clark County had abandoned the appeal. In the meantime, Plaintiff moved to England and got
married, with the goal of recovering his sons and reuniting them with his family as soon as
feasible in the entirety of the circumstances.

On November 10, 2016, having not heard from the County in well over a year, Plaintiff
attempted to resolve his outstanding claims with the County and Stuart. [Eggleston affidavit,
Exhibit 4, email of 11/10/16.] The County referred him to Tisa Evans, the official Clark County
Ombudsman. [Eggleston affidavit, email 11/22/16.] When Plaintiff spoke to her at length on the
phone, she made it crystal clear that the County couldn’t and wouldn’t be able to do anything to
help him, asserting “the County didn’t take custody of your sons.” Not once did she suggest that
there was a Fair Hearing pending or that his claims or concerns could or should be resolved in
the Fair Hearing process.

On December 7, 2016, Plaintiff followed up another email, confirming “DFS’s position
that CPS [Stuart] never took custody of my boys and therefore bears no responsibility for their
removal or the consequences of what happened to them...” And then on December 8, 2016,
Plaintiff send another email affirming the County’s position “DFS/CPS did not take custody of
my boys...” and asking why all the deceit and searching for answers. [Eggleston affidavit, emails

12/7/16, 12/8/16, Exs. 5,6.]
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After Ms. Evans reaffirmed there “is nothing the County can do, I’'m sorry,” Plaintiff
filed the instant action on December 29, 2016, for civil rights violations, abduction, conspiracy,
defamation and other torts, before the two-year statute of limitations would run on about January
5, 2015. Then in March 2015, nearly nineteen months after Plaintiff’s appeal, out of the blue
Plaintiff received a request by the County to select one of two hearing dates much later in the
year. No explanation for the delay was given.

Later that summer, Defendants moved to dismiss certain of Plaintiff’s claims without
ever mentioning the Fair Hearing or failure to exhaust administrative remedies. The Court
granted the Motion in part and granted Plaintiff leave to amend.

In his FAC, Plaintiffs first claim for relief alleges Civil Rights violations pursuant to 42
USC section 1983 against the County defendants. The second claim for relief also alleges a
Section 1983 Claim, except this claim separately states allegations of conspiracy, aiding and
abetting between and among the County and Private defendants. The third and fourth claims for
relief set forth state law intentional torts of intentional infliction of emotional distress and
defamation, libel and slander.

Nowhere in the original Complaint or FAC was any reference made to any specific
Findings made by the County, any Substantiation Letter, or the Fair Hearing process specifically.
Likewise, nowhere in Defendants’ Answer to the FAC is any reference made to any specific
Findings made by the County, any Substantiation Letter, or the Fair Hearing process specifically.
Nor has the County ever contended or asserted that the Fair Hearing process would provide any
remedy involved in the issues raised in the FAC.

It wasn’t until a year later (July 24 of this year) that the County Defendants filed their
Motion to Dismiss based soley on the grounds of failure to exhaust administrative remedies, i.e.,
alleged failure to complete the Fair Hearing process that the County had delayed and then
abandoned. The Court accepted this argument, finding “Plaintiff must exhaust his administrative

remedies before proceeding in this Court ‘and fhis] failure to do so renders the controversy
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nonjusticiable’,” citing Lopez v. Nevada Dep't of Corr., 127 Nev. 1156, 373 P.3d 937 (2011), citing
Allstate Ins. Co. v. Thome, 123 Nev. 565, 571, 170 P.3d 989, 993 (2007).

Though acknowledging section 1983 civil rights claims generally don’t require exhaustion
(Patsy), and citing Morgan vs. Gonzalez, 495 F.3d 1084, 1090 n.2 (9% 2007), and Barron v. Ashcroft,
358 F.3d 674, 678 (9™ 2004), the Court’s Order adopted a “procedural carveout™” argued only
generally by defense counsel at the hearing (for the first time). Neither the leading case of Patsy, or
either of the cases on which the Court relied — Lopez or Allstate - were cited by Defendants in their
Motion, thus precluding Plaintiff from replying to them.

The Court also relied on Cotton v. Jackson, 216 F.3d 1328, 1331 (11* Cir. 2000), for the
following proposition: “Thus, if adequate state remedies were available but Plaintiff failed to take
advantage of them, Plaintiff cannot present a claim the State failed to provide him with due process.”
Again, however, in Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss Cotfor was neither discussed nor cited.

Based on the foregoing, this Court granted the County Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss
without prejudice, stating: “It is the Court’s impression that the procedural due process claim is
unripe at the present time because the administrative process is uncompleted. Furthermore, the state
law claims are predicated on the substantiated findings of the Department of Family Services and,
therefore, are also premature at this point until the administrative process has been completed.”

For the reasons set forth herein, the Court is urged to reconsider its ruling and deny the
Motion to Dismiss.

IIL.
STANDARD OF REVIEW

The Nevada Rules of Civil Procedures are substantially similar to the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure. “Federal cases interpreting the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure ‘are strong
persuasive authority, because the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure are based in large part upon
their federal counterparts.”” Exec Mgmt., Ltd. v. Ticor Title Ins. Co., 118 Nev. 46, 53,38 P.3d

$72, 876 (2002).
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Under the federal rules, the purpose of the complaint is merely to provide notice of the
claim asserted. All that is required is a “short and plain statement of the claim showing that the
pleader is entitled to relief.” FRCP, Rule 8(a)(2). In considering a 12(b) Motion to Dismiss, the
court must accept as true the allegations made in the complaint and construe them most
favourably to upholding the plaintiff’s claim. New Mexico State Inv. Council v. Ernst & Young
LLP, 641 F.3d 1089, 1094 (9% Cir. 2011).

All inferences must be construed in the plaintiff’s favor (Conway v. Circus Casinos, Inc.,
116 Nev. 870, 873, 8 P.3d 837, 839 (2000), see also Swierkiewicz v. Sorema N.A., 534 U.S. 506
(2007) and National Audubon Soc., Inc. v. Davis, 307 F. 3d 835 (9" Cir. 2002)), and the
sufficiency of the allegations must be examined "with a view to attaining substantial justice
among the parties (ibid)," the purpose being to test the sufficiency not the merits of the
underlying complaint (Gibson v. City of Chicago, 910 F.2d 1510, 1520 (7th Cir. 1990)).

“If, on a motion asserting the defense numbered (5) to dismiss for failure of the pleading
to state a claim upon which relief can be granted, matters outside the pleading are presented to
and not excluded by the court, the motion shall be treated as one for summary judgment and
disposed of as provided in Rule 56, and all parties shall be given reasonable opportunity to
present all material made pertinent to such a motion by Rule 56.” NRCP Rule 12(b).

Under FRCP Rule Rule 56, “Should it appear from the affadavits of a party opposing the
motion that the party cannot for reason stated present by affidavit facts essential to justify the
party’s opposition, the court may refuse the application for judgment or may or order a
continuance to permit affidavits to be obtained or depositions to be taken or discovery to be had
or may make such other order as is just.”

"
i

H
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IV.

ARGUMENT

A. The Findings of Fact recited in the Court’s 9/7/18 Order do not construe the
factual and legal allegations of the FAC most favorably to Plaintiff, giving him
the benefit of all inferences, so as to uphold Plaintiff’s claims.

The Order recites as Fact #2 that “The Complainf alleges Defendants...based upon an
investigation, determined he, along with his wife, had an unsafe environment for his children.” In|
fact, neither the original Complaint or the FAC alleges the key part of this recital. There is no
allegation that an investigation “determined that Plaintiff, along with his wife, had an unsafe
environment for his children.”

First, Plaintiff and Laura were never married. They were previously engaged in a
ceremony whereby the former Mayor of Las Vegas, Oscar Goodman, made the proposal in
italian in a ceremony at the Grand Opening of the Mob Museum. But the engagement had been
terminated by Plaintiff in the summer of 2014, the FAC does not allege a marriage or
engagement, and defendants offer no evidence of their relationship.

Second, the FAC does not allege that a determination was made that the household was
unsafe, and in fact no such finding was ever made. To the contrary, the FAC alleges that “no
allegations of abuse or neglect were made to Defendant...against Plaintiff or the Eggleston
Boys...” [P 11], and that, “At all times Plaintiff was a fit parent and fully capable of taking care
of and raising his sons [P 12].”

The Order recites as Fact #3 that, “On January 7, 2015, Plaintiff signed a Temporary
Guardianship surrendering custody of his children to Lisa and Brian Callahan,” making no
reference to the critical unconstitutional, coercive element that is outside any administrative
agency’s jurisdiction. The FAC alleges in pertinent part, “At no time was neglect of, abuse of, or

failure to protect the Eggleston boys made, such that [Defendants] fabricated and made up the
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existence of the making of such a report to justify their wrongful, illegal and unconstitutional
actions...” [P 29(c).]

Not referenced by the Court, the FAC also alleges that, on about January 6, 2015,
Defendant Stuart stormed into Plaintiff’s family home “with two armed police officers wearing
highly-visible, HIP-holster guns...” [P 26(a)], and coerced him into signing a temporary
guardianship to the Callahan after threatening: “Either you sign the temporary
guardianship...right now or the police are taking your children into custody right now and you
will never see them again...[P 26(b)].”

The FAC further alleges that the foregoing coercive action “constituted an unlawful and
malicious abduction, on one level no different in import than a child kidnapping by a total
stranger...” [P26(n)], that the actions by the police “constituted a de facto custodial taking of the
Eggleston boys, triggering all the constitutional rights and legal rights that would be triggered
had the police taken the boys into direct custody and whisked them away in the back of their
police cars...[P 26(p)].”

The FAC further alleges “concealment of material facts in the investigations. ..with the
purpose of depriving [Plaintiff] of the opportunity and ability to protect his fundamental parental
rights and protect the Eggleston boys from wrongful removal, all as part of an ongoing custom
and practice of abusing her power and authority in taking actions designed, not to advance the
best interests of the parents, children and families, but rather, to enhance budgets and monetary
allocations to...” Defendants. [P 26(e).]

Moreover, the FAC alleges “an ‘Ambush Strategy’ ...complete with law enforcement
officers ready to draw their guns, with the purpose of depriving [Plaintiff] of the opportunity and
ability to protect his fundamental parental rights and protect the Eggleston boys from wrongful
removal, all as part of an ongoing custom and practice of abusing her power and authority...” as
well as Defendant’s Supervisor taking actions that caused “Stuart to take actions designed to

cover up her misrepresentations and misdeeds and abuse her power...” [P 29(f).]
Page 14 of 37

370




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

In the context of an Order dismissing Plaintiff’s FAC as to the County Defendants, the
difference in the Facts summarized by the Court and those alleged in the FAC, construed in
Plaintiff’s favor, is crucial. It is a far cry from Plaintiff simply signing over the children afier an
allegation of “unsafe environment” which was not alleged in the FAC or cannot be proven by
any evidence.

When the FAC is construed most favorably to Plaintiff, as hereafter set forth, it is
submitted the Motion to Dismiss should be denied.

B. There is a material factual question as to whether the County Defendants
abandoned, waived, and/or are estopped from asserting the Fair Hearing process

as an administrative prerequisite to bringing the present action, requiring denial of]
the Motion to Dismiss and/or further discovery.

The Court’s recitation of the procedural history of the Fair Hearing process adopts
Defendants’ incorrect and self-serving re-construction of what happened, and also omits key
clarifying facts and reference to the significant delays occasioned not by Plaintiff but by
Defendants. The Order also fails to reference the County’s affirmative obligations when children
are taken into custody.

A CPS social worker only has two choices when considering family intervention:
voluntary services to help the family or court action. NRS 432B.360 urges voluntary services
where the family is willing. It is undisputed that Plaintiff and his family were willing to engage
voluntary services. Indeed, as alleged in the FAC, Stuart represented the family had been
accepted into the Boys Town program beginning January 6, 2015.

The other choice was immediate court action. If CPS felt the children were at risk, it was
obligated to petition the court for legal custody absent an emergency. NRS 432B.390. Even then
the children would not be summarily removed from the family (as happened here). To the
contrary, the public policy of Nevada strongly favors keeping families together whenever
possible, and the Court often supervises family services. The FAC alleges that no emergency

existed and that Plaintiff’s fitness was affirmatively recognized.
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If the CPS social worker or police believe that an emergency warrants the children being
taken immediately into custody, the children must be placed in an emergency shelter, a licensed
foster home, or with relatives. NRS 432B.470. In that case, Nevada law requires a hearing to
be held within 72 imurs after a child has been taken into protective custody, excluding
weekends and holidays.

[n the instant case, the coerced removal of Plaintiff’s boys and placement with relatives
required a hearing within 72 hours. None was provided, and the Fair Hearing process could not
remedy that, as the boys had already been abducted from the state with the County’s active
complicity and taken 2000 miles away to the Chicago area somewhere.

Furthermore, when Plaintiff appealed the Finding of February 2, 2015, it wasn’t until
August 27, 2015, nearly seven months later, that a “Finding of Substantiation” was issued.
Plaintiff then requested an appeal, but Clark County didn’t set a hearing date, instead abandoning]
the process. Meanwhile, Plaintiff moved to England and got married, re-establishing his life and
continuing with his ongoing efforts to reunite with his sons.

On November 10, 2016, having not heard from the County in well over a year, Plaintiff
attempted to resolve his claims against them. (Eggleston affidavit, email of 11/10/16, Ex. 4.)
Instead, as detailed above, the County took the position that it had not taken custody of the boys
and that there was nothing it could do to provide Plaintiff any remedy, whether by way of
custody or fine or damages. Certainly this constituted an estoppel when combined with the
prejudice caused by the delay. Southern Nev.. Mem. Hosp. v. State, 101 Nev. 387, 391, 705 P.2™
139, 142 (1985), quoting Cheger, Inc. v. Painter & Decorators, 98 Nev. 609, (1982).

Plaintiff then filed the instant action on December 29, 2016. Three months later, in March
2017, more than nineteen months since Plaintiff appealed the Substantiation Letter and more
than two years since the County’s coerced removal of his sons, and totally out of the blue,
Plaintiff received a letter from the County asking him to select between two hearing dates later in|

the year.
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Here is Plaintiff’s response:

“Thank you for Notice of the Appeal Hearing date options in the above matter.[P] Of the
two dates, I select Tuesday, August 1, 2017. [P] Given the lateness of this date, as well as other
matters, I make this selection with full reservation of my rights, should a reservation be
necessary, to object to the lateness of the hearing and raise any other objection allowed by
law. As you may know, I have seen my sons once since they were taken in January 2014. |
have not been allowed to see or talk to them for well over a year by the person who took
them. Can you please tell me why, after all this time, this hearing is now being set?...I have filed
a civil rights complaint...Does this hearing have anything to do with that case?”

[Emphasis added; Eggleston affidavit, email 3/20/17.]

If the “Fair Hearing” had anything to do with Plaintiff’s case, the County would
reasonably have been expected to reply to the question, “I have filed a civil rights
complaint...Does this hearing have anything to do with that case?” In fact, no reply was
forthcoming, and no claim made that the Fair Hearing needed to proceed first. When the hearing
date approached, Plaintiff this time did request a continuance, as his pending Visa application
had been delayed due to the international refugee epidemic and he did not have his passport.

Many months later a new hearing date of September 11, 2018, was selected by the
County. In reply, Plaintiff wrote (on 7/20/18): “Hi Ms. Butts, thank you for your letter. However,
[ am surprised not to receive the customary selection of four dates. I have a conflict on
September 11, 2018, as it is the 16th Anniversary of 9/11. My father was a B-52 Bomber Pilot, I
am a graduate of the University of Maryland, and I have many friends affected. [ will be in the
Capitol for various events (Washington D.C.) that day. Please provide me a list of alternate
dates...”

When no reply was forthcoming, Plaintiff emailed Ms. Butts again on July 27, 2018,
stating: “For clarification of the record, I do not seck a continuance of the appeal hearing, simply
alternative dates...Also, according to the website, I'm urged to make enquires if I have any
questions about the hearing. I have these questions, all of which pertain to whether or not I will
receive a fair hearing in fact and law (not just name):

“]. How do [ subpena in-state witnesses to the hearing to counter the false and

fraudulent findings made against me and to confront my accusers -- the linchpin of due process?
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2. How do I subpena out-of-state witnesses to the hearing (since the County conspired
with the Callahans to remove my sons from the state) to counter the false and fraudulent findings
made against me and to confront the accusers -- equally a linchpin of due process?

3. How do I subpena documents to the hearing (in state and out)?

4. I would like a record created and court reporter present. How do I accomplish that?

5. I will need discovery before the hearing -- document production and witness
depositions. How do I schedule those?

6. I may bring expert witnesses to the case. Is there a special procedure for that?

7. I estimate at least two days and possibly three days to present my side of the case, not
counting whatever the County seeks to do.

8. The District Attorney told me that you do not communicate with the attorneys on the
civil rights action due to government ethical restrictions -- that there is a "Chinese Wall" that
prevents communication between the two; yet it appears that the new attorneys for the County
are being given information by your office about the Fair Hearing process. Is that true, and what
are the ethical rules that apply?

9, Can the hearing officer order damages to be paid to me by the County and Stuart for
violation of my civil rights if he were to so find?

10. Can the hearing officer order that my children be returned to me if he determines that
the findings against me were false, fraudulent or unsupported by the evidence?

11. In my situation, where your office claims that the County never took custody of my
sons, can this hearing result in any relief being awarded to me? In other words, if I win, and the
findings are determined to be false, what happens next? Are my children returned? Is Ms. Stuart
fired or prosecuted? In other words, what is the purpose of the hearing?”

Having received no immediate reply, Plaintiff followed up as follows:

“In addition to my previous questions, [ also reference this comment in your letter to me:
"You are required to attend the hearing. If you do not attend the hearing, you abandon your rights
to an appeal, and the action of the agency will be implemented." Since the County contends it
never took custody of the children, and two of the children were not mine (nor did I have
custody of them), exactly what action of the agency will be implemented? I am baffled as to
what this might be and concurrently most eager to know what it is, as it seems quite
threatening though I have no idea what you are referring to.” (Emphasis added.)

Obviously the warning was intended to apply to a situation where the children were in thej

County’s custody. So when no reply was forthcoming, Plaintiff followed up again:

“I am the appellant in the matter below. On July 19, 2018, CCDFS Legal Unit Supervisor
Ms. Devon Butts sent me the email below and a letter, both stating: "Should you have any
questions, please contact Appeals Unit" at this email address. The website also says to contact
your office for guidance (not legal advise), thus I am doing so. I bave the following questions
and concerns and hope that you can provide me guidance as the online information is remarkably
inadequate for anyone hoping to have a truly fair trial involving witnesses and children now in a
different state.”

Plaintiff listed the same questions previously posed and then sent further follow up letters

addressing his growing concerns.
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“Dear Ms. Butts, I have sent an email with questions to the email provided in your

7/19/18 letter (dfsappeals@clarkcountynv.gov), but have not received a response. That response
impacts the dates that witnesses will be available for the "Fair Hearing" should it go forward.

Also, several very serious items present concern:

1. Hearing Officer: [ have not been officially notified of the name of the Hearing Officer
assigned to my case, but note both an actual and apparent conflict of interest in Christene
Kelleher, should she be the designated officer. Her own website discloses the
conflict: http://kelleherandkelleher.com/attorneys/christine-kelleher/. It is my position that this
conflict will further deny my due process rights, in addition to the many prior and ongoing
violations.

2. Potential Collusion with defense counsel in civil rights case. On several occasions, the
Fair Hearing Office has taken action in conjunction (and apparent coordination) with
developments in my civil rights action against Clark County and Georgina Stuart. Further, it
appears that my emails to the Fair Hearing office are being forwarded to the County's defense
counsel, which deeply concerns me. And of course, the County has filed a Motion to Dismiss in
conjunction with your office, using the affidavit of Ms. Hammack, who is identified on your
letterhead as the Assistant Director DFS.

Please disclose to me immediately any ex parte communications with the D.A.'s office
assigned to defend my civil rights case and the current private law firm, Olson Cannon Gormley
Angulo & Stoberski and Felicia Galati, Esq., if any, regarding or reference my Fair Hearing. For
my peace of mind, and the appearance of fairness and justice, can you also please affirm to me
under oath that no such ex parte communications have ever been made regarding my matter.

And this: “Dear Appeals Unit, I have not yet received a response to my earlier email.
Please also note that I object to Christine Kelleher being assigned the Hearing Officer in my
matter as she has both an actual and apparent conflict of interest. This is indicated on her own
website: http://kelleherandkelleher.com/attorneys/christine-kelleher/. I look forward to your
reply.”

Followed by this: “After two weeks, I have received no response to any of my emails
seeking to have a fair trial. Many of my questions raise serious concerns of fairness,
constitutionality and legality. Yet to date they have been ignored. Should [ expect to receive a
reply to my emails? Or should I consider the other options of contacting the Clark County
Ombudsman, the Mayor's office, the Attorney General's office...or simply file a federal
lawsuit? Obviously I would much prefer a fair, honest, informal solution from the "fair hearing"
office.”

In sum, the procedural history as related to the Court by the County Defendants is
inaccurate and not construed in favor of upholding Plaintiff’s FAC as the law requires. When this
procedural history is clarified, it becomes apparent that (a) the Fair hearing was abandoned by
Defendants, (b) a question of fact exists as to whether Defendants should be estopped from

asserting administrative exhaustion, (¢) the hearing would be futile as respects the issues
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involved in the FAC, and Defendants violated Nevada law in such a way that a Fair Hearing

would be useless.

C. The “Fair Hearing” process does not provide any relevant or adequate remedy to

the disposition of the key claims presented by the FAC. making it an unnecessary
exercise in futility and not warranting exhaustion.

Citing Cotton v. Jackson, 216 F.3d 1328, 1331, the Court’s Order acknowledged that the
exhaustion doctrine only applies “if adequate state remedies were available.” Further to that,
Rumble v. Hill, 182 F.3d 1064, 1067-1070 (9* Cir. 1999), held that exhaustion was not required
where the state’s administrative grievances process did not allow for an adequate award of
damages.

In Arnett v. Myers, 281 F.3d 552, 562-564 (6™ Cir. 2002), the Sixth Circuit observed that
plaintiff’s civil rights claims were ripe, as against an exhaustion argument, where a review of the
state’s law revealed no reasonable, certain and adequate provision for obtaining just
compensation to the plaintiff. Similarly, in Locurto v. Guiliani, 447 F 3d 159, 170-71 (2™ Cir.
2006), the Second Circuit held there was no full and fair opportunity to litigate 1¥ Amendment
claims in the administrative proceeding because the appellant was not allowed to conduct
discovery and because the ultimate decision-makers were not neutral, as is clearly the situation in
the instant case where a former DFS attorney was appointed as hearing officer (over Plaintiff’s
noted objection).

Highly notable in the context of this case is the Appeal Notice that accompanied the
Substantiation Letter. It expressly described the very limited scope of the administrative Fair
Hearing process as “the right to receive notice of an adverse determination against you and give
you an opportunity to response [sic] in an orderly proceeding.” The only remedy available was
described as this: “If a substantiated finding(s) of child abuse or neglect is reversed following an
administrative appeal, all reference to the perpetrator’s identity previously submitted to the
Central Registry [citing NRS 432B.290] is removed.” (Plaintiff affidavit, Notice, Ex. 2.)

Page 20 of 37

376




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Registry removal was the sole remedy available, a matter not involved in the present
case. Moreover, the Letter expressly stated in bold black letters: “An administrative reviewed
[sic] is not available in cases that have been substantiated by the court in either a civil or a
criminal proceeding.” As previously stated, Clark County’s own document provided the
administrative review process was not exclusive as to criminal or civil proceedings, and was not
available “in cases that have been substantiated by the court...in...a civil...proceeding.”
(Ibid.) In other words, no purpose would be served by the appeal.

On February 2, 1025, Plaintiff filed his Complaint for Paternity, Custody and Child
Support. On February 18, 2015, Plaintiff formally revoked the temporary Guardianship he had
revoked verbally after given and in repeated emails demanding the return of his son, and sent
notice to the Callahans.

On June 29, 2013, in the Nevada Custody action, the Nevada District Court Judge
substantiated Plaintiff’s assertion that he was fit and should be awarded custody of the
children, finding: “ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Plaintiff Steve Eggleston
is fit and proper to be designated sole legal and physical custodian of the minor
children... [his sons].”

By operation of the County’s own Appeal Notice, the Fair Hearing process did not have
any jurisdiction to decide Plaintiff’s fitness or lack thereof as relevant to Plaintiff's FAC.

In addition, as set forth above, on November 10, 2016, Plaintiff attempted to resolve his
claims with the County Defendants. (Eggleston affidavit, email of 11/10/16, Ex. 4.) When the
County referred him to Ombudsman Evans, she thoroughly investigated the situation and
reported to Plaintiff that “the County didn’t take custody of your sons,” and therefore could not
provide Plaintiff any relief. Nor did she say, “hey, you have a Fair Hearing pending, you can get
your relief there.”

On December 7, 2016, Plaintiff reconfirmed the “DFS’s position that CPS [Stuart] never

took custody of my boys and therefore bears no responsibility for their removal or the
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consequences of what happened to them...” And then again on December 8, 2016, Plaintiff
further confirmed the County’s position “DFS/CPS did not take custody of my boys...” and
could provide no relief. (Exs. 4-6.)

Accordingly, since no adequate remedy is available at the agency level, the long-
established rule of Patsy v. Board of Regents 457 U.S. 496 (1982) applies, “that exhaustion of
state administrative remedies should not be required as a prerequisite to bringing an action
pursuant to 1983.” Accordingly, the Motion to Dismiss should be denied.

D. Plaintiff’s procedural due process claims exist separate and apart from the Fair

Hearing process. involve questions of constitutionality not within the jurisdiction

of any government agency, and therefore override any assertion of administrative
exhaustion.

Administrative agencies have neither the power not the competence to pass upon the
constitutionality of their own statutes, laws, or processes. Am. Jur. 2" sections 455, 456,
Constitutional Claims; PUC Cal v. U.S., 355 U.S. 534, 78 S.Ct. 446 (1958). See also U.S. v.
Radio Corp of America, 358 U.S. 334, 79 S.Ct. 457 (1959).

Removal of children without a prior hearing is a violation of procedural due process. Ram
v. Robin, 118 F.3% 1306 (9" Cir. 1997), specifically held: “the removal of children from their
father’s home without prior notice of hearing, where the children were not in imminent danger,
would violate clearly established constitutional law...” See also Perkins v. City of West Covina,
113 F.3" 1004, 1008 (9" Cir. 1997.)

In his FAC, Plaintiff alleges Defendants defrauded him, ambushed him, and were
complicit in the abduction of his children to another state — all in violation of his procedural due
process rights. Indeed, NRS 432B.470 required a hearing within 72 hours of the CPS or police
coercively placing his sons in the custody of the Callahans. Instead, defendants were complicit in
aiding the Callahans in the criminal abduction of his sons to another state, and no such hearing

was held.
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The Court’s Order states that the rule of “exhaustion recognized a state must have the
opportunity to remedy the procedural failings of its subdivision and agencies in an appropriate
forum before being subjected to a claim alleging such a violation. Thus, if adequate
state remedies were available but Plé.intiff failed to take advantage of them, Plaintiff cannot
present a claim the State failed to provide him with due process,” citing Cotton v. Jackson,
supra.

In the instant case, the procedural failings of the County were (a) its failure to give
custody of the boys to Plaintiff, who was ready, willing, able and fit, (b) coercive removal of the
boys without filing a prior court action (since there was no emergency), (c) failure to provide
plaintiff a court hearing within 72 hours of the removal of his children, (d) proactive complicity
in aiding the Callahans in the criminal abduction of his children to another state 2000 miles way,
and (e) generally not providing a timely remedy to protect the custody of the children.

According, giving Plaintiff's FAC a most favorable construction, Plaintiff> has stated a
procedural due process claim unrelated to the “Fair Hearing” process, such that Defendants’
Motion to Dismiss should be denied.

E. Plaintiff’s substantive due process claims are not the same as Plaintiff’s

procedural due process claims, nor derivative thereof, and therefore override any
assertion of administrative exhaustion.

Fakoya v. County of Clark, U.S. Dt. Ct., Dt. NV, 2014 U.S. Dist Lexis 143240, is not
binding precedent as a federal district court case (Nat’l Union Fire Insurance Co v. Allstate
Bank, 282 F.Supp. 2™ 339, 351 (D. Md. 2003), but it is instructive. This is a Nevada federal
district court case addressing an extreme action against the County for damages for violating the
Plaintiffs’ rights to custody of their children and their marital relationship.

The Fakoya court observed: “Plaintiffs have alleged a colourable substantive due process
theory. They allege County officials removed Mr. Fakoya from his family Christmastime, as he
returned home for the first time in two years after being acquired of murder [of another child] —
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and did so for retaliatory purposes and not as a legitimate exercise of government authority. And
they allege that County ofﬁcials instructed Ms. Fakoya that she must either divorce her husband
or surrender her children. A reasonable jury could find these actions shock the conscience.”

The Court cited Washington v. Glucksberg, 521 U.S. 702, 721, 117 S.Ct. 2258 (1997), for
the principle that substantive due process claims are separate and distinct from due process
claims and present a two-fold test: “whether the right is ‘objectively, deeply rooted in this
Nation’s history and traditions,” and whether the ‘crucial guideposts’ of [o]ur Nation’s history,
legal traditions, and practices’ support the right.”

In this connection, the Court observed that “The fundamental rights recognized under
substantive due process include ‘personal decisions related to marriage. ..family relationship,
child rearing. .. which often involv[e] the most intimate and personal choices a person may make
in a lifetime...” (Id, 143240.) The court cited Starely v. lllinois, 405 U.S. 645, 651, 92 Sup.Ct.
1208 (1972), as follows: “And the Supreme Court has long and specifically recognized the
‘essential,” ‘basic,” and ‘precious’ rights to conceive and raise children.”

Indeed, referencing the Ninth Circuit decision of Brittain v. Hansen, 451 F.3" 982, 992
(9% Cir. 2006), the Fakoya court observed, “it is long settled that custodial parents have a liberty
interest in the ‘companionship, care, custody, and management’ of their children. This interest
does not evaporate simply because they have not been model parents or have lost
temporary custody of the child to the state,” citing Santosky v. Kramer, 455 U.S. 745, 753,
102 S.Ct., 1388 (1982).

Moreover, in Smith v. City of Fontana, 607 F.2™ 1269 (9" Cir. 1979), the Ninth Circuit
wrote that section 1983 permits parents to challenge “a state’s severance of a parent-child
relationship with the parenis” because “[t}he companionship and nurturing interests of parent and
child in maintaining a tight familial bond are reciprocal, and we see no reason to accord less
constitutional value to the child-parent relationship than we accord to thé parent-child

relationship,” citing City of Smith, supra.
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In the instant case, Plaintiff has clearly alleged a violation of his substantive due process
rights in the fraud, ambush, and criminal abduction of his sons to another state with the
complicity of the County Defendants, especially given the fact that Plaintiff was fit and there was
no emergency, as captured in the District Court’s Order granting him custody: “ORDERED,
ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Plaintiff Steve Eggleston is fit and proper to be
designated sole legal and physical custodian of the minor children...[his sons].”

Since a reasonable jury could find these actions shock the conscience, Defendants’
Motion to Dismiss should be denied as administrative exhaustion would not and cannot address
this constitutional rights under the controlling decision of Patsy, supra, and its progency.

F. Plaintiff’s intentional tort claims based on abduction, conspiracy to abduct, and

defamation exist separate and apart from the “Fair Hearing” process and therefore
override any assertion of administrative exhaustion.

The Court’s Order dismisses the state law tort claims on the rationale that they “are
predicated on the substantiated findings by the Department of Family Services and, therefore, all
also premature at this point until the administrative process has been completed...” [P 10.] To
the contrary, however, giving the FAC an interpretation most favorable to Plaintiff, these
intentional tort claims are not predicated on any findings by the DFS.

For example, the Third Cause of Action alleges:

“(a) the Eggleston boys were abducted, removed from Plaintiff’s custody and taken
from the State as previously alleged;

(b) Plaintiff was not given notice of or provided a prompt due process hearing as
required by Nevada law, the Nevada Constitution, federal civil rights and other laws or the
federal Constitution;

(c) A false report or reports would be and was issued that falsely characterised
Plaintiff as an unfit parent and/or as abusing and/or neglecting his sons, which report would be
and was used to justify thé removal of his sons, denial of custody of his sons by others, and

Page 25 of 37

381




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

denial of visitation and contact with his sons;

(d)  Use of the aforesaid false reports would be combined with false and misleading
files and materials never disclosed to Plaintiff, as well as ongoing contacts via phone, email, and
other online media, to create the false and misleading impression that grounds existed for the
exercise by other courts of so-called emergency guardianship jurisdiction (despite the lack of any
emergency or grounds therefor);

43)] Plaintiff would not be and was not provided constitutional notice of any charges
or reasonable cause for the forced removal and abduction of his sons, nor given an opportunity to
dispute those charges or allegations, call witnesses to disprove them, or otherwise receive
substantive or procedural due process;

(g)  Despite Plaintiff’s repeated requests, the files, records, alleged evidence, and
purported witnesses, if any, supporting the Defendants’ actions, omissions, and conspiracy, as
alleged, were concealed, altered, destroyed, and/or not provided to Plaintiff in violation of
federal and state law and the federal and state Constitutions;

(h)  Plaintiff would be and was defamed, branded and deemed unfit as a parent for his
sons despite being found fit and awarded full legal and physical custody of his sons by a Nevada
District Court judge; and

@) The concealed information and alleged evidence against Plaintiff would be shared
with other government officials, courts, judges and others so as to prejudice and harm Plaintiff’s
rights of liberty, due process, parenthood, privacy and custody of his boys.

The vast majority of these charges would never be reached in any “Fair Hearing” process.
More importantly, there is a critical distinction to be made between alleged “Physical Injury —
Neglect” and legal fitness as a parent. The former is not the later. The latter is defined in NRS
128.018 as follows: “by reason of the parents’ fault or habit or conduct toward child or other

persons, [the parent] fails to provide such child with proper care, guidance, and support.”
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There is no allegation in the FAC, Answer, or Motion to Dismiss that (a} Plaintiff was in
fact accused of being unfit, (b) that there was a finding of unfitness, or (c) that any “Fair
Hearing” would have or will address the issue of fitness in any way, shape or form. Nor is there
any evidence that a Finding of unfitness was ever made -- just the opposite.

Indeed, even if that issue was squarely before the Fair Hearing officer, he or she would
have no jurisdiction to address it. As the Appeal Notice states: “An administrative reviewed
[sic] is not available in cases that have been substantiated by the court in either a civil or a
criminal proceeding.”

Finally, viewing Plaintiff’s FAC most favorably to non-dismissal, the affidavit of
Plaintiff’s Clark County child custody counsel (Emily McFarling, Esq.) executed 21 May 2015
and filed in Will County, Illinois District Court, Case No. 2015P 000231, Ir the Matter of the
Estate of Ryder Eggleston (attached to Plaintiff’s declaration), takes on greater significance. She
states:

“4. 1 spoke to Georgian Stuart [defendant herein], Senior Family Services Specialist for
Child Protective Services on January 7, 2015 over the telephone while she and the police were at
my client’s [Plaintiff’s] home.

“5, Ms Stuart specifically told me over the telephone that the investigation was pertaining
to Laura [the children’s mother], but there was a concern [for which there is no substantiation in
fact] that Mr Eggleston had been leaving the children in Laura’s care but there was no direct
concerns about Mr Eggleston being an unfit parent.

“6. Ms Stuart specifically told me over the telephone that the plan was for Lisa [one of

the private defendants in this case] to stay in the parties” home with the children on a temporary

basis. Ms Stuart informed me that no petition for abuse or neglect would be filed against

Mr Eggleston if he signed the temporary guardianship consent, but that CPS would keep the

investigation case open just to see through the process of him getting set up to revoke the

guardianship and take back full care and control of the children...
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8. On or about January 21, 2015, Ms Stuart specifically affirmed in response to direct
questions on the issue of Mr Eggleston could revoke the guardianship at any time and seek return
of the children from Lisa. I informed Ms Stuart that Mr. Eggleston no longer lived with Laura
and had not seen her since January 7, 2015, that he had his own home set up for the children and
childcare plans in place. Ms Stuart state that Mr Eggleston’s revocation of the guardianship
would not trigger any action by CPS...”

According, the Nevada Supreme Court’s decision Turner v. Staggs, 510 P. 2d 879 (1973)
is controlling. There the Court reasoned such “arbitrary treatment clearly violates the equal
protection guarantees of the United States Constitution...The statutory provisions of this state
which provide that no person shall sue a governmental entity...for a demand arising out of a
government tort unless he first presents a claim... are void and of no effect.” (Emphasis added.)

Likewise, the Nevada Supreme Court in Martinez v. Maruszczak, 123 Nev. 433, 446, 168
P. 3d 720, 729 (2007) affirmed that Nevada has waived the traditional immunity from liability
for torts. None of the few enumerated exceptions embrace NRS 432B.317, the so-called “Fair
Hearing” process referenced by the moving defendants as further elucidated by this Motion.

The intentional tort claims alleged by Plaintiff are “unrelated to any plausible policy
objective” that might invoke an exception. Therefore, the motion to dismiss them should be
denied.

G. Conclusion

The State of Nevada recognizes that termination of parental rights “is an exercise of
awesome power.” Smith v. Smith, 102 Nev. 263, 266 (1986) (overr other gds, In re Termination
of Parental Rights as to N.J,, 116 Nev. 790 800, n. 4 (2000). Severance of the parent-child
relationship “is tantamount to imposition of a civil death penalty.” Drury v. Lang, 105 Nev. 430,
433 (1989). “Parental fault [must be] proven by clear and convincing evidence.” In re Parental

Rights as to K O.L., 118 Nev. 737, 746.

Page 28 of 37

384




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

In deciding Defendants” Motion to Dismiss, the Court misconstrued the pleadings and
underlying facts, given the narrowness of the issue presented by the Motion to Dismiss. Nor did
Defendants cite any of the many U.S. Supreme Court cases controlling section 1983 law,
working an unfairness to Plaintiff when the dispositive issues were addressed for the first time in
the Reply and at the hearing and thus warranting this Motion to Reconsider.

According, with the clarification provided by this Motion, and based on a fuller
addressing of the FAC, facts, and related law, the Court is urged to reconsider the dismissal
motion and deny it in toto.

Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff, In Pro Per

/s/ Steve Eggleston

Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff, In Pro Per
Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Read
Pilton, England, Post Code: ba4 4nx

UK: +44 7801 931682

US: (760) 464-9496

TheEggman411@gmail.com

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE
I hereby certify that I am the plaintiff in this action and on the 7™ day of August, 2018, I
served a true and correct copy of the foregoing PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION
TO DISMISS OF DEFENDANTS CLARK COUNTY AND GEORGINA STUART (Eighth
Judicial District Wiznet), by emailing the same to the following recipients. Service of the
foregoing document by email is in lieu of service via official post.
Felecia Galati, Esq.
OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY
9950 West Cheyenne Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89129
Phone: 702-384-4012
fgalati@ocgas.com
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EXHIBIT “1”

Supporting Affidavit of Plaintiff Steve Eggleston

Steve Eggleston, being first duly sworn, deposes and states:

1. [ am the plaintiff in in this case and submit this affidavit in support of the MOTION
TO RECONSIDER COURT'S 9/7/18 ORDER OF DISMISSAL WITHOUT PREJUDICE
BASED FAILURE TQ EXHAUST ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES

2. Except where stated, the facts and inferences set forth in the Opposition are true to my
own personal knowledge.

3. T was also physically present and overheard the conversation between Ms. McFarling
and Defendant Stuart as described in this Motion.

3. Attached as Exhibit “2” to this Motion is a true and correct copy of the the Clark County
Notice provided to me when informed of the Findings in February 2015. It is accurately quoted
above.

4, Attached hereto as Exhibit “3” is a true and correct copy of the Decree of Custody
entered in Eggleston v. Battistella, Case No. D508989, on June 29, 2015. It is accurately quoted
above.

5. Attached hereto as Exhibit “4” is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s email to
Defendant Stuart and the County as referenced above dated November 10, 2016.

6. Attached hereto as Exhibit “5” is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s email to Tisa
Evans dated December 7, 2016. |

7. Attached hereto as Exhibit “6” is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s email to Tisa

Evans dated December 8, 2016 at 10:46 AM.
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8. Attached hereto as Exhibit “7” is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s email to Tisa

Evans dated December 8, 2016 at 11:23 AM.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAITH NAUGHT.
Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff in pro per

Is/ Steve Eggleston
Date: September 20, 2018
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EXHIBIT “2”

(Clark County Notice)
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EXHIBIT “3”

(Decree of Custody)
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EXHIBIT “4”

(Plaintiff’s email to Defendants Stuart and the County as referenced above dated November 10,
2016)

Page 34 of 37
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EXHIBIT “5”

(Plaintiff’s email to Tisa Evans dated December 7, 2016)

Page 35 of 37
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EXHIBIT “6”

(Plaintiff’s email to Tisa Evans dated December 8, 2016 at 10:46 AM)

Page 36 of 37

404










10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

EXHIBIT “7”

(Plaintiff’s email to Tisa Evans dated December 8, 2016 at 11:23 AM)

Page 37 of 37
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Electronically Filed
10/8/2018 10:31 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COﬂgg
FELICIA GALATI, ESQ. &Tu‘—-‘é

Nevada Bar No. 007341

OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY

ANGULO & STOBERSKI

9950 West Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas, NV 89129

Phone: 702-384-4012

Fax: 702-383-0701

fealati@ocgas.com

Attorneys for Defendants

CLARK COUNTY and GEORGINA STUART

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVE EGGLESTON, CASE NO. A-16-748919-C
DEPT.NO. VIII
Plaintiff,
v, Date of Hearing: 10/22/18

GEORGINA STUART; CLARK COUNTY,
NEVADA; LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN
CALLAHAN; AND DOES I THROUGH 100,
INCLUSIVE,

Time of Hearing: In Chambers

Defendants.

DEFENDANTS CLARK COUNTY AND GEORGINA STUART'S
OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFE'S MOTION TO RECONSIDER DEFENDANTS’
MOTION TO DISMISS AND 9/7/18 ORDER OF DISMISSAL

COME NOW Defendants CLARK COUNTY and GEORGINA STUART
(“Delendants™), by and through their atorney FELICIA GALAT!, ESQ. of the law firm
OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY, ANGULQO & STOBERSKI, and hereby submit their
Opposition To Plaintiff"s Motion To Reconsider Defendants” Motion To Dismiss And 9/7/18

Order Of Dismissal. This Opposition is made and based upon all papers, pleadings and records

Case Number: A-16-748919-C
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on file herein, the attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and such oral argument,
testimony and evidence as the Court may entertain,

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

5.

INTRODUCTION

Plaintiff’s Motion must be denied because Plaintiff has not presented any new evidence,
identified any change in the law, or demonstrated that this Court’s decision is clearly erroneous,
Plaintiff merely rehashes his prior arguments, which this Court rejected, and adds things he could
have argued, but chose not to. Thus, Plaintiff has failed to meet his burden and reconsideration
is not proper in this case,

II.

PROCEDURAL AND FACTUAL BACKGROUND

On 7/24/18, Defendants filed a Motion To Dismiss on the basis that Plaintiff failed to
exhaust his administrative remedies. That was the only issue before this Court. On 8/7/18,
Plaintiff filed an Opposition thereto. On 8/21/18, Defendants filed a Reply. On 8/28/18, this
Court conducted a hearing on the Motion to Dismiss, and both Plaintiff, who attended the
hearing in person, and Defendants made argument. The Court took the matter under submission.
On 9/7/18, the Order granting Defendants” Motion To Dismiss was filed. On 9/20/18, Plaintiff
filed a Motion To Reconsider Defendants’ Motion To Dismiss And 9/7/18 Order Of Dismissal
{“Motion™).

It was and is undisputed;

7

It
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1. That on 8/27/15, DFS issued a Finding of Substantiation upholding the
substantiated finding of physical injury neglect — 14 N plausible risk of physical injury against
Plaintiff as to 4 minor children.'

2. That on 9/9/15, Plaintiff requested a Fair Hearing or appeal of that decision in
care of his attorney, Ms. McFarling.?

3. That the Fair Hearing was originally scheduled for 8/1/17 at Plaintiff"s request,
but was rescheduled for 9/6/17.°

4, That on 8/2/17, Plaintiff requested a continuance of the 9/6/17 Fair Hearing.*

5. Thalt on 8/18/17, DFS advised Plaintiff the Fair Hearing was reset for
10/24/17.°

6. That on 10/4/17, Plaintiff requested a second continnance of the 10/24/17
Fair Hearing.?

7. That on 10/16/17, DFS agreed to a continuance of the 10/24/17 Fair Hearing at
Plaintiff’s request and DFS asked Plaintiff to advise when he could appear for a Fair Hearing so
it could be rescheduled.”

8. Thereafier, Plaintiff failed to contact DFS to reset the 10/24/17 Fair Hearing."

9, That on 7/19/18, not having heard from Plaintiff’ for 9 months, DI'S notified

Plaintiff of a new Fair Hearing date set for 9/11/18.°

' See Affidavit of Paula Hammack (Exh. A to Motion); Affidavit of Devon Butts (Exh. B to Reply); DFS
B/27/15 letter and Finding of Substantiation of Child Abuse and/or Negleet (Exh. E to Reply).

2 1d; Plaintiff's Request for Fair Hearing of Agency Decision (Exh. F to Reply).

1d_; DFS 5/26/17 letter (Exh, G to Reply); DFS 6/9/17 letter (Exhibit H 1o Reply).

* 1d.; Plaintiff's 8/2/17 e-mail, p. 2 (Exh. | to Reply).

5_ 1d.; DFS 8/18/17 letter (Exh. ] to Reply).

% 1d.; Plaintiff’s 10/4/17 e-mail (Exh. K to Reply).

7 1d,; DFS 10/16/17 e-mail, p. | (Exh, K to Reply).

¥ See Affidavit of Paula Hammack (Exh. A to Motion); Affidavit of Devon Buts (Exh. B to Reply).

# 1d.; DFS 7/19/18 letter (Exh. L to Reply).
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10.  That on 7/20/18, Plaintiff requested a third continuance of the 9/11/18 Fair
Hearing, indicating he would be in Washington, D.C. on 9/11/18."

11.  ‘That on 7/31/18, DFS corresponded with Platutiff reminding Plaintiff that the
10/24/17 ¥air Hearing was set for 9/11/18, but continued at his request, and reminding Plaintiff
that DFS asked Plaintiff to advise when he could appear for a Fair Hearing so it could be
rescheduled, but he had failed to do so."!

12 That on 8/17/18, DFS again corresponded with Plaintiff and reiterated what was in
its prior 7/31/18 correspondence to Plaintiff again reminding Plaintiff that the 10/24/17 Fair
Hearing was set for 9/11/18, but continued at his request, and reminding Plaintiff that DFS asked
Plaintiff 1o advise when he could appear for a Fair Hearing so it could be rescheduled, but he had
failed to do so."?

13,  To date, Plaintift has not provided a date to DFS on which the Fair Hearing can
proceed. Notwithstanding DFS’ multiple requests for Plaintiff to provide DFS a date upon
which a Fair Hearing can be rescheduled, Plaintiff has refused to do so. Thus, the Fair Hearing
is still pending at DFS.

Based on alt of the above, there is no doubt that Plaintiff initiated the appeal process and
Fair Hearing, which is pending and has not occurred yet. Therefore, he has failed to exhaust his
administrative remedies.

I11.
STANDARD FOR RECONSIDERATION

Nowhere in the Motion does Plaintiff address the standard for reconsideration, which is
the only relevant standard here. “A district court may reconsider a previously decided issue if
substantially ditferent evidence is subsequently introduced or the decision is clearly
erroncous.” Masonry and Tile Contractors Ass’n of Southern Nevada, v. Jolley, Urga & Wirth,

Lid,, 113 Nev. 737, 741, 941 P.2d 486, 489 (1997) Yemphasis added); Moore v. City of Lag

andmdild )

Y 1d.; Plaintiff™s 7/20/18 e-mail (Exh. M to Reply).
! See DFS 7/31/18 e-mail (Exh. N to Reply).
12 See DFS 8/17/18 e-mail (Exh. O to Reply).
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Vegas, 92 Nev. 402, 405, 551 P.2d 244, 246 (1976). In Moore, supra, the Nevada Supreme
Court held:

the only feature which distingnished the second motion for rehearing from
the two previous motions was the citation of additional authorities for a
proposition of law already set forth and adequately supported by reference
to relevant authorities in the earlier motions. We note particularly that the
second motion for rehearing raised no new issues of law and made
reference to ne new or additional facts. Under such circumstances, the
motion was superfluous and, in our view, it was an abuse of discretion for
the district court to entertain it. Only in very rare instances in which
new issues of fact or law are raised supporting a ruling contrary to the
ruling already reached should a motion for rehearing be granted,

(Emphasis added.) An attempt to relitigate previously decided issues does not constitute a

changed circumstance that warrants reconsideration., DFR_Apparel Co. v, Triple Seven

Promotional Prod. Inc., 2014 W1, 1268689, at *3 (ID. Nev.); Jaden Inv, Tr. v. Bank of Am.. N.A.,

2014 WL 293308, at *1 (D. Nev.) (“Plaintiff fails to establish a reason justifying relief, Plaintiff
offers no new facts or evidence, Instead, Plaintiff attempts to relitigate the issue . . . Plaintiff
had an opportunity to meet its burden . . . and, as the Court found in its Order, failed to do so.
A motion for reconsiderstion is not a proper vehicle for relitigating past issues and therefore

the Motion for Reconsideration should be denied.”) (emphasis added); In re AgriBioTech, Inc,,

319 B.R. 207, 209 (D. Nev. 2004) (“A motion for reconsideration is not an avenue to re-litigate

the same issues and arguments upon which the court already has ruled.”™); Renfro v. City of
Emporia, 732 F. Supp. 1116, 1117 (D. Kan. 1990) (emphasis added) (A motion for
reconsideration “is not intended to allow the partics to relitigate old issues, to advance new
theories, or to rehear the merits of the case.”) “{A] party’s failure to present his strongest
case in the first instance does not entitle him to a second chance in the form of a metion to
amend” or a motion fo reconsider. [d. (emphasis added) Reconsideration based upon newly

discovered evidence should be considered an extraordinary event and granted only on the
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showing of exceptional circumstances, Mayberry v. Maroney, 558 F.2d 1159, 1163 (3" Cir.
1977). “A party is not entitled to reconsideration based on ‘new facts’ or theories which
were clearly available to that party at the time of the carlier ruling. Nor are

‘afterthoughts’ appropriate bases for reconsideration.” Muckleshoot Indian Tribe v, Hall,

698 F. Supp. 1504, 1519 (W.D. Wash. 1988) (citations omitted and emphasis added). Finally,
“Iploints or contentions not raised in the original hearing cannot be maintained or

considered on rehearing.” Achrem v. Expressway Plaza Ltd,, 112 Nev. 737, 742, 917 P.2d

447, 450 (1996) citing Chowdhury v. NLVH, Inc., 111 Nev, 560, 562-63, 893 P.2d 385, 387

(1995); Cannon v, Tavlor, 88 Nev. 89, 92, 493 P.2d 1313, 1314-15 (1972). A trial judge is

granted great discretion on the question of rehearing, Harvey’s Wagon Wheel, Inc. V.

MacSween, 96 Nev. 215, 606 P.2d 1095 (1980).

Plaintiff has not presented any new facts, a change in the law or demonstrated that this
Court’s decision is clearly erroneous. All of Plaintiff’s exhibits, except his affidavil, existed
prior to the Motion being filed and were in Plaintiffs possession, but he failed to produce them
to the Court. Therefore, he cannot do $0 now. Also, those exhibits are self-serving and it is
telling that he has not provided Defendants’ emails relating thereto because they do not establish
what he is arguing to this Court. Finally, the cases cited by Plaintiff, too, were in existence
before the Motion was filed, but he failed to cite them in his Opposition. Therefore, he cannot
do so now. Simply put, Plaintiff has failed to meet his burden and the Motion must be denied,

1v.

LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. Plaintiff Has Not Presented Any New Or Substantially Different Evidence

Plaintiff has not presented any new or substantially different evidence to support
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reconsideration of this Court’s decision. He makes argument based on things not supported by
citation to any evidence'® and relies on what is not alleged in the First Amended Complaint
(FAC)” He relies on his self-serving affidavit and emails, which do not support the Motion.

See, e.p., Alborzi v. Nationstar Mortg,, LLC, No. 69906, 2017 W1 1806805, at *1 (Nev. App.

Apr. 28, 2017) citing Clauson v. Liovd, 103 Nev. 432, 434-35, 743 P.2d 631, 633 (1987)

(holding that a self-serving affidavit will not support summary judgment). He relies on
irrelevant facts, like whether he was married or not, which does not support reconsideration.
Finally, his made up facts, including that his children were removed by DFS, which never
happened and is nowhere in Plaintiff’s 27-page FAC, also do not support the Motion. Aside
from the above, Plaintiff generally points to the same set of facts discussed in his Opposttion.
That does not support reconsideration, Gaines v. State, 2014 WL 2466316, at *3 (Nev.) Finally,
none of the relevant facts — that Plaintiff initiated the appeal process and Fair Hearing, which is
pending and has not cccurred yet — are disputed. Although Plaintiff takes issue with paragraph
10 of the Order, which indicates the claim is unripe, he clearly admits he requesied a continuance
of the Fair Hearing, which supports that finding."> Plaintiff previously argued that the FAC “set
forth four general claims for relicf, all centered around or stemming from the unlawful,
unconstitutional, and/or coerced removal and abduction of his minor sons from his home and to
another state, through the conspiracy, aiding and abetting of the various County and private

defendants,””® He now makes the very samie argument in support of reconsideration,'” Thus, he has

¥ See Motion, L.e., pp. 2-3, 4:1-21, 5:1-2, 5:4-21, 6:1-2, 6:6-13, 6:16-23 and 7:4-26.

" 1d. at pp. 6:3 (no “stormed” in FAC), 6:13-15, 6:24 (no “speaker” in FAC), 7:1-3 {no custody decree in
FAC), 8:1-2, 8:4-27, 9:1-28, 1h1-6, 13:12-16, 15:24-28 and 16:18-20,

14 atp. 17:16-21.

¢ See Opposition, p. 3:2-3.

7 See Motion, e.g., pp. 14:16 to 28, 15:23-25 and 16:6-9.

7
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not introduced new or substantially different evidence, and simply points to the same set of facts
discussed in his Opposition. That is not enough. Gaines, supra.

In summary, Plaintiff complains about Defendants’ procedural failings (first through
third causes of action) and, as this Court found, the pending Fair Hearing is an opportunity for
Defendants to remedy that prior to being subjected to civil rights claims requiring dismissal for a

14

failure 1o exhaust administrative remedies.’® Lopez v, Nevada Dept. of Corrections, 127 Nev.

1156, 373 P.3d 937 (2011); Alistate Ins. Co. v. Thorpe, 123 Nev. 565, 170 P.3d 989 (2007).

B. This Court’'s Deeision Is Not Clearly Erroncous

This Court properly found on undisputed facts that Plaintiff requested a Fair Hearing to
appeal the 8/27/15 finding of substantiation, which is pending and has not been heard yet."® As
such, Plaintiff has not exhausted his administrative remedies under CAPTA, NRS 432B,317 and
NAC 432B.170.°Y  This Court’s decision correctly interpreted the law and applied it to the
undisputed facts. Therefore, this Court’s decision to d'ismiés this action is not clearly erroneous
and appropriate under the exhaustion of administrative remedies doctrine. Lopez, supra; Allstate
Ins. Co., supra,

Plainti{f' argues this Court did not constrie the FAC in the light most favorable to him.
He mistakenly believes that the Court must consider everything in the FAC, whether relevant or
not, and as true, It must not. Where there is undisputed evidence to the contrary and/or
adrmissions by a party, the Court can base its findings on that evidence. Furthermore, the Court
is “not required . , . ‘10 accept legal conclusions cast in the form of factual allegations if those

1

¥ See Order, Conelusions of Law, 2,4,5,6,10and 11.

% 1d. at 7, 8 and t7; ; P. Hammack Affidavit, §15 (Exh. A, 1o Motion); D. Butts Affidavit, 17 (Exh. B to
Reply).

1d. at 18 and 21.
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conclusions cannot reasonably be drawn from the facts alleged.” ™ Alexander v. New York

Cmty. Bancorp, Inc., 2013 WL 5423087, at *1 (Nev. Sept. 20, 2013) citing Cholla Ready Mix,

Inc. v. Civish 382 F.3d 969, 973 (9" Cir. 2004), The allegations must amount to “more than
tabels and conclusions . . . [or] a formulaic recitation of the elements of a cause of action.” Bell

Atlantic Corp. v. Twombly v.., 550 U.8. 544, 555, 127 8.CL. 1955 (2007).

Plaintiff complains that the Court’s Order cites Patsy v, Board of Regents of Florida, 457

U.8. 496 (1982); Lopez, supra. Allstate Ins. Co., supra, and Cotion v _Jackson, 216 F.3d 1328

(1 1" Cir. 2000), which he says were not cited by Defendants in their Motion and precluded him
from replying.”’ Plaintiff forgets he cited Patsy and relies on it in his Motion so he cannot
complain about it being referred to by anyone and/or relied upon by this Court.”* Also, Plaintiff

is wrong or making misrepresentations about Lopez and Allstate because Defendants cited both

in their Motion.*® As to Cottan, although Defendants did not cite it, Plaintiff neither objected nor
asked for more time to respond. Therefore, he waived any objection thereto. In any case, Lopez
and Allstate, which are binding on this Court, provide an adequate legal basis for this Court’s
decision that a State must have the opportunity remedy the procedural failings.* Lopez, 127
Nev. at *1 (“The doctrine of exhaustion of administrative remedies is well-established in the
jurisprudence of administrative law . . . The exhaustion doctrine requires that a person exhaust
administrative remedies before proceeding in the district court and failure to do so renders the
controversy nonjusiiciable . . . Exhaustion of administrative remedies serves two main purposes.
First, exhaustion protects administrative agency authority [by giving] an agency an opporfunity

to correct its own mistakes ... before it is haled into ... court and it discourages disregard of [the

! See Opposition, p. 11:6-12,

n Id. at p. 6:17-23; Motion, pp. 22 and 25.

* See Defendants’ Motion To Dismiss, p, 6:5-17.
M gee Order, Conclusions of Law, 15.
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agency's] procedure. Second, exhaustion promotes efficiency.”) (internal citations and quotations

omitted); Allstate Insur. Co., 123 Nev. at 571-72, 170 P.3d at 993-93 (“Nevertheless, whether

couched i terms of subject-matter jurisdiction or ripeness, a person generally must exhaust all
available administrative remedies before initiating a lawsuit, and failure to do so renders the
controversy nonjusticiable. The exhaustion doctrine gives administrative agencies
an opportunity o correct mistakes and conserves judicial resources, so its purpose is valuable;
requiring exhaustion of administrative remedies often resolves disputes without the need for
judicial involvement.”} Finally, “regardless of whether a party finds and cites
to relevant authority, this Court has an independent duty to research and properly apply the

law[,}]” which it did. Bavlon v. Wells Fargo Bank. N.A., 303 F. Supp. 3d 1160, 1165 (ID.N.M.

2018y, G & G Prods. LL.C v. Rusic, 902 F.3d 940 (9th Cir, 2018) (“our prior decisions ‘have

likewise stressed the district court’s independent obligation 1o adequately ascertain relevant . . .

[

law’ . .. *even if the parties’ submissions are lacking[.]’ ™ (citation omitted).

Plaintiff now argues for the first time thar Defendants abandoned, waived and/or arc
estopped from relying on the pending Fair Hearing pr«on:cs*s..25 However, this Court does not have
to consider the new argument and has absolute discretion in that regard. Achrem. supra (“Points
or contentions not raised in the original hearing cannot be maintained or considered on
rehearing.””) Also, Plaintiff relies on his self-serving affidavit and emails, which do not establish
that. Alborzi, supra. Plaintiff’s emails are all daled in 2016, The Fair Hearing was initially
scheduled for 8/1/17.% In 2017, Plaintiff requested three continuances of the Fair I-'Ie:ax‘ing.23 In

2017, Defendants agreed to the continuances of the Fair Hearing requested by Plaintiff and asked

* See Opposition, pp. 15-20.

* See Plaintiff’s Exhibits 4 through 7,

7 Gee D. Butrs Affidavit, 46 (Exh. B to Reply);

®1d. at 97, 9 and 13; Plaintiff's emails requesting continuances (Exhibits 1, K and M to Reply).

10
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Plaintiff to provide dates, which he never provided.”” Thus, Plaintiff’s 2016 emails — which
came before the Fair Hearing was scheduled in 2017, before Plaintiff®s three 2017 requested
continuances and before Defendants agreed to the continuances in 2017 and asked Plaintiff to
provide dates - do not support his abandonment, waiver and/or estoppel argument because they
came before the hearing was set and before Plaintiff requested the continuances.

Finally, the estoppel cases cited by Plaintiff do not support this argument. Equitable
estoppel operates to prevent a parly from asserting lepal rights that, in equity and good

conscience, they should not be allowed to assert because of their conduct. Nevada State Bank v.

Jamison Family P'ship, 106 Nev, 792, 799, 801 P.24 1377, 1382 (1990). It requires a showing

that: (1) the party to be estopped must be apprised of the true facts; (2) he must intend that his
conduct shall be acted upon, or must so act that the party asserting estoppel has the right to
believe it was so intended; (3) the party asserting the estoppel must be ignorant of the true state

of facts; and (4) he must have relied to his detriment on the conduct of the party to be estopped.

Cheger, Inc. v, Painters & Decorators Joint Comu, Inc., 98 Nev. 609, 614, 655 P.2d 996, 998~

99 (1982). There must be a clear showing that the party relying upon it was induced by the
adverse party 10 make a detrimental change in position, and the burden of proof is upon the party

asserting estoppel. Nevada State Bank, supra, At a minimum, Plaintiff cannot make a clear

showing that he was ignorant of the true state of facts, or that he must have relied to his
detriment on Defendants’ conduct.  The undisputed evidence establishes that DFS set three
hearings, which Plaintiff requested be continued, and DFS four times asked Plaintiff to provide
Hi

i

19

Id. at 148, 10 and 14; Defendant’s emails (Exhibits J, K, N and O to Reply).

11
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3 Plaintiff’s failure to cooperate does not establish Defendants’

dates, which he failed to do.
abandonment, waiver and/or estoppel, nor does Plaintiff cite a single case that establishes that the
facts of this case amount to abandonment, waiver and/or estoppel, This Court’s decision is not

clearly erroneous and this Court did not abuse its discretion in granting Defendants” Motion

without prejudice. Gaines, supra.

C. Plaintiff’s Arcument Reparding No Adequate Remedy To Key Claims Is Irrelevant

Plaintiff’s complaint that the Fair Hearing process does not provide an adequate remedy
to his unspecified key claims is irrelevant. That was not the issue on the Motion to Dismiss and
it is not the issue on reconsideration. Again, this Court does not have to consider this new
argument, which Plaintiff did not raise in his Opposition, and has absolute discretion in that
regard, Achrem. supra. The dismigsal of this action was without prejudice. It is not a decision
substantively dismissing Plaintiffs claims. Upon Plaintiff exhausting his administrative
remedies, he can take whatever action he deems appropriate to seek whatever remedy he deems
appropriate, At that time, any ¢laims brought can be dealt with as appropriate. The purpose of
the exhaustion of administrative remedies is to allow the administrative agency an opportunity to
correct its own mistakes. This is not the time for any remedy as to Plaintiff’s substantive claims.
Furthermore, all of the cases cited by Plaintiff existed at the time the Motion was filed, are not
binding on this Court (2™ and 6™ Circuit)*', and he failed to cite them except Patsy, on which this

Court relied. HMe cannot do so on reconsideration. Muckle Shoot Indian Tribe, supra. Also,

contrary to Plaintiff*s assertion, none of the cases Plaintiff cited (Fakoya, Washington, Stanley,
and Brittain) “override any agsertion of administrative exhaustion.”” Finally, Plaintiff’s reliance
on Patsy is misplaced. In Palgy, the United States Supreme Court determined that exhaustion of
state administrative remedies was not a prerequisite to action under the Civil Rights Act where

the plaintiff brought only federal civil rights claims. However, that is not the case here. Plaintiff

*® See Order, Findings of Fact, 1§ 9-17 and 28; Motion, p. 17:16-21; P. Hammack Affidavit, 116-14 (Exh. A,
1o Motion};, Exhibits G theough O to Motion.

M See Motion, p. 20:11-20.

2 1d. at p. 23-24.
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brings federal and state law claims. Plaintiff”s argument that there is a blanket proscription
against a dismissal for a failure to exhaust administrative remedies where there are federal claims
is not supported by the Inaw he cites.

D. Plaintiff*s Intentional Tort Claim Argument 1s A Rehash Of His Prior Argument

Plaintiff rehashes the intentional tort argument he made in his Opposition relying on the

same cases cited therein (Tumer v Staggs — relating to a notice of claim requirement; and

Martinez v, Maruszezak — relating to discretionary-act immunity —~ neither having anything to do

with the doctrine of exhaustion of administrative remedies), which this Court rejected.”
Therefore, this Court does not have to consider it. In the argument, Plaintifl refers to his third

' However, the

cause of action which alleges intentional infliction of emotional distress,™
allegations he quotes do not relate to the third cause of action, but the second cause of action
{§1983 claim).ﬁ Thus, the argument fails. Furthermore, Plainti{f alleges he suffered emotional
distress, including being deprived of raising his sons, ete.”® However, he alleges that “Defendant
LISA CALLAHAN abducted and removed the Eggleston Boys from the county and the state and,
on information and belief, together with Defendant Brian Callahan, hide them at their
apartment in Indiana (or the greater Chicago area), neither contacling Plaintiff nor
disclosing the whereabouis or condition of the Eggleston Boys to him.”¥” Therefore, the
deprivation, if any, was caused by Defendant Callahan not these Defendants.

V.

CONCLUSION
Defendants respectfully request this Court deny Plaintiff’'s Motion for reconsideration

because Plaintiff has failed to meet his burden of producing new or substantially different

* 1d, at pp. 7-9; Motion, pp. 25-28,

* See Motion, p. 25:18-19; FAC, pp. 21-22.
# 1d. at pp. 25-26; FAC, {36.

* See FAC, §§39-40.

7 Seg FAC, 26(D).
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evidence, identifying any subsequent change in the law, or establishing this Cowrt’s decision is

clearly erroneous,

DATED this g day of October, 2018.
OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY
ANGULO & STOBERSK!

/s Felicia Galati, Esq.

FELICIA GALATI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 007341

9930 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129
Attorneys for Defendants
CLARK COUNTY and
GEORGINA STUART
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

On the Z; day of Qctober, 2018, the undersigned, an employee of Olson, Cannon,
Gormley, Angulo & Stoberski, hereby served a true copy of DEFENDANTS CLARK
COUNTY AND GEORGINA STUART’S OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO
RECONSIDER DEFENDANTS’ MOTION TO DISMISS AND 9/7/18 ORDER OF
DISMISSAL 1o the parties listed below via the EFP Program, pursuant to the Court’s Electronic
Filing Service Order (Administrative Order 14-2) effective June 1, 2014, via U.S. Mail and via e~
mail:

Steve Eggleston

Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Road
Pilion, England, Post Code: bad 4nx

+44 7801 931682

Theegpmand | l@omail.com
Plaintiff' in Pro Per

13

423




9%030

—
CHEC

«w

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

10/9/2018 12:38 Py
Blaven D, Briarsor
CLER OF THE GO

;3&'—'& Lo,

Nb. A—16-748919-C Dep

IN THE 8™ JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE

i STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK

'EVE EGGLESTON, Plaintiff

q

o

E o LAl 1
BEORGINA STUART: DEPARTMENT OF | C9%¢° L- MMEq)4-¢
FAMILY SERVICES, CHILD SUPPORT

SERVICES, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA; | Depy: Nill
LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN CALLAHAN

Defendants.

E

NOTICE OF APPEAL
Motice is hereby given by Steve Eggleston, plaintiff above named, hereby appeals to the
Supreme Court of Nevada from the order of dismissal entered on the Motion to Dismiss of
Defendants Georgina Stuart and Clark County, Nevada, entered September 7, 2018 (dismissing
“[tthis litigation, without prejudice...” apparently as to all Defendants, including non-moving
Defendants Lisa Callahan and Brian Callahan), and served on plaintiff on September 10, 2018.
Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff, In Pro Per

/s/ Steve Egglesion

Dated: Geiober 9, 2018 Steve Eggleston, plaintiff, In Pro Per
406 Lincoln Avenue
Falls Church, VA 22046
1-760-464-9496
TheEggman4 1 | (@gmail.com

Page 1 of t

Elsotronieally ?ﬂe%

Case Number; A-18-748518-C
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Electronically File
10/9/2018 12:38 P
Steven D. Grierso

CLERK OF THEC
No. A—16-748919-C Depm,

STEVE EGGLESTON, Plaintiff

IN THE 8™ JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE

STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK

Vs~

GEORGINA STUART; DEPARTMENT OF Case: A-1b- T489- ¢

FAMILY SERVICES, CHILD SUPPORT

SERVICES, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA; Qept - VN

LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN CALLAHAN

Defendants.

[u—

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT

. Steve Eggleston is the appellant filing this Case Appeal Statement.

The Judge issuing the Order appealed from is the Hon. Douglas E. Smith.
The sole appellant is Steve Eggleston, in Pro Per, 406 Lincoln Avenue, Falls Church, VA

22046, Phone: 1-760-464-9496, email: TheEggman4 1 l@gmail.com.

The Respondents are Georgina Stuart and Clark County, Nevada, represented by Felecia
Galati, Esq., Nev. Bar No. 007341, of Olson Cannon, Gormley, Angelo & Stoberski,
9950 West Cheyenne Avenue, Las Vegas, NV 89129, Phone: 702-384-4012, email:

fgalati@ocgas.com, and (out of caution) Respondents Lisa and Brian Callahan, 300

Ashley Dr., New Lenox, IL 60451 (out of caution because they did not file a Motion to
Dismiss and have not appeared, but the Order appealed from states “[t]he litigation is
dismissed, without prejudice,” implying that it was dismissed as to all defendants,
including the non-moving defendants who have not appeared in the action and who did
not file any motion to dismiss or otherwise).

The attorney referenced above (Felecia Galati, Esq.) is licensed to practice law in the

State of Nevada. Page 1 of 2

Case Number: A-16-748919-C
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6. Appellant Steve Eggleston acted in Pro Per in the District Court.

7. Appellant Steve Eggleston is acting in Pro Per on this appeal.

8. No in forma pauperis application was filed.

9. The case commenced in the district court when plaintiff filed his Complaint on December
30, 2016.

10. Generally, the case presents claims for section 1983 civil rights violations and state law
torts, stemming from the abduction of his sons, violation of his constitutional rights, and
commission of the torts of defamation and intentional infliction of emotional distress.
The original Motion was a FRCP Rule 12(b)(5) Motion, but it was treated by the district
court judge as a NRCP 12(c) Motion. Though the Motion was brought only by the
Defendants/Respondents Georgina Stuart and Clark County, the Motion was granted
dismissing the action and stating, expressly, that “[t]he litigation is dismissed, without
prejudice,” implying that it was dismissed as to all defendants, including the non-moving
defendants who have not appeared in the action.

11. The case has not previously been the subject of any appeal.

12. This case involves issues of child custody, but not actual child custody.

13. This case has the possibility of settlement.

Dated this 9" day of October, 2018.

Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff, In Pro Per

/s/ Steve Eggleston

Steve Eggleston, plaintiff, in Pro Per
406 Lincoln Avenue

Falls Church, VA 22046
1-760-464-9496

TheEggman4l 1@gmail.com

Pags 2 of 2
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ASTA
IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR
THE COUNTY OF CLARK
STEVE EGGLESTON,

GEORGINA STUART; CLARK COUNTY,
NEVADA,; LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN
CALLAHAN,

Plainiff(s),

VS,

Defendant(s),

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT

1. Appellant(s): Steve Eggleston
2. Judge: David Barker
3. Appellani(s): Steve Eggleston
Counsel:

Steve Eggleston

406 Lincoln Ave.

Falls Church, VA 22046
4. Respondent (s): Georgina Stuart; Clark County, Nevada
Counsel:

Felicia Galati, Esq.

9950 West Cheyenne Ave,
Las Vegas, NV 89129

A-16-748919-C -1-

Case Number: A-16-748919-C

427

Case No: A-16-748919-C
Dept No: VIII

Electronically Filed
10/11/2018 2:46 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COER&




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

26

27

28

Respondent (s): Lisa Callahan; Brian Callahan
Counsel:

Lisa Callahan and Brian Callahan
300 Ashley Dr.
New Lenox, IL 60451

5. Appellani(s)'s Attorney Licensed in Nevada: N/A
Permission Granted: N/A

Respondent(s)’s Attorney Licensed in Nevada: Yes
Permission Granted: N/A

6. Has Appellant Ever Been Represented by Appointed Counsel In District Court: No
7. Appellant Represented by Appointed Counsel On Appeal: N/A
8. Appellant Granted Leave to Proceed in Forma Pauperis**: N/A
**Expires 1 year from date filed
Appellant Filed Application to Proceed in Forma Pauperis: No
Date Application(s) filed: N/A
9. Date Commenced in District Court: December 30, 2018
10. Brief Description of the Nature of the Action: TORT - Other
Type of Judgment or Order Being Appealed: Dismissal
11. Previous Appeal: No
Supreme Court Docket Number(s): N/A
12. Child Custody or Visitation: N/A
13. Possibility of Settlement: Unknown

Dated This 11 day of October 2018,
Steven D. Grierson, Clerk of the Court

/s/ Amanda Hampton

Amanda Hampton, Deputy Clerk
200 Lewis Ave

PO Box 551601

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-1601
(702) 671-0512

cc: Steve Eggleston

A-16-748919-C -2-
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Electronically Filﬁ

10/15/2018 2:33 P
Steven D. Griersof

Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff, In Pro Per CLERK OF THE C
Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Road ' .
Pilton, England, Post Code: ba4 4nx

UK: +44 7801 931682
US: (760) 464-9496

TheEggman41 1@gmail.com
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
STEVE EGGLESTON,
Plaintiff,
CASE NO. A-16-748919-C
-vs- DEPT NO. VIII
GEORGINA STUART; DEPARTMENT OF
FAMILY SERVICES, CHILD SUPPORT REQUEST FOR TELEPHONIC
SERVICES, CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA; APPEARANCE AT HEARING BY
LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN CALLAHAN; PLAINTIFF
AND DOES 1 THROUGH 100, INCLUSIVE, REQUEST FOR COURT
Defendants. REPORTER AT CHAMBERS
HEARING

PLAINTIFF’S REPLY RE MOTION TO RECONSIDER DEFENDANTS® MOTION TO
DISMISS/CONVERT TO SUMMARY JUDGEMENT AND 9/7/18 ORDER

COMES NOW Plaintiff Steve Eggleston, who hereby submits his Reply re his Motion to
Reconsider Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss/Convert to Summary Judgement and 9/7/18 Order of
Dismissal entered thereon. This Reply is based upon the papers, pleadings and records on file
herein, the attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and such oral argument, evidence,

and testimony as the Court may entertain.

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I. INTRODUCTION
In a shocking series of events, Plaintiff has discovered that the Order of 9/7/18 is a fraud
upon Plaintiff and this Court so deplorable as to shake the very foundations of justice. These

circumstances will be recounted here, and the fraud revealed. Plaintiff will invoke the County

Page 1 of 32

Case Number: A-16-748919-C
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Defendants’ own Opposition to comppel (a) the granting of his Motion to Reconsider, and (b) the
denial of Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss for Failure to Exhaust Administrative Remedies.
II. THE SERIES OF EVENTS

A. Early Litigation

Plaintiff sued two sets of Defendants for civil rights violations and state law torts
stemming from the abduction of his sons on January 7, 2016: the County Defendants and the
Callahan Defendants. Originally represented by the District Attorney’s Office, the County
Defendants filed their First Motion to Dismiss heard in July 2017, and the court granted the
Motion with leave to amend. The County Defendants answered, raising 22 shotgun Affirmative
Defenses,' with one notable exception. It specified Plaintiff had failed to exhaust his
administrative remedies prior to filing suit “as required by NRS 41.00366(2).”

The Case Conference was held and NRCP 16.1 Initial Disclosures were made. When
Plaintiff viewed County’s initially disclosed documents, he was surprised at how few documents
were produced relative to what he knew existed. Plaintiff brought to the District Attorney’s
attention, and she indicated there was a “Chinese Wall” barring communication on ethical
grounds between the D.A.’s Office and the Fair Hearing Office, so she did not know what had
been previously produced.

B. The County Destroys Key Evidence

Plaintiff responded by doing a detailed Document Request seeking, among other things,
all handwritten notes of Defendant Stuart for the time period preceding his son’s abduction,
basically 12/1/15 - 1/7/16. At this exact time, the District Attorney’s office abruptly withdrew

from the case without reason or explanation after more than a year of being defense counsel.

! While Affirmative Defenses need not include extensive factual allegations to give fair notice, assertions of legal
conclusions unsupported by facts are not sufficient. Hartford Underwriters Insurance Company v. Kraus USA,
Incorporated, 313 FR.D. 572 (N.D. Cal. 2016).

2 NRS 41.00366(2) embodied a governmental tort claim notice requirement not applicable in section 1983 civil
rights actions, of which this was one.

Page 2 of 32
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Current private defense counsel appeared and junior shareholder Felecia Galati took over
the defense. Galati’s first official act (a letter of 6/14/18) was to request an extension to respond
to Plaintiff’s pending Document Request of the critical handwritten notes of CPS Stuart. These
notes were critical as they would show Plaintiff’s constitutional rights were violated, and that his
sons were criminally abducted by the Callahans with the County’s complicity.

The next weeks involved a series of correspondence in which Plaintiff expressed
frustration at the non-production of these critical Notes. All of these emails are attached as
exhibits, demonstrating Plaintiff’s growing concern over the destruction of evidence. PIf
Affidavit, Reply, Exs. 2-4. |

Galati’s next official act was to inform Plaintiff the notes no longer existed. Every single
note made prior to the abduction of Plaintiff’s sons had somehow vanished into thin air. In other
words, they had all been destroyed in clear violation of the Public Records Act, NAC 239.696-
699, and the required litigation hold®.

Plaintiff was shocked, reacting by sending a second Document Request to show the
Substantiation process was a diversionary sham and that the County Defendants were engaged in
a massive cover-up because (a) they knew they had violated the rights of Plaintiff and his sons,
(b) they knew the abduction was orchestrated by CPS Supervisor Stuart, and (c) they had not
given Plaintiff his constitutionally-required hearing.

Apropos is this: “Our adversarial process is designed to tolerate human failings— erring
judges can be reversed, uncooperative counsel can be shepherded,.and recalcitrant witnesses
compelled to testify. But, when critical documents go missing, judges and litigants alike descend

into a world of ad hocery and half measures—and our civil justice system suffers.” ABA

3 NAC 239.696 provides: A state agency shall establish a records management program which documents its
organization, functions, policies, decisions, procedures and essential transactions. NAC 239.697 provides: The
records management program...must include controls for...distribution of the records...[3]...which allows for the
rapid retrieval and protection of the information contamed within that record...” Emphasis added.

* Glover v. BIC Corp., 6 F.3d 1318, 1329 (9% Cir. 1599£
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Abstract, p. 9, citing United Medical Supply Co. v. United States, 77 Fed. Cl. 257, 259 (Fed. Cl.
2007).

C. Evidence Destroyed, a Second Motion to Dismiss is filed with the design of

creating a diversion and misdirecting the Court.

Poof! Documents gone, Galati’s third official act was to file a Rule 12(b)(5) Motion to
Dismiss the County Defendants® based on the absurd notion that Plaintiff needed to complete a
“Fair Hearing” process’ which: (a) has nothing to do with his son’s abduction, and (b) has
nothing to do with the County’s failure to provide him a pre- or post-removal due process
hearing. With exculpatory documents now destroyed, it was a diversionary tactic.

Notably, the Motion to Dismiss did not invoke the Twelfth Affirmative Defense that
“Plaintiff failed to exhaust his administrative remedies... as required by NRS 41.00366(2).”
Indeed, NRS 41.00366(2), asserting a governmental tort claim notice requirement, had long ago
been rejected for § 1983 cases in Patsy v. Board of Regents of Florida, 457 U.S. 496, 516 (1982)/
Instead, the sole argument was that Plaintiff had failed to exhaust the so-called Fair Hearing
process, a position not alleged in any of the 22 Affirmative Defenses.

The only cases cited by the County Defendants in support of the Motion were Lopez v.
Nevada Dep’t Corr., 127 Nev. 1156, 373 P.3d 937 (2011), citing to Woodford v. Ngo, 548 U.S.
81, 88 (2006), and First Am. Title Co. v. State of Nevada, 91 Nev. 804, 806, 543 P.2d 1334, 1345
(1975), citing to Allstate Ins. Co. v. Thorpe, 123 Nev. 565, 571.

Lopez was a State of Nevada prisoner case bearing no relation whatever to the case at
hand, and Woodford was a case arising under the Prison Litigation Reform Act of 1995 requiring
exhaustion to stem the tsunami of prison cases swamping the federal courts. First Am. Title was

a case requiring taxpayers to exhaust their administrative remedies before seeking tax relief, and

3 Online citation: https://apps.americanbar.otg/abastore/products/books/abstracts/5190497 chapl_abs.pdf.

% This Motion was not brought on behalf of the Callahans, who to this day refuse to Answer and whose default
judgment was to be taken before a jury at the scheduled trial date next summer. NRCP 55(b)(2).

7 It is worth noting that the Court has never even seen this document, whether it exists or has been destroyed, what
time-frame is involved, or what it even says, Page 4 0
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Allstate held doctors with grievances against insurance companies must first invoke the exclusive
jurisdiction of the NDOI. It would be hard to find cases more irrelevant to the issues at hand.

Plaintiff was shocked to receive the Motion given the fact Fair Hearing exhaustion had
never been previously raised and, most profoundly, Attorney Gallati did not cite any of the
leading § 1983 case law on exhaustion. Yet it would be impossible not to be aware of the leading
U.S. Supreme Court’s decision in Patsy, supra, which unequivocally held “that exhaustion of
state administrative remedies should not be required as a prerequisite to bringing an action
pursuant to 1983.”

Plaintiff wrote Gallati a Rule 11 sanctions letter for deliberately not citing leading
authority and pursing a frivolous motion. She ignored this letter. Plaintiff Reply Affidavit, Ex. 5.
Instead, in her brief replying to Plaintiff’s discussion of Patsy and its progeny, Galati wrote,
“Plaintiff’s Opposition completely fails to address the requirement of addressing administrative
remedies...[and, contradicting herself]. .. Plaintiff's reliance on § 1983 cases is misplaced...”

Now, one might hold the view that “all is fair in love and war,” the oft-cited proverb of
Euphues, but a legal proceeding in not supposed to be fought by hook or crook. The ABA speaks
directly to these matters in Model Rule 3.3%: “(a) a lawyer shall not knowingly: (1) make a false
statement of fact or law to the tribunal, (2) fail to disclose to the tribunal legal authority in the
controlling jurisdiction known...directly adverse to the position of the client....” Model Rules of
Professional Conduct ...on Professional Responsibility, Thomas D. Moore and Roland D.
Rotunda (2016 Foundation Press), p. 72. “A lawyer is not required to make a disinterested

exposition of the law, but must recognize the existence of pertinent legal authorities.” Ibid.

Empbhasis added.

D. The Angulo Order Works a Fraud on the Court and a Perversion of Justice
The hearing on the Galati Motion to Dismiss was held on August 28, 2018. Appearing for

the County Defendants was attorney Peter Angulo, who previously had not made a single

8 The ABA Modet Rules serve as guidance in Nevada. Cronin v. District Court, 105 Nev. 635, 639-40, 781 P.2d
1150, 1153 (1989). Page 5 ot 32
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personal appearance in the case or signed any pleading. Ignoring the positions taken in Galati’s
legal briefing, he instead argued there was a sweeping “carve out” to § 1983 claims for
procedural due process violations. Plaintiff did his best to counter this phantom position.

After argument by both sides, the Hon. Judge Smith deferred his ruling. He did not direct
either side to prepare an Order, and did not solicit proposed orders. In fact, earlier in the morning
docket, he had announced he would be gone the entire month of September and would try to rule
on all matters before he left at the end of the week.

Though Plaintiff did not figure this out until the last few weeks, what transpired

thereafter is, to say the least, most disturbing. On September 7, Plaintiff was served with an

Order granting the Motion to Dismiss. The Order purported to be executed on September 6,
while the Judge was gone, by someone with the initials JJ. This was odd enough, but the odder
part was that the Order was not on the Court’s stationary, as was the Order granting the First
Motion to Dismiss brought by the District Attorney’s Office a year earlier.

The Order was on the stationary of Olson, Cannon, Gormley, Angelo, et al., and
moreover, it was submitted by attorney Peter Angelo, who had appeared and argued at the
hearing (“the Angelo Order™), it was not served on Plaintiff, and it was not submitted as a
Proposed Order, in direct violation of LR 7-2(f}.

Plaintiff was quite taken aback when he discovered this, shooting off a series of emails to
Galati asking for an explanation. Plfs Reply Affidavit, Exs. 6-10.

After ignoring the emails for days, Galati finally replied: “Mr. Eggleston, As you know, |
did not attend the hearing. I understand from Mr. Angulo that he received a call from the court
clerk telling him to prepare the order consistent with the argument he made before Judge Smith.
We cannot speak for what the Judge, clerk, etc., did as to signatures, initials, etc.” Plaintiff Reply
Affidavit, Exh. 11.

Upon reading this email, Plaintiff could not believe his eyes. ABA Rule 3.5 expressly

forbid ex parte communications: “A lawyer shall not: *** (a) seek to influence a judge...or other
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official by means prohibited by law; (b) communicate ex parte with such a person during the
proceeding unless authorized to do so by law or court order...” Yet it appeared that this is
exactly what had happened -- not only in the communication, which was disturbing enough
(what party could think they were getting a fair shake in a situation like that?), but in the text of
the Angulo Order itself, as enlightened by Attorney Gallati’s email.

Mr. Angelo did not advise Plaintiff of the Court’s contact. Instead, concealing the
contact, Angelo told Galati to draw up an Order because it was her case. Since she was not at the
hearing, however, so she did not know what Mr. Angelo had argued there. But that didn’t matter,
for she must have taken her instructions as giving her carte blanche to draft anything she wanted.

How do we know this? The answer lies in the language of the submitted Angelo Order, as
unraveled below:

(1) Someone realized that Plaintiff was right. The 12(b)(5) Motion brought by the County
Defendants was untimely as Plaintiff had earlier argued. A motion asserting failure to state a
claim “shall be made before pleading if a further pleading is permitted.” Emphasis added.
Despite this point not being argued at the hearing, the Angelo Order stated in Legal Conclusion
#7: “Although this Motion was brought initially under NRCP 12(b)(5), it is, in essence, a NRCP
12(c) Motion.” But the Court Clerk’s ex parte to Angelo wasn’t, “hey, while you're at it, fix
anything you got wrong, even if you didn’t argue it in your pleadings or at the hearing.”

(2) The Angelo Order included a second item not mentioned in any pleading or argument
at the hearing in Legal Conclusion #11: “Not only is the litigation prematurely brought, the
Court believes there is also a basis for administrative abstention under Buford v. Sun Oil
Company, 319 U.S. 315 (1943).” Assuming Angelo meant Burford, the Court could not have
believed this because he didn’t see it bore JJ signed it. That Plaintiff was never given an

opportunity to address Burford is one thing; the other suggests something stinks in Denmark,
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because the Court Clerk’s ex parte to Angelo was not, “if you run across something else you
like, just stick it in, you know, he’s a stupid pro per and won’t know the difference anyway.””

(3) It is undisputed that Angelo’s firm brought the Motion only for their clients, the
County Defendants, and that’s how the Motion was briefed and argued. Not once anywhere at
any time did anyone suggest the claims of the Callahans could be dismissed. .. until, lo and
behold, the Angelo Order. He viewed the ex parte as license: “while you're at it, just toss out the
whole case. The Plaintiff’ Il never understand it’s a final order and he’ll miss the appeal deadline
and bam, he’s finished, done and dusted. Case closed. Have a nice day.”

Yet the Angelo Order concludes: “IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND
DECREED, the Motion to Dismiss is granted...” with the nail in the coffin: “The lifigation is
dismissed...” Emphasis added. It is amazing that Plaintiff caught this nuance, but he did, filing
his Notice of Appeal at the last moment at a cost of over $800 to preserve his rights.'®

(4) The party didn’t stop there. The Angelo Order cited three cases never previously
argued and to which Plaintiff never had the chance to respond, all in support of the novel
position that, “In the unique case of a Procedural Due Process claim, the litigant asserting a
property or liberty interest violation without due process must first exhaust state remedies...”

Bizarrely, the lead case cited to prove this “carve out” was Morgan v. Gonzalez, 495 F.3d
1084, 1090 n.2 (9" Cir. 2007), a case where Morgan contended his due process rights were
violated when the government reneged on a plea deal in his drug prosecution. Bizarrely, because
the case supports Plaintiff’s position.

Said Morgan: “The government argues that we lack jurisdiction over Morgan's due

process or estoppel claims because he did not raise them before the agency and they are therefore

9 As a general proposition, pro se are given more deference. It is not a license to steal from a blind man. Hale v.
Board of Trustees of So. il Univ. School of Medicine, 219 F.Supp. 3d 860 (C.D. Ill. 2016), Amberg-Blyskal v.
Transportation Sec. Admin., 832 F Supp. 2d 445 (E.D. Pa 2011).

19 Under the current iteration of NRCP 34(b}, it is possible for & judge to certify that a case is final as to one or more
but fewer than all parties to an action, but not as to claims between parties remaining in litigation. This explains the
need to dismiss the whole litigation or certify as directed, Note that taking the appeal does not divest this court of
jurisdiction to decide this Motion for Reconsideration. See Mack-Manley v. Manley, 122 Nev. 849, 138 P.3d 525
(2006). Page 8 of 32
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unexhausted... The agency has no power to grant relief on estoppel or substantive due process

claims, and accordingly, we have never required petitioners to exhaust claims of this nature

before the agency. .. [cases cited]” Id, at 1090. Emphasis added.

A Morgan footnote cites the second case of the Angelo Order, Barron v. Asheroft, 358
F.3d 674, 678 (9" Cir. 2004). There the deportation petitioner failed to “raise an issue before the
BIA™ and thus “failed to exhaust his administrative remedies, which deprives this court of
jurisdiction...” This case tested the jurisdictional limits of the federal Immigration Act and
provided no support to the Angelo Order, either. Per Morgan, “the ‘post-IIRIRA exhaustion
requirement is codified at INA §242(d), 8 U.S.C. §1252(d)’.” Point being, the exhaustion
requirement was expressly mandated by federal statute.

The third case cited in the Angelo Order was Rathjen v. Litchfield, 878 F.2™ 836, 839-40
(5™ 1989). Rathjen reasoned: “Because Dr. Rathjen had a readily accessible administrative

remedy..., this case also appears to fall within the purview of Hudson v. Palmer... The evident

purpose behind the City's employvee grievance procedures is to fucilitate prompt remedies for
i ipioyee grievance procequres is fo facuial mp a

perceived injustices or unfairness... Dr. Rathjen had an adequate post-deprivation remedy...”
Rathjen supports Plaintiff’s position because the Angelo Order concedes the first hearing

offered Plaintiff was August 1, 2017, 20 months after his sons were abducted with County
complicity. (Angelo Order, P 7.)

(5) The divide between argument and Order only get bolder. The Angelo Order stated in
Legal Conclusion #6: “To assert a Section 1983 conspiracy claim, there must be evidence of an
underlying constitutional violation...” citing Radcliffe v. Rainbow Construction Co., 254 F.31
772,773 (9% Cir. 2011).

In Radcliffe, a union rep was subject to a citizen’s arrest for trespass and prosecution for
refusal to leave a job site. He brought civil rights and state tort claims. The Ninth Circuit
reversed the dismissal of his claims, holding: these state law “torts...[are] traditionally held not

to be pre-empted, or [[IED], and defamation, both of which the Supreme Court has held to be
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exempted from Garmon’s pre-emption rule even though they involve conduct arguably protected
or prohibited by the NLRA...” Id, at 785. Emphasis added.

It is hard to imagine that this esteemed Court would knowingly cite Radcliffe to support
an order dismissing Plaintiff’s conspiracy claim for lack of exhaustion, where Radcliffe (a)
involved an NLRA claim, not a child abduction § 1983 civil rights claim, (b) involved a labor-
law pre-emption issue, not administrative exhaustion, and (c) found for the plaintiff on the state
law tort claims, not in favor of dismissal.

(6) Another egregious excess of the Angelo Order exists lies in the Factual Findings
which construe all the facts in Defendants’ favor, in clear contravention of established law to the
contrary on a 12(c) motion for judgment on the pleadings. “...[The facts presented in the
pleadings and the inferences to be drawn therefrom [must be viewed] in the light most favorable
to the non-moving party.” Hanover Ins. Co. v. Urban Outfitters, Inc., 806 F. 3 761 (3™ Cir.
2015).

Angelo Order Factual Finding #2 states: The Complaint alleges [the County]
Defendants...based on an investigation, determined he, along with his wife, had an unsafe
environment for their children.” To the contrary, the FAC complaint [not the Complaint] alleges:

“13. ... No suggestion of any kind was made that any of the children were in any kind of
danger, that there had been any abuse or neglect of any of the children, that Plaintiff being

investigated as being abusive or neglectful, or that he ever had been or was unfit to have

custody over and raise his sons.” Numerous other paragraphs make similar allegations.

Angelo Order Factual Findings #3 and #4 provide: “On January 7, 2015, Plaintiff signed
a temporary Guardianship surrendering custody of his children to...” the Callahan Defendants.
“The Callahans thereafter moved the children from the State of Nevada...” Angelo’s assertions
here are so wild as to suggest he felt his license had expanded to fiction. FAC 26(b) alleges to the
contrary: “(b)...Defendant [] STUART, policemen at her side, entered the Family Home and

announced to Plaintiff... “Either you sign temporary guardianship of all the children over to Lisa
Page 10 of 32
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right now or the police are taking your children into custody right now and you will never see
them again.” Paragraph 26(e) alleges: “...This document was signed under duress by Plaintiff
and never...[and](m) by Nevada law... the guardianship document was void ab initio and never
took legal effect...”

Angelo Order Factual Findings #5 and #6 state: “On February 2, 2015, [DFS] made a
finding of maltreatment against plaintiff... On February 12, plaintiff appealed the substantiated
Finding.” In truth, the words “finding,” “maltreatment,” “appeal,” and “substantiated Finding,”
or words to that effect, appear nowhere in the Complaint or FAC. Further, nowhere in the record
is there any evidence of when, how, where, on what date, or under what circumstances such
asserted maltreatment occurred. For all we know, it may have to do with Mr. Rodriguez, not
Plaintiff, as the initial letter stated.

But most egregious, as regards the Angelo Order’s Factual Findings, is what is wholly
left out. One of the fundamental claims presented by the FAC is that Plaintiff’s sons were
abducted on January 7, 2016, with no emergency and no factual justification whatsoever for
doing so. It is undisputed that a Nevada CPS agent has only has two choices when considering
family intervention: (1) providing voluntary services to help the family or (2) taking court action.

A CPS agent cannot just abduct children or help relatives do so, taking the law into her
own hands. This is not the Wild Wild West. In America there is a Constitution with a Bill of
Rights, and there is the rule of law and integrity in the judicial system. Legal cases cannot
proceed like a Star Chamber.

NRS 432B.360 urges voluntary services where the family is willing, as is expressly
alleged in Paragraph 17 of the FAC. But that’s not what happened. Instead Plaintiff’s boys were
abducted with the County’s active assistance, as alleged. The only other option was immediate
court action. If Stuart felt the children were at imminent risk, she was legally obligated to

petition the Nevada court for legal custody. NRS 432B.390. She didn’t do this.

Page 11 of 32
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On the other hand, if CPS or the police believed that an emergency warranted taking
children into immediate custody, the children must be placed in an emergency shelter, a licensed

foster home, or with relatives. NRS 432B.470._In that case, Nevada law required a hearing to

be held within 72 hours after a child has been taken into protective custody, excluding

weekends and holidays. Offering one 22 months later on another matter isn’t sufficient.

But it’s not just Nevada law that the Angelo Order denigrated. He also denigrated the
federal Constitution, which protects children absent a hearing from the removal of their children
unless the danger to the child is so imminent that prior judicial authorization cannot be had.
Tenenbaum v. Williams, 139 F.3" 581 (2™ Cir. 1999). Defendant offers no evidence of
emergency...because it is nonsense. There was none.

When Plaintiff appealed the letter of February 2, 2015, it wasn’t until August 27, 2015,
nearly seven months later, that a so-called “Finding of Substantiation” (another letter without any]
hearing) was issued. Plaintiff requested an appeal, but Clark County didn’t set a hearing date,
instead abandoning the process. The actual hearing date was not set until 22 months later and had
nothing to do with custody of his sons.

Removing children and providing a hearing in less than 48 hours in an emergency might
not offend the Constitution. Parker v. Austin, 105 F.Supp. 592 (W.D. VA 2015). Providing a
hearing within four days can be justified. Southerland v. City of New York, 680 F.3™ 127 (2™ Cir
2012). But when a sheriff conspires with relatives to remove a child, without a hearing being

provided, it’s a civil rights violation. Brokaw v. Mercer County, 235 F.3 1000 (7 Cir. 2000).

(7) In Factual Finding #18, the Angelo Order states that “the administrative procedure set
forth above and including...a Fair Hearing [offered for the first time 22 months after removal] is
required pursuant to...(CAPTA), Section 106(b)(2)(A)(xi)(11), NRS 432B and Nevada
Administrative Code 432B.170.”

This is such an outrageous misrepresentation of federal and state law as to defy belief that

this esteemed Court would knowingly adopt it in an Order. For starters, CAPTA, Section
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106(b)2)(A)xi)(11), is an improper citation. The proper citation is 42 U.S.C.A. § 5106a(b),
assuming that’s even what Angelo and company intended.

Secondly, there is no Section 106(bX2)(A)(xi)(11), at least not one that the Custodian at
the U.S. Library of Congress Law Library and the clerks at the U.S. Attorney General’s Office In
Washington, D.C., could readily find when Plaintiff made personal visits there. There is,
however, 42 U.S.C.A. § 5106a(b)(2)B)(xi), with no (11).

Assuming § 5106a(b)(2)B)(xi) is what was intended, “the administrative procedure set
forth above up-to [sic] and and including a Fair Hearing™ [set for the first time 22 months after
removal of Plaintiff’s children] is hardly what this section addresses. Indeed, it is so different as
to constitute clear evidence of fraud on this Court.

§ 5106a(b)(2)B)(xi) does not mandate an administrative process for the presentation of
facts that might be civil rights violations for torts. It only addresses grant eligibility, requiring in
(xi): “the cooperation of State law enforcement officials, court of competent jurisdiction, and
appropriate State agencies providing human services in investigation, assessment, prosecution,
and treatment of child abuse and neglect.”

On this record, we have no idea if Nevada has or has not applied for a grant. Moreover,
the section cited was enacted effective May 29, 2017, after the January 2016 abduction. Further,
Nevada has a codified procedure which complies with with the grant provisions of CAPTA. That
procedure is NOT the so-called Fair Hearing process whereby a letter called a Finding is wriiten
by the self-interested CPS worker. To suggest such is laughable.

That proper procedure to qualify for a grant is encapsulated in NRS 432B.390, which
required the County to petition the court before taking child removal actions, and NRS
432B.470, which provides for a hearing within 72 hours of removal’s justified by an emergency.
Offering a hearing 22 months later abrogates the grant requirement and warrants grant denial.

Nothing in CAPTA makes the agency process described by the County Defendants pre-

emptive or exclusive. In all the history of CAPTA, no such requirement could be found at the
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U.S. Library of Congress or Library of Congress Law Library. Indeed, it seems the only “carve
out,” is where a procedural due process claim is based on a federal statute which mandates its
own administrative process for the precise remedy in question (Woodford, supra; Ryans v. New
Jersey Com ‘N For Blind and Visually impaired, 542 F.Supp. 841 (Dt. Ct. N.J. 1982); Booth v.
Churner, 532 U.S. 731, 121 Sup. Ct. 1819 (2001); Porter v. Nussle, 534 U.S. 516, 122 S.Ct. 983
(2002); ¢f Henry A. v. Willden, 678 F.3d 991 (9" Cir. 2012)), none of which supports the
assertion in the Angelo Order.

(8) Factual Finding #19 of the Angelo Order defies comprehension and contains a
deliberate Concealment. It states: “The purpose behind this administrative structure is to afford
Plaintiff a right due process, “which is the right to receive notice of an adverse determination
against [him] and give [him] an opportunity to respond in an orderly proceeding.” First, the
quote has no citation. From whence it comes, one might never know.

More importantly, it makes no sense whatever. Plaintiff’s children were abducted on
January 7, 2016. The pre-removal judicial hearing mandated by NRS 432B.390 was not held.
Nor was a post-removal hearing held by a Court within 72 hours as mandated by NRS 432B.470.
All this discussion by Defendants of a Fair Hearing is a red-herring, a diversionary tactic
fraudulently included in the Angelo Order with the Judge absent and unable to see it.

The Fair Hearing process has nothing to do with the removal of Plaintiff’s children. The
children were taken from the state with the County’s complicity on January 7, 2016. On
November 10, 2016, Plaintiff attempted to resolve his outstanding claims with the County
Defendants as regards the abduction of his sons. [Eggleston affidavit, MFR Exhibit 4, email of
11/10/16.] When he did, he was repeatedly told, “the County didn’t take custody of your sons,”
so there “is nothing the County can do, I'm sorry.”

Plaintiff then filed the instant action, which takes us full circle to the key Factual Finding
#19 which commenced this discussion. The Appeal Notice that accompanied the Substantiation

Letter of August 27, 2016, as quoted in the Angelo Order, stated: “the right to receive notice of
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an adverse determination against you and give you an opportunity to response [sic] in an orderly
proceeding.”

Eureka! That’s where the Finding from — the Notice of Rights on Appeal included with
the Substantiation Letter. But Angelo, rather than executing his obligation to construe the
pleadings and facts in Plaintiff’s favor, materially omitted the next phrase in the Notice, which
appeared in bold black letters: “An administrative reviewed [sic] is not available in cases that
have been substantiated by the court in either a civil or a criminal proceeding.”

Now, one might think, if Angelo did not read the pleadings filed, and Galati did not
attend the hearing, the head might not know what the tail was doing. But it bears repeating. Clark
County’s own Notice stated the Fair Hearing process (a) was not exclusive so as to preclude civil
proceedings (a matter dispositive against the Motion to Dismiss), and (b} was not available *“in
cases that have been substantiated by the court...in...a civil...proceeding. ” Ibid.

As Angelo knew, on June 29, 2015, less than sixty days earlier, a Nevada District Court:
“ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Plaintiff Steve Eggleston is fit and proper
to be designated sole legal and physical custodian of the minor children...fhis sons].”
Request for Judicial Notice, Eggleston v. Battistella, Clark County Case # D-15-508989-P.

Under no circumstances could the finding of a CPS agent or hearing officer change that
judicial determination. [ndeed, recognizing this, by operation of the County’s own Appeal
Notice, the Fair Hearing officer does not have any jurisdiction over the issues of fitness or
custody where a civil court has already acted, as here.

(9) Angelo Order Factual Findings #24 and #25 state that the “remaining claims by
Plaintiff are based on assertions of damages arising from the decision by the [DFS] set forth
above,” and that, [b]y statute the Fair Hearing officer may uphold or overturn the decision by the
[DFS].” Nothing could be more absurd. First, the “decision” is two self-serving letters by people

who work for the DFS that destroyed evidence.
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Secondly, Angelo is hiding in his Order a huge presumption: that the Substantiation
Finding bears on Plaintiff’s right to custody of his children, whether reversed or not. Indeed,
Defendants have not once offered this self-serving letter Finding (which is actually part of a
cover-up) into evidence.

Thirdly, since the County did not petition the Court pre-removal or post-removal, as
required by Nevada and federal constitutional law, the Fair Hearing Officer could not reach the
removal issue which is core to Plaintiff’s civil rights claim. Moreover, the Callahans are integral
to the determination of abduction, but they are not a party to the Fair Hearing process. So how on
God’s green earth could the Fair Hearing Officer decide the tort claims asserted against them in
the appeal of a Finding which did not address them? In Angelo’s zeal to submit an overreaching
Order, he missed the devil in the detail.

Indeed, as but one example, this Finding suggests that Plaintiff’s claims of defamation
against the Callahans could be decided by the Hearing Officer. But how is that so? The
defamation claim is based on the defamatory publication that Plaintiff was unfit. The Finding
and Substantiation do not find this. To the contrary, And a Nevada federal district court judge
aware of the CPS’ action has found Plaintiff fit for legal and physical custody. Indeed, the
Court’s Order contemplated the return of the children to Plaintiff, who would then report to CPS
that he had the children. Plaintiff’s Affidavit, MFR Exhibit 3, Order of Custody, p. 4.

(10) In Legal Conclusion #8, the Angelo Order enters a quagmire. #8 addresses
Plaintiff’s claim for additional discovery in response to the Motion to Dismiss and destruction of
evidence. Angelo here smacks his lips with the predictable observation that “Plaintiff has failed
to establish proper grounds for a continuance. Under NRCP 56(f), a party is required to submit
affidavits opposing the Motion which clearly...indicates facts essential to justify the
opposition...”

Interesting, isn’t it, that here the fox is guarding the henhouse: the attorney for the party

who destroyed evidence is deciding if further discovery is warranted. This is the same attorney
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who filed an improper Rule 12(b)(5) Motion long after answering the FAC, asked that it be
treated alternatively as a summary judgement motion, then re-shuffled the deck in the Angelo
Order by characterizing it as a Rule 12(c) Motion for Judgement. Who’s on first, who’s on
second, and who’s on third. .. are the questions.

One must step back and ask the fundamental question of whether this is even fair play,
invoking the broader due process questions addressed in International Shoe v. Washington, 326
U.S. 310 (1945). Is this what American justice has become? Where a Rule 12(b)(5) Motion to
Dismiss is converted to a Rule 56 Summary Judgement Motion and finally to a FRCP Rule 12
{c) Motion with a FRCP Rule 56 component in an Order written secretly by opposing counsel—-
shouldn’t the trial court bend over backwards to allow discovery to the pro per Plaintiff after
Defendants admit destroying key evidence right before the Motion to Dismiss was brought?

Moreover, we don’t need to reach Rule 56(f) in a motion conversion scenario that’s
spinning like a roulette wheel. When a FRCP 12(c) Motion is converted to a FRCP Motion for
Judgement for Summary Judgment, the opposing party must be given reasonable opportunity to
respond when proper discovery has not been had. Boyle v. Governor’s Veteran's Outreach &
Ass. Ctr., 925 Fed. 2d 71, 18. Fed. R. Serv. 3d 1099 (3d Cir. 1991). Notice and a hearing must be
given in some circumstances. Ibid.

Moreover, a fair opportunity to respond must be given, and the conversion by the court
must be unambiguous. Clay v. Department of Army, 239 Fed. Appx. 705 (3d Cir. 2007).
Newman Oil Co. v. Atlantic Richfield Co., 597 F.2d 275, 27 Fed. R. Serv. 2d 1162 (Temp Emer.

Ct. App. 1979. This is especially so where the non-moving party is not represented by counsel.

Somerville v. Hall, 2 F 3d 1563, 26 Fed. R. Serv. 3d 1378 (1 1* Cir. 1993). See, also, Advanced
Cardiovascular Systems, Inc. v. Scimed Life Systems, Inc., 988 F.2d 1157 (Fed. Cir. 1993).
Additional clarification of the Angelo Order and/or and discovery could easily prove all

of the Motions involved here should be denied and discovery allowed, for the following reasons:
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(1) The only evidence offered in support of the 12(b)(5) incantation was the Hammock
declaration. This declaration is extrinsic evidence and cannot be considered in a 12(b)5) motion
to dismiss or 12(c) Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings. Thus, since the Fair Hearing
administrative process is not mentioned in the FAC, the Motion must be denied.

(2) If the Motion is treated as one for summary judgement, extrinsic evidence may be
considered, but only after fair notice. Since the Hammock declaration is the only evidence
offered to meet the County’s burden under Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, Inc., 477 U.S.242,106 S.
Ct. 2505, 106 S.Ct. 2505 (1986), the burden is not met. It fails to prove the Fair Hearing process
involves any of the issues at stake in the abduction. Because the Court must construe all
inferences in Plaintiff*s favor, a Summary Judgement Motion must be denied..

(3) A deposition of Hammock will show that declaration lacks foundation and thus does
not support the County’s moving burden under Liberty Lobby. She does not have personal
knowledge of anything she averred her statements are objectionable, inadmissible hearsay.

(4) A Hammock deposition will further show that the declaration is highly misleading, if
not fraudulent. In Paragraph 5 it states Plaintiff requested a Fair Hearing on 9/9/15 and in
Paragraph 6 it states the hearing was originally scheduled for 8/1/17 “at Plaintiff’s request.” The
misleading implication is that the delay of nearly two years was caused by Plaintiff. Her
deposition will show that the date was one selected from three dates given to plaintiff only weeks
earlier, and that her office abandoned the hearing and is responsible for the 22 month delay.

(5) The deposition of County employee CCDFS Legal Unit Supervisor Ms. Devon Butts
will further prove the delay was occasioned by the County, not Plaintiff, that the Notice on the
Appeal prohibited the Hearing Officer from determining custody, damages, or Plaintiff’s fitness
to raise his sons, i.e., the issues involved in the FAC, that the County dropped the hearing,
creating a waiver and/or estoppel, and that the Fair Hearing office colluded with the Angelo firm
in breach of the Chinese Wall to deprive Plaintiff of his constitutional rights. Further specifics

are demonstrated in the emails attached to Plaintiff’s supporting declaration.
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(6) The Angelo Order states that “Hammock was identified by Plaintiff himself in an
early case disclosure filed in April-of 2018.” This assertion is both outrageous and false. There is
no other legal case. There was the Fair Hearing process, but the only way for Angelo to know
that is to have unethically breached the Chinese Wall. Further, that Hammock was on a list of 50
plus witnesses only proves the point that her deposition is required, because no depositions have
been taken in the current case. Deposition discovery was waiting for production of the
documents that were revealed to be destroyed just before the Motion to Dismiss was filed.

VI. Conclusion

The tragedy is that the Angelo Order was signed without the Judge or Plaintiff ever
seeing it, as it so demonstrably exceeds the scope of his commission as to question the integrity
of the entire judicial process. Its submission smacks, not just of overreaching, but utter bad faith,
fraud and breach of basic ethics. And the amount of grief, heartache, hardship, and cost to
Plaintiff and his family that could have been sparred by basic decency and honesty, is hard to
fathom. The Court should not only reconsider the Angelo Order, it should reverse the dismissal
and enter judgement in Plaintiff’s favor as a matter of law

Dated: October 14, 2018 Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff, In Pro Per

/s/ Steve Eggleston

Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff, In Pro Per
Goose Hall, Bourne Farm, East Town Road
Pilton, England, Post Code: ba4 4nx

UK: +44 7801 931682

US: (760) 464-9496
TheEggman4]1@gmail.com

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE
I hereby certify that [ am the plaintiff in this action and on the 15" day of October, 2018,
I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION
TO DISMISS OF DEFENDANTS CLARK COUNTY AND GEORGINA STUART, by
emailing the same to the following recipient. Service of the foregoing document by email is in

lieu of service via official post. Page 19 of 32
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Felecia Galati, Esq.
OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY
9950 West Cheyenne Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89129
Phone: 702-384-4012
fgalati@ocgas.com
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EXHIBIT “1”

Supporting Affidavit of Plaintiff Steve Eggleston

Steve Eggleston, being first duly sworn, deposes and states:

1. T am the plaintiff in in this case and submit this affidavit in support of the MOTION
TO RECONSIDER COURT’S 9/7/18 ORDER OF DISMISSAL/COVERSION TO
SUMMARY JUDGEMENT.

2. Except where stated, the facts and inferences set forth in this Reply are true to my own
personal knowledge, as I am in pro per and wrote them (they are not repeated for brevity, but are
incorporated verbatim herein along will all emails and documents attached to the Motion and this|
Reply.)

3. Attached as Exhibit “2” to this Reply is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s email to
Attorney Galati dated and sent on Wednesday, July 25, 2018.

4. Attached hereto as Exhibit “3” to this Reply is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s
email to Attorney Galati dated and sent on Thursday, July 26, 2018.

5. Attached hereto as Exhibit “4” to this Reply is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s
email to Attorney Galati dated and sent on Friday, August 3, 2018, 10:22 AM.

6. Attached hereto as Exhibit ““5 to this Reply is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s
email to Attorney Galati dated and sent on Friday, August 3, 2018, 1:25 PM.

7. Attached hereto as Exhibit “6” to this Reply is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s
email to Attorney Galati dated and sent on Friday, August 3, 2018.

8. Attached hereto as Exhibit “7” to this Reply is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s
email to Attorney Galati dated and sent on Friday, October 5, 2018.

9. Attached hereto as Exhibit “8” to this Reply is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s

email to Attorney Galati dated and sent on Saturday, October 6, 2018.

Page 21 of 32

449



10

"

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

10. Attached hereto as Exhibit “9” to this Reply is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s
email to Attorney Galati dated and sent on Monday, October 8, 2018.

11. Attached hereto as Exhibit “10” to this Reply is a true and correct copy of Plaintiff’s
email to Attorney Galati dated and sent on Tuesday, October 9, 2018.

12. Attached hereto as Exhibit “11” to this Reply is a true and correct copy of Attorney
Galati’s email to Plaintiff dated and received on Wednesday, October 10, 2018.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAITH NAUGHT.

Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff in pro per

/s/ Steve Eggleston
Date: October 14, 2018

Steve Eggleston
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10/15/2018 Gmail - Eggleston v. Clark County

M Gma“ Steve Eggleston <theeggmand11@gmail.com>
Eggleston v. Clark County
Steve Eggleston <theeggmand 11@gmail.com> : Wed, Jul 25, 2018 at 2:55 PM

To: Felicia Galati <fgalati@@ocgas.com> -
Bec: Cindy Landeen / RockGodz Hall of Fame <cjlandeen@gmail.com>, John Neyer <jhneyer13@gmail.com>,
Dana Amma Day Dana <dana@positivetv.tv>, Ryder David Eggleston <ryderdavid2010@gmail.com> :

Dear Ms. Galati,
Thank you for this production, but several questions remain:

1. Have you produced any other documents yet? If not, you can emai! them
here or snail-mail them to me in Falls Church, Virginia, where I intend to
move my boys once they are returned. I am here now, arranging details,
among other things. ' | ‘

2. Do you agree to my proposed revisions to your PTO? If :nc'n‘; do You
intend to submit a counter? If not, I will file go ahead and file my MTC.

3. As T suspected, Stuart and the County have destroyed, deleted, and/or
failed to preserve virtually all key original notes and documents, as
suggested by their Third Supplement Disclosure. This raises serious
concerns under cases like GN Netcom, Inc. v. Plantronics, Inc., No. 12-
1318-LPS, 2016 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 93299 (D. Del. July 12, 2016) [$3

million sanction]. I am just now pondering the implications. In this same
connection, are you saying no emails were preserved either?

Looking forward to your response.

Sincerely, Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff in pro per

[Quoted text hidden]

;u:ve Eggleston, J.D., aka 'gge Egpman
e PIE Exhihd “2"

SteveEgglestonWrites.com
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10/15/2018 Gmat! - Eggleston v, Clark County

M Gmail Steve Eggleston <theeggmand11@gmail.com>
Eggleston v. Clark County
Steve Eggleston <theeggman411@gmail.com> | Thu, Jul 26, 2018 at 2:39 PM

To: Felicia Galati <fgalati@ocgas.com> :
Bee: Ryder David Eggleston <ryderdavid2010@gmail.com>

Hi Ms. Galati,

T have a conflict on 9/11, but will agree to continue the hearing to a date
after that. -

T usually use June's legal to serve pleadings and documents, but thank you
for the suggestion. I do remember trying to do this once before, and for
some reason I was prevented from doing so. Hopefully I won't e.ncoun*rer
the same problem this time.

I will be setting depositions to precede the hearing on your MTD, so please
pick a date that allows for 3-5 days of deposition days preceding the
hearing.

Have you produced (or do you plan to produce) any other documents'in
response to the Document Request (other than the few produced via email
the other day)? If not, I will schedule my Motion to Compel for the same
date as your Motion to Dismiss and my FRCP Rule 11 motion. '

Please consider this my 21-day notice under FRCP Rule 11 to withdraw your
Motion to Dismiss. Here are a few of the many reasons the motionis
frivolous, unreasonable, and brought in bad faith:

1. For decades (since 1982) it's been well-established that exhaustion of
state administrative remedies is not a prerequisite fo an action under

section 1983. The Supreme Court's decision in Patsy v. Board of Regents
is black letter law, you don't even cite it, you don't distinguish it or cite

PIf Expibit 3" )

mym.mmmmmmmmmimnsoazumrwmphm-amm... 13
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10/15/2018 Gmall - Eggleston v. Clark County

any case to support your position, and you don't make any argument (good
faith or otherwise) to overturn Patsy at the Nevada trial court level.

2. State law torts for conspiracy to abduct, defamation, and intentional
infliction of emotional distress do not have administrative remedies via the
Nevada child welfare procedures. To my knowledge, no case in Nevada or
under any other similar state system have ever so held, and you don't cite
to one.

3. The FH process does not provide a remedy in damages or the injunctive
relief for torts or civil rights violations. On its face, the doctrine has no
application, and again, you don't cite any supporting case law to support
your novel position. None of the cases you do cite is even remotely relevant
to this civil rights and ancillary torts case.

4. Your client has already filed a motion to dismiss, the complaint was
amended, and no new motion was filed. Clearly you are seeking to file a
summary judgment motion via the guise of a motion to dismiss based on
alleged facts outside the complaint that are not matters of public record
or of which the court can take judicial notice. Moreover, most of the
documents you refer to are evidentiary, hotly disputed or downright
fraudulent, also constituting rank, inadmissible hearsay.

5. Because your motion could only proceed as a motion for summary
judgment procedurally, it is prejudicial and premature because many of the
facts asserted all in dispute, will be discredited by documents the county
has destroyed for refuses to produce, or depositions that have not been
taken.

If after 21 days the Motion has not been withdrawn, I will file a Motion
under Rule 11 for appropriate monetary and issue preclusion sanctions to
be held on the new date of the hearing for the Motion to Dismiss.
Hopefully known of these motions will be necessary and you will drop the
motion.and produce the documents. :-)

PIf Exhibit '3 CaB

hitps:/imall.google.convmatiuw07ik=dB8d39aas8view=ptisearch=ali&penmmsgid=mseg-a%3As%3AI 1231873037 142704478simplemsg-a%3As%3A3... 273
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™M Gmail

Eggleston v. Clark County

Gmall - Eggleston v. Clark County

Steve Eggleston <theeggmand11@gmail.com>

Steve Eggleston <theeggman411@amail
To: Felicia Galati <fgalaﬁ@oogag s.o?ni alcom> A3, 2018 at 10:22 AM

Bee: Ryder David Eggleston <ryderdavid2010@gmail.com>

Hi Ms. Galati, I'm still looking for your position on the PTO, and also
wondering if you intend to further amend your Document Response to
provide verified updated responses confirming the position that you have
aiready produced all documents and don't have any more to produce. Also,
despite having generally produced some records before, neither the
County nor Ms. Stuart produced the documents in the categories
requested or as maintained in the ordinary course of business, thus
obscuring the foundation, dates of entrees, and authorship of the
documents produced...or, for that matter, whether the documents
produced are official records, altered records, or fraudulent records.
Thank you. Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff in pro per

{Quoted text hidden]

PIf Exhit "%’

el cooale. commaliu07k=G19d30sadéview=ptasearchaall8permmegi=msg-a% 3As % 34-65088646310245039 188 simpl=msg-o
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101152018 Gmall - Further NRCP Rule 11 S8anclions — Demand and Specifity

M Gmall Steve Eggleston <theeggman411@gmail.com>

Further NRCP Rule 11 Sanctions -- Demand and Specifity

Steve Eggleston <theeggman411@gmail.com> Fri, Aug 3, 2018 at 1:25 PM
To: Felicia Galati <fgalati@ocgas.com>

Bec: Cindy Landeen / RockGodz Hall of Fame <cjlandeen@gmail.com>, John Neyer <jhneyer13@gmail.com>,
Dana Amma Day Dana <dana@positivetv.tv>

Dear Ms. Galati,

The current Motion to Dismiss based on administrative non-exhaustion
is not well taken and warrants serious sanctions if not withdrawn, Set
forth here are additional grounds (there are more) proving beyond doubt
that the Motion is unreasonable and should be withdrawn o avoid Rule 11
sanctions. These grounds are set forth in detail to provide you specific
knowledge of the basis for the sanctions that will be requested (striking
defenses, issue preclusion, etc.):

A. The Motion is untimely.

Under NRCP Rule 12(a)(1), “A defendant shall serve an answer within 20 days after being

served with the summons and complaint...” Under NRCP Rule 12(b)(5), a motion to dismiss based on
“failure to state a claim upon which relief can be granted...shall be made before pleading..."”

The County Defendants filed a 16(b) Motion to Dismiss against Plaintiff’s original
complaint in the summer of 2017. The Motion was granted in pﬁrt, allowing Plaintiff leave to
amend. Plaintiff timely filed his First Amended Complaint and the County Defendants answered,
raising numerous affirmative defenses, including failﬁre to exhaust administrative remedies.

The thﬁe to file a 16(b)(5) Motion to Dismiss has long past. No justification for the
untimely filing of such a Motion, or the assertion of an exception to this b]ackletter, well-
established state prooedural rule is even attempted. Accordingly, the Motlon must be denied.

B. It’s blackletter law that section 1983 motions (and ancillary torts) do not mqmre

exhaustion of administrative remedies, even if the Motion were timely and such remedies existed.

Plf Exhibit "5" Q)

hitps:/fmall.google.com/malliu0?ik=dfo9d39aag8view=ptésearch=all&permmsgid=msg-a%3As% IA6 37625120815651677 Ssimpl=msg-a%3As%IAE3...
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10/16/2018 Gmall - Further NRCP Rule 11 Sanctions — Demand and Specifity
It is well-established that exhaustion of state administrative remedies is not a

prerequisite to an action under section 1983. The Supreme Court's decision in Patsy v. Board of
Regents 457 U.S. 496 (1982) laid the matter to rest and has now been black letter law for decades. The
Motion parties don't even cite this case, much less distinguish it or make an argument why Patsy should be
reversed by a state trial court.

The Supreme Court did not stop with Patsy. Six years later it held that, while a state may

neutrally apply state procedural rules to section 1983 actions, it may not do so in a way that
burdens or frustrates such claims. Felder v. Casey, 487 U.S. at 141 (1988) [Wisconsin’s four-
month claim statute inapplicable to section 1983 actions].

Factors considered are: (a) whether the requirement “is entirely absent from civil rights
litigation in federal court,” (b) whether the factor would “predictably produce different outcomes
in federal civil rights litigation based solély on whether the litigation takes place in federal or state
court,” and (c) whether the factor is only one that protects “government defendants and thus -
conditions the right to bring suit against the very person and entities that Congress intended to
subject to liability.” Felder, supra, at 141, 145.

Here all these factors are satisfied by any application of a “Fair Hearing” administrative
exhaustion that is clearly inapplicable to federal court, would produce différent cutcomes in state
and federal courts, and as applied would protect the County defendants from the very
unconstitutional conduct that Congress intended to subject to liability. According, on the force of
Felder alone, this untimely, ill-begotten, if not bizarre Motion must be denied.

But that’s not all. The U.S. Supreme court has further spoken in Howlett v. Rose, 496 US.
356 (1990, 369, holding that a state’s sovereign immunity rules do not apply to section 1983 |
actions broﬁght in state court. And in Martinez v. California, the court held a state’s statutory
immunity statute could not be applied to a section 1983 claim despite the fact it had been asserted
in state court, - |

Under the Supremacy Clause of the U.S. Constitution, a state may not employ its

jurisdictional rules so as to nullify a federal right “because of disagreement with its content or a

refusal to recognize the superior authority of its source. Howlett, supra, 371, 374, See also Arnold

PIT Behibit "5" (3)

hitps:/imail.google.com/mall/u/0?lk=df99d30as98 viewspts
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10/15/2018 Gmall - Plaintiffs Document Request

| M Gmail | ‘Steve Eggleston <theeggmand11@gmail.com>

Plaintiff's Document Request

Steve Eggleston <theeggmand11@gmail.com> |  Frl, Aug3, 2018 at 1 14 PM

To: Felicia Galati <fgalati@ocgas.com>
Bec: Cindy Landeen / RockGodz Hall of Fame <cjlandeen@gmail com>, John Neyer <jhneyer1 a@gmaﬁ com>,

Dana Amma Day Dana <dana@positivetv.tv>

Dear Ms. Galati,

In addition to the points previously made, pléase condider the following as
pertains to the woefully inadequate production of documents in this case:

1. CC 025 is CPS Referral Summary regarding Laura Rodriguez (not
Plaintiff). It references a date of 12/22/14, 1643346. Is this a mistake?
Did you intend to produce a document referencing Plaintiff? Please
confirm.

2. CC 028 is blank. Please confirm in the Document Response that the-
document in all its incantations (original and any copies) is blank, or
produce the non-blank document. If you contend it is blank, why was it
numbered and produced? Conversely, please produce the un- -
redacted document. o

3.CC 027 appears 1o be altered and clearly has be.en r'edoc’re.d in mul'ﬂple
spots, P e

3a. Missing entirely is the sections that answers the question, "1. What is
the extent of child maltreatment?" When Hunter fell into the pool, this
was answered and it was concluded there was no maltreatment. It's been -
deleted here. Please produce this deleted (not even redacted) section.

3b. Missing entirely is the section that answers the question, “2. What are
the circumstances surrounding the child maltreatment?" When Hunter fell

into the pool, this was answered and it was concluded again there was no
PIf Exhibit "&" ()

https://mall.google.comvmalu/0 Ak=co9d 39aa08view=ptSsesrch=all&permmegid=msg-a%3As% 3A-80752773863437081528simplemag-a%3As%3A-... 172
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101512018 Gmall - Plaintif's Document Request

maltreatment. It's been deleted here. Please produce this deleted section
(again, not even redacted, but made to look like it does not exist).

3c. Question 5 of this form states: "WHAT ARE THE GENERAL |
DISCIPLINARY PRACTICES IN THIS FAMILY?" After a short answer,a
second question states: "What would the source like to see happen?" The
entire answer it blacked out and redacted. Please produce this unredacted
portion.

3d. Other blacked-out redactions are set forth on this page. All need to be
produced Likewise,

4. There are many other redactions in the produced documents that need
to be produced. See CC 003, 004 (which appear to be all the notes related
to Plaintiff as related to his interview the day before Christmas on
12/24/14 and thus could not possibly be privileged), 008, 009, 010, 011,
012, 013, 015, 017, 019, 020, 022, 023, 028, 029, 032, 034 (another
entirely blank document), 035, 036, 039, 040, 041, 042, 043, 044, 045,
046, 047, 048, 049, 052, 053 054, 055 056, 057, 061, 062, 064.

Obviously much of this is being withheld because it vmdlcafes Plamhff
impeaches Defendants, or blocks discovery of essential information
needed to obtain a fair trial. If all of this information is not produced
forthwith, and/or the specific information identified by a protected
specific category (e.g., private phone number or social security number), I
will move to compel and will seek sanctions, including issue preclusion
sanction and possibly even striking of the Answer given the collective
seriousness of the discovery abuses and frivolous Motion to Dismiss.

Sincerely, Steve Eggleston, Plaintiff in pro per
[Quotsdmd_ﬂd@enl
- : 1 S
PIF Exhibit "0 ¢2)
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M Gmall Steve Eggleston <theeggmand11@gmail.com>

Minute Order on Motion to Dismiss

Steve Eggleston <theeggman4 11@gmail.com> Fri, Oct 5, 2018 at 10:13 PM
To: Felicia Galati <fgalati@ocgas.com>

Bee: Cindy Landeen / RockGodz Hall of Fame <cjlandeen@gmail.com>, Ryder David Eggleston
<ryderdavid2010@gmail.com>

Dear Ms. Galati,

I assume the Court provided your office a copy of the Minute Order from
which you faithfully prepared the Order of Dismissal that you in turn
served on me. I note this because the Order is on your firm's submitted
stationary. No copy of that Minute Order was provided to me. Can you
please provide me a copy of the exact Minute Order provided by the Court
to you, or indicate to me that you were not provided such a Minute Order?
Thank you.

Steve Eggleston, in pro per

Steve Egpleston, ].D., aka The Eggman
Mobile: +44 (0)7801931682
TheEggman4 11@gmail.com
SteveEgglestonWrites.com

Founder/CEO, Eggman Global
www.EggmanGlobal.com
Facebook.com/EggmanGlobal
Twitter.com/EggmanGlobal

The Eggman Theme Song:
www.youtube.com/watch?v=CvERHITix8w

Disclaimer: The contents of this &mﬂmmgehdudhgmyaﬁadmenb&emhmyhdudepmmdinfomﬁmmlthmepmpwﬂ
SteveEgglmon.Theinﬁommﬁonisimendedformw&mdeMMithndm.mdmmmmm
wi:omtheaddmsseemaysharetheoonm,mdforwhomtheaddmmpﬂﬁ;ﬂmmﬂbﬂity,mhmbymﬁﬁedﬂmuydndm

eopylng.dism'buﬁonoruseofmyuﬁheinﬁomﬁonwnumedinthisa-maﬂismicﬂyﬂomsm.mmofﬂ:kinm:ﬁoninme
furtherance of an wgﬁngtmmﬁmuuﬁsﬁmwﬂahrﬁmwntwﬁhsmwmmnmmemlympﬁmmmm

Pl bt "7
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M Gmall Steve Eggleston <thesggmand11@gmail.com>

Minute Order on Motion to Dismiss

Steve Eggleston <theeggman4d11@gmail.com> Sat, Oct 6, 2018 at 4:57 PM
To: Felicia Galati <fgalati@ocgas.com>
Bcc: Ryder David Eggleston <ryderdavid2010@gmeil.com>

Dear Ms. Galati,

I have a follow-up question as well. The Judge stated he would be on
vacation for the month of September, so did someone with the initials JJ
sign the Order? And if so, what does JJ stand for, and, if someone with
the initials JJ signed the Order, in what capacity did JJ do so? My
understanding, based on my inquiries, is that I'm entitled to know this
information since the Judge took the matter under submission and did not
rule one way or the other at the hearing.

Thank you. Steve Eggleston, in pro per

[Quoted text hidden)

PIH Exhibit “G"
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M Gmall Steve Eggleston <theeggmand11@gmail.com>

Minute Order on Motion to Dismiss

Steve Eggleston <theeggmand11@gmail.com> Mon, Oct 8, 2018 at 5:21 PM
To: Felicia Galati <fgalati@ocgas.com>

I was hoping to get answers from you before calling the Court Clerk and
seeking an explanation from her. Can I please have answers to my questions
at your earliest convenience? I am hoping there is a simple explanation
that will clarify things. Thank you so much. Regards, Steve Eggleston, in
pro per

[Quoted text hidden]

Plf Bt 9"
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M Gmail - Steve Eggleston <theeggmand11@gmail.com>

Minute Order on Motion to Dismiss

Steve Eggleston <theeggmand11@gmalicom> " Tue, Oct9, 20182t 7: 52 PM

To: Felicia Galati <fgalati@ocgas.com>

Bec: Cindy Landeen / RockGodz Hall of Fame <cj!andaen@gmail com>, John Neyer <jhneyer1 3@gmail.com>,

Ryder David Eggleston <ryderdavnd2010@gmail com>

Dear Ms. Galati, I am still trying to understand how the Order granting
your Motion to Dismiss came about, Here is my understanding of the
sequence of events: :

1. On August 28, the hearing was held on the Motion o Dismiss of
defendants Stuart and Clark County before the Hon. Douglas E. Smith.
2. After argument by both parties, the Court took the matter under
submission. He did not rule on the Motion, did not direct either side to
prepare an Order (because he had not yet ruled), and did not solicit
proposed orders from either party.

3. During the course of the morning calendar, the Judge announced
publically that he would be gone the entire month of September and would
try to rule on all matters by the end of the week before he left.

4. After he left, on September 7, your of fice served on me an order
granting the Motion to Dismiss that purported to be a/ executed on
September 6, and b/ signed by someone whose initials were JJ. In other
words, somebody named JJ signed the order despite there being no public
record of the court having ruled. Maybe JJ thought the court had
instructed your firm to submit the order, but the court did not do so in
court and there is no minute order.

5. I presume there was no ex parte communication between your office
and the Court, so the question is why and how the order was entered on
your office's legal stationery. The is unlike the earlier order granting
defendants' motion (last year) that was on the court's stationery.

6. There is no Minute Order entered on the case docket (again, unlike the
order), so there is no Minute Order to which an Order prepared by your

office could conform. P1f Exhet 10" Ci)
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1oMs2018 Gmall - Minute Order on Molion to Disimiss
7. If your office did submit a proposed Order to the Court, the question
arises as to why? The further question arises as to why you did not submit
that proposed Order to me for review and inform me of your intention,
8. The inference could be drawn that your firm submitted the order when
the judge was on vacation without notifying me with the expectation the
clerk would just sign it, being none the wiser.
9. Hopefully that is not the cdse, and I will presume there is a simple
explanation for this. That is why Iam bemg persus’ren'r wﬂ-h my questions
and hoping for clarification.
10. Another odd aspect arises as to the wording of the Order. Despite the
Motion being made only by the County defendants, it states at the end
that the entire litigation is dismissed. By doing this, the Order appears to
constitute a findl order, which required me to appedl the Order. Boy
howdy, but it sure would have been easy to miss that, don’t you think?

I would appreciate some clar'lflcahon on the above. Thank you. Steve
~ Eggleston, Plaintiff

[Quoted text hidden)

PIf Exhibit " 10" &)
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EXHIBIT “11”

(Felicia Galati Email, Minute Order on Motion to Dismiss, Wed, Oct 10, 2018 at 5:33 PM)

Page 32 of 32
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10/M5/2018 Gmail - Minute Order on Motion to Dismiss

M Gmall - | Steve Eggleston <theeggmah411@gﬁﬁli.§om>

Minute Order on Motion to Dismiss

Fellcia Galati <fgalati@ocgas.com> o Wed, Oct 10, 2018 at 5:33 PM

To: Steve Eggleston <theeggman411@gmail.com>

Mr. Eggleston,

As you know, | did not attend the hearing. | understand from Mr. Angulo that he received a call from the court
clerk telling him to prepare the order consistent with the argument he made before Judge Smith. We cannot
speak for what the Judge, clerk, etc., did as to signatures, initials, etc.

Felicia Galati, Esq., Shareholder

Olson, Cannon, Gormley, Angulo & Stoberski
9950 West Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89129

PH: 702-384-4012

FX: 702-383-0701

Privileged and Confidential

This email, including attachments, is intended for the person{s) or company named and may contain
confidential and/or legally privileged information. Unauthorized disclosure, copying or use of this -
information may be unlawful and is prohibited. This email and any attachments are believed to be free
of any virus or other defect that might affect any computer into which it is received and opened, and it
is the responsibility of the recipient to ensure it is virus free, and no responsibility is accepted by Olson,
Cannon, Gormley, Angulo & Stoberski, for any loss of damage arising in any way from its use. If you
have received this communication in error, please immediately notify the sender at 702-384-4012, or by
electronic emall.

From: Steve Eggleston [mailto:theeggman411@gmail.com]
Sent: Monday, October 08, 2018 2:21 PM
To: Felicia Galati A /)
Subject: Re: Minute Order on Motion to Dismiss ]
I Expbi ¥ "1

hitpe/mal.google.comVmaiiuw 7ik=dfg0d30aadsview=piSssarch=allépermmegidameg-19%3A1613575724389884777 8aimpl=msg-fH3A16138757243...
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FELICIA GALATI, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 007341

OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY
ANGULO & STOBERSKI

9950 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vepas, NV 89129

Phone: 702-384-4012

Fax: 702-383-0701
fpalatid@oceas.com

Attorneys for Defendants
CLARK COUNTY and GEORGINA STUART

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVE EGGLESTON,

PlaintifT,

v. Date of Hearing: 10/22/18

GEORGINA STUART; CLARK COUNTY,
NEVADA; LISA CALLAHAN; BRIAN
CALLAHAN; AND DOES | THROUGH 100,
INCLUSIVE,

Defendants.

DEFENDANTS CLARK COUNTY AND GEORGINA STUART’S MOTION

CASE NO. A-16-748919-C
DEPT. NO. VIII

Time of Hearing: In Chambers

Electronically Filed
10/18/2018 10:03 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERS OF THE 6025

TO STRIKE PLAINTIFF'S REPLY TO DEFENDANTS® OPPOSITION TO

MOTION TO RECONSIDER DEFENDANTS® MOTION TO DISMISS AND 9/7/18

ORDER OF DISMISSAL

COME NOW Defendants CLARK COUNTY
(“Defendants’), by and through their attorney FELICIA GALATI, ESQ. of the law firm
OLSON, CANNON, GORMLEY, ANGULO & STOBERSKI, and hereby move to strike

Plaintiff®s Reply 1o Defendants” Opposition to Motion to Reconsider Defendants’ Motion 1o

Case Number: A-16-748919-C
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Dismiss and 9/7/18 Order of Dismissal. This Motion is made and based upon all papers,
pleadings and records on file herein, the attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and

such oral argument, testimony and evidence as the Court may entertain,

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I
INTRODUCTION
Plaintif’s “reply” improperly attempts to raise issues not directly found in the initial
molion seeking reconsideration and, therefore, is improper. It is late-filed in violation of
EDCR2.20. Moreover, it is a work of fiction, rife with spurious and unduly inflammatory
staternents unbecoming a filing before this Court. Finally, it fails to advance the cause of why
reconsideration should be compelled in this matter.
I,

A REPLY MUST BE LIMITED TO ISSUES RAISED IN THE ORIGINAL MOTION

As this Court is well aware, it has long been the rule that arguments raised for the first

time in a Reply need not be considered by the Courl, Francis v. Wynn Las Vegas, LLC, 127

Nev. 657, 671 n.7, 262 P.3d 705, 715 n.7 (2011). The reason for this is simple, to the extent that
a party raises a new argument or proffers new evidence and information in a reply brief, that
argument or evidence is improper because the opposing party is deprived of an opportunity to

respond. Tovar v. United States Postal Service, 3 F.3d 1271, 1273 n, 3 (9th Cir. 1993).

Therefore, the court cannot consider new evidence provided in a reply when the other party does
not have an opportunity 1o respond to the evidence. Provenz v, Miller, 102 F.3d 1478, 1483 (9th

Cir.1996).
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In this case, Plainti{f has raised issues which were never broached in the original Motion
for Reconsideration. Accordingly, the Reply is an affront and should be stricken in its entirety.
I,

NRCP 12(f) MANDATES THIS DOCUMENT BE STRICKEN

For almost a century, courts in this state have made it clear that filings with the Court
should stay within proper bounds of pleading. To this end, filings that are deemed (o be
scandalous, impertinent, immaterial or redundant are subject to being stricken. NRCP 12(f);

Wainwright v. Dunseath, 46 Nev, 361, 211 P, 1104, 1109 (1923). While, admittedly, Motions to

Strike are generally disfavored, Caring v. Franklin Mint Co,, 24 F. Supp. 2d 1013, 1037 (C.D.

Cal, 1998), when “it is clear that the matter to be stricken could have no possible bearing on the

Central Life Ins. Co., 814 F. Supp. 820, 830 (N.D. Cal. 1992).

"“Immaterial’ matter is that which has no essential or important refationship to the claim for relief

or the defenses being pleaded.” 5 Wright & Miller, Federal Practice and Procedurg Section 1382

at 706-07 (1990). “Impertinent’ matter consists of statements that do not pertain, and are not

necessary, 1o the issues in question.” Id. at 711. Such items, for example, as superfluous

historical allegations are properly subjects of a Motion to Strike. See Healing v. Jones, 174
F.Supp. 211, 220 (D. Ariz. 1959). Matters which are *redundant” consist of allegations that
constitute a needless repetition of other averments which are foreign to the issue to be denied.

Wilkerson v. Butler, 229 F.R.D. 166, 170 (E.DD, Cal. 2005). “An 'impertinent’ allegation is

neither responsive nor relevant 1o the issues involved in the action and which could not be put in
issue or given in evidence between the parties.” Id. Matters which are impertinent consist of

statements which do not pertain and are unnecessary to the issues in question, Id. Finally, a
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“scandalous” matter “improperly casts a derogatory light on someone, usually a party.”' Id.
“Allegations may be stricken as scandalous if' the matier bears no possible relation to the
controversy or may cause the objecting parly prejudice.” Id. In fact, courts have held even
relevant portions of a filing may be stricken when they are scandalous in needless detail,

Gleagson v. Chain Service Restaurant, 300 F, Supp. 1241, 1257 (8.D.N.Y. 1969), aff'd, 422 F.2d

342 (2™ Cir, 1970).

In this case, Plaintiff"s submitted Reply is full of such stuff and nonsense. He not only
falsely attacks the character and actions of Defense counsel, he impugns the integrity and
honesty of this Court. He does so by apparent prevarication of the relevani facts surrounding the
issuance of this Court’s order—which he falsely ascribes as a “frand” upon this court. Setting
aside the hyperbole used by him, it is clear his baseless allegations are misplaced and provide
additional support to not consider the contents of the Reply in deciding the motion.

A. There Is No Fraud On The Court

Plaintiff’s Reply, without evidence, charges the 9/7/18 Order dismissing this action
constitutes a fraud upon this court—which is as unfounded as it is offensive. First, Ms. Galati
neither attended the hearing on Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss nor did she prepare the Order,
Rather, the order was prepared by the attomey who argued the motion for Defendants in
response to a request left on his voicemail to prepare an order consistent with the filings and
arguments made before the Court. Second, the Court Clerk’s voicemail to Mr. Angulo to prepare
the Order is not an ex parte communication. [t is certainly customary for the Court’s staif 1o

contact attormeys to prepare orders once a decision is made by the Court. Third, the Order was

"In other words, seandalous material must reflect cruelly on the defendant's moral character, use repulsive
language or detract from the dignity of the Court. Skadegaard v. Farrell, 378 F, Supp. 1209, 1221 (D.NJ.
1984),
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submitted to the Court for review and signature. Obviously, if there was something amiss in
what had been proffered, the Court could have corrected it. Fourth, the Order was received by
Defendants’ counsel afler the Court signed it and it was e-filed and served on Plaintiff.? Fifth,
the Order properly sets forth the arguments made at the time of the hearing on this matter, in
conjunction with the submitted filings. As (o the suggestion of another basis for dismissal
(Buford abstention), this Court has already been provided authorities Indicating it is within its
rights—and, indeed, its obligations—lo conduct independent research and rule on grounds which
neither party has raised if the circumstances require.

In Qcchiute v. Qcchiuto, 97 Nev. 143, 625 P.2d 568 (1981), the Court expounded at

length on the meaning of “fraud on the court.” It claimed such a motion is addressed to the
sound discretion of the trial court but that it was necessary to show-by the moving party—an
unconscionable plan or scheme which is designed to improperly influence the Court in its
decision. Indeed, in a more recent decision, Estate of Adams v, Fallini, 132 Nev. __ , 386 P.3d
621, 625 (2016), the court defined such fraud as “only that species of fraud which does, or
attemnpts to, subvert the integrity of the court itself, or as a fraud perpetrated by officers of the

court so that the judicial machine cannot perform in the usual manner its impartial task of

judging cases ., . ." Id. (citations omitted).

Noting an attorney was an officer of the Court and, as such, owed a duty of loyalty 1o the
Court, the decision held only when an attorney departs from that standard of conduct is a fraud is
perpetrated upon the Court. Jd. “Even then, relief from a judgment based on fraud upon the
court is rare and normally ‘available only to prevent a grave miscarriage of justice.”” Id. (citing

United States v. Beggerly, 524 {J.S, 38, 47 (1998).

? See Notice of Entry of Order,
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In further identifying what constitutes fraud upon the court, the Court specifically cited
the example of when an attorney proffers a material fact which is known—or should be known-to
be false and relies on the admitted false fact to achieve a favorable ruling, 1d. at 625-26.

“A finding of fraud on the court 18 justified only the most egregious conduct directed to
the court itself, such as bribery of a judge or jury or fabrication of evidence by counsel, and must

be supported by clear, unequivocal and convincing evidence,” [n Re Coordinated Pretrial

Proceedines in Antibiotic Anti-Trust Actions (“Phizer), 538 F.2d 1080, 195 (8" Cir. 1976)

(citations omitted). Clear and convincing evidence is evidence, whether direct or circumstantial,
which 1s sufficiently strong as to produce conviction in the mind of the judge of the truth of the

charge. See Gruber v. Baker, 20 Nev, 453, 476, 23 P. 858, 865 (1890). The burden is on the

plaintiffs bringing the matter.  Clark Sanitation, Inc. v. Sun Valley Disposal Co., 87 Nev. 338,

487 P.2d 337 (1971). Moreover, the standard applies to each element of the fraud that 15

asserted. Bulbman, Inc. v. Nevada Bell, 108 Nev. 105, 110-11, 825 P.2d 588, 592 (1992).

Such a finding must be “reserved for those cases of ‘injustices which, in certain instances,

1i

are deemed sufficiently gross to demand a departure’ from rigid adherence to the doctrine of res

judicata.” Beggerly, 524 U.S. at 45 (citations omitted). In further defining fraud on the Court,

“it is necessary to show an unconscionable plan or scheme which is designed to improperly

influence the court in its decision.” England v. Dovie, 281 F.2d 304, 309 (9"‘ Cir. 1960).

Here, none of this is shown, The Order reflects positions taken in the filings and the oral

arguments placed before the Court at the time of the hearing. Plaintiff has no evidence of such

*In reaching that conclusion, the Court cited a prior Nevada decision, Sierra Glass and Mirror v, Viking,
Indus., Inc., 107 Nev. 119, 125-26, 808 P.2d 512, 316 (1991). In Sierra Glass, the Court held when an
altorney omitted pertinent evidence to “butiress™ his client’s argument and with the knowledge that the
omitted material was harmful to his client’s position that attorney cominitted fraud upon the Court. 1d.

6
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